
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Mayor Tara Walter 
Vice-Mayor John Anderson 
Councilmember Karen Wall 
Councilmember Kristen Larsen 
Councilmember Michelle Cordes 
Councilmember Judy Hughes 
 
 
Monday, April 20, 2020 
 

Florence Town Hall
775 N. Main Street

Florence, AZ 85132
(520) 868-7500

www.florenceaz.gov
Meet 1st and 3rd Mondays

6:00 PM
____________________________________________________________________________ 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the Town of Florence Council and to 
the general public that a Regular Meeting of the Florence Town Council will be held on Monday, 
April 20, 2020, at 6:00 p.m., in the Florence Town Council Chambers, located at 775 N. Main 
Street, Florence, Arizona.   
 
SPECIAL NOTICE REGARDING PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 
Due to the risks to public health caused by the possible spread of the COVID-19 virus at public 
gatherings, the Town of Florence has determined that public meetings will be indefinitely held 
through technological means.  Meetings will be open to the public through technological means. 
In reliance on, and in compliance with, the March 13, 2020 Opinion issued by Attorney General 
Mark Brnovich, and in conjunction with the Emergency Proclamation signed by Mayor Tara 
Walter, on March 18, 2020.  The Town of Florence provides this special advance notice of the 
technological means through which public meetings may be accessed.  While this special notice 
is in effect, public comment at meetings will only be accepted through written submissions, which 
may or may not be read aloud during meetings.  
 
To attend the meeting noticed below by technological means, members of the public may: 
 
1. Access the link to watch a video stream on the Town 

website:  www.FlorenceAZ.gov/tv  or view the meeting live on Cox TV Channel 11. 
 
2. To call in and listen, please dial:  

US: +1-669-900-6833 or +1-346-248-7799   
Webinar ID: 438-648-705 
Password: 453724 

  
Members of the public may submit written comments relating to this meeting to Town Clerk Lisa 
Garcia by emailing lisa.garcia@florenceaz.gov at any time until one hour prior to the posted start 
time for the meeting.  Please be sure to include your name and address for the record as well as 
the meeting date (and Agenda Item #, if applicable) in the subject of your email. 
 
If any member of the public has difficulty connecting to the meeting, they are invited to contact 
the Town of Florence Information Technology Helpdesk at (520) 868-7543. 
 



The agenda for this meeting is as follows:    
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. ROLL CALL: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall,  

 Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy Hughes 
 

3.  MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may respond 
to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask 
that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not discuss 
or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the matters are properly 
noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 

a. Public Hearing to receive citizens comments and accept the Sanitation Rate Study 
proposed rate increases; and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of selecting Option 2, 
to be effective May 1, 2020. (Rebecca Jimenez) 
 

b. Proclaim April 19 – 25. 2020 as National Library Week. (Tara Walter) 
 
c. Proclaim April 2020 as Fair Housing Month. (Tara Walter) 

 
7. CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of 

the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the 
time the agenda item is called.  

 
a. Authorization to enter into a contract with The SJ Anderson Company, to address occupant 

safety items related to egress in Suite 201 and the balcony area of the Silver King 
Marketplace, in an amount not to exceed $63,215.21.  (Chris Salas)   
 

b. Authorizing the Town’s participation in an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchase 
Agreement with Lead Contracting Agency, A Public Procurement Authority, to Cooperative 
Purchase 24 fire turn-outs from Municipal Emergency Services using a three-year lease 
agreement in an amount not to exceed $68,191.90. (David Strayer)   
 

c. Authorization to accept funds in the amount of $24,469 from the Governor’s Office of 
Highway Safety to purchase mobile data computer tablets for traffic records enforcement. 
(Bruce Walls) 
 

d. Approval of the Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service License by FibAire 
Communications, LLC d/b/a AireBeam for a term not to exceed 10 years. (Trenton Shaffer) 

 



e. Approval of the February 3, February 18, and March 2, March 16 and March 18, 2020 Town 
Council Meeting minutes. 
 

8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a. Resolution No. 1736-20: Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of A RESOLUTION OF THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE PROPERTY LEASE POLICY.  (Lisa Garcia/Jennifer Evans) 

 
9. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

10. CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
11. CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the purpose of obtaining 
legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-
431.03(A)(3).  One or more members of Council may appear for part or all of the meeting including 
Executive Session telephonically.  
 
POSTED ON APRIL 15, 2020, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 NORTH MAIN 
STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA, AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY 
REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY 
REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR  711 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD 
BE MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE 
ACCOMMODATION.***  



 
Subject:  Sanitation Fund Public Hearing and Accept Rate Study Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 1 of 4 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6a.  

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Finance 
 
STAFF PRESENTERS:  Rebecca Jimenez, Finance Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Sanitation Fund – Public Hearing and Acceptance of 
Rates 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Public Hearing to receive citizens comments and accept the Sanitation Rate Study 
proposed rate increases; and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of selecting Option 2, to 
be effective May 1, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Deputy Town Manager instructed the Finance Department to review the Sanitation 
Fund.  Over the past several years, the fund balance has been diminishing.  We 
provided a detailed analysis of the fund from the time the Town outsourced its services 
to Right Away Disposal (RAD) in 2013 until present.  
 
The Sanitation Fund is an Enterprise Fund.  Enterprise Funds should be self-supporting, 
having adequate revenue to cover ongoing costs, without any negative impact on the 
Town’s General Fund.  Any deficiencies require immediate action.     
 
Over the past few years, the annual expenditures in the fund were more than the 
revenue. Rate increases did not provide the necessary revenue to offset the continuing 
increases.  Although the provider increased rates charged to the Town last year, the 
Town did not pass along those rate increases to the customers. This compounded the 
ongoing depletion of fund balance.  A detailed staff report is provided for your review 
and is attached to this request. 
 



 
Subject:  Sanitation Fund Public Hearing and Accept Rate Study Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

We recently received notification of a rate increase for sanitation of 1.36% from RAD.  
That will increase the regular residential rate again, effective February 1, 2020. 
 
Staff has met internally for the evaluation and recommendations on what should be 
done to provide a focused analysis of the fund.  While Staff provided multiple 
recommendations for improvement, Staff felt that an independent rate study was 
necessary in order to compare current Town operations to other communities, to ensure 
we were correct in our assumptions and determinations, and to provide a third-party 
recommendation as to the future of the Fund.  The Town contracted a firm to do a rate 
study which cost $8,950 and was completed by Circonomy Solutions.  The study is 
attached and confirms our internal findings. John Trujillo, from Circonomy Solutions, is 
attending the meeting tonight in order to present these findings to Council. 
 
Further adjustments were made to present a future budget.  Those included reducing 
the amount of money returning to the General Fund by charging the Sanitation Fund 
less for administrative oversight, fleet maintenance, and code enforcement.   
 
The fund capital outlay includes the Ruggles property upgrade of $300,000 for the 
development of an “eco station” on Ruggles (originally budgeted FY 19-20), a Sanitation 
Dump Truck for $100,000 and for a Transfer Station (at a cost of $500,000).   
 
The Transfer Station discussion does not have a firm conclusion.  It could be a partial or 
joint payment with another entity, it could be a start for a single Town-owned station, or 
it could be eliminated as an option because of cost.  There have been ongoing 
discussions with Pinal County regarding a regional Transfer Station with surrounding 
communities.  The Town Manager can expand on this discussion, if requested. 
 
The Utility Rate study assumes continuing the current services as they are today.  That 
would mean increasing rates to support the continued operations and maintenance and 
planning for future expansion or projects. 
 
Currently, we are addressing leakage in Anthem.  It has been discovered that at least 
100 customers, mostly transient citizens, have been receiving services without charge.  
Last year we estimated a $12,000 loss in revenue, and it is continuing this year.  Staff is 
working diligently to correct this, but it is very difficult.  Customers place their accounts 
on “hold” for the summer and roll their containers into their garages.  Upon returning at 
the start of winter, they have not reported as being back, and so the Town does not 
resume billing of these residents for trash collection.  Nonetheless, containers are 
placed out and picked up by the Sanitation truck.  It is one of the downsides of not 
having them as water and wastewater customers.   
 
Options 
The following options have been discussed in our review group and are now presented 
to Council as follows: 
 

1. Continue operating the Sanitation Fund as is, thus continuing to deplete the fund 
balance.  No rate increases would be requested, and the Town would see slight 



 
Subject:  Sanitation Fund Public Hearing and Accept Rate Study Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

price increases each year. Eventually, this would mean the General Fund would 
have to supplement an Enterprise Fund within a few years. 
 

2. Continue operating the Sanitation Fund with the increased rates laid out in the 
Sanitation Rate Study, restoring a positive fund balance and supporting 
expenses. These rates are smoothed to ensure the customers are not seeing 
massive price increases or decreases in any given year. 

 
3. Eliminating future capital outlay. No consideration for a Transfer Station.  This 

would provide fund balance back to the operating funds. Rate increase will still 
be needed. 
 

4. Eliminate transfer station services at the Waste Management Ironwood Landfill, 
saving the customer approximately $0.93 per month. 
 

5. Contract out the billing and administrative functions of the Sanitation Operations 
for future consideration.  This would save the fund approximately $66,000 in 
expenditure between direct charges of Town Staff and Administrative Staff and 
the cost of billing, but we would be billed for the cost of this service. Other 
potential savings would be the Intra-Town Charge for billing services of 
approximately $6,800 per year.  Customer service may or may not be impacted. 
 

6. Take back Sanitation Services by increasing customer charges significantly to 
purchase Sanitation trucks and equipment, thus increasing staffing costs and 
operations and maintenance.  We would have to bundle and finance the 
equipment and trucks to prevent the expense from hitting in one year.  Sanitation 
containers would need to be purchased. Previously, the town was charging 
$27.00 per month for this service, in comparison to our current rate of $17.33 
(with RAD collecting and Town billing). 

 
7. Outsourcing the Sanitation Service to a contracted entity, thus removing the 

Town of Florence out of the Sanitation operations and maintenance.  The Town 
would collect a Franchise Fee only and terminate its Sanitation service, selling off 
all equipment and closing the fund. Customer service may or may not be 
impacted. This would also eliminate the option for rent-a-truck and transfer 
station services, as these services are currently supported through the 
administrative fee that is included in the $17.33 monthly rate. 
 

If Town Council decides to continue with Sanitation Services as is, it is requested that 
The Sanitation Rate Study be adopted and that the Town follow State Statute to provide 
public notice of intent to increase rates and fees. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Rates and fees would not be accepted nor implemented. 

 



 
Subject:  Sanitation Fund Public Hearing and Accept Rate Study Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

That the Town will proceed with a request for increase in rates by giving proper 
notification, holding a public meeting and adopting the Sanitation Rate Study and new 
rates. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Incremental increases beginning May 1, 2020 at $.75 per month, and an additional 
$1.00 per month in April 2021, $.92 per month in April 2022, and $.50 per month in April 
2023.  All commercial/institutional/multi-family increases would be billed at 10% above 
RAD costs, as provided by contract.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Sanitation Rate Study, Notice of Intent to Increase Rates and Fees Sanitation Timeline. 



 

 

 

 

   2020 Solid Waste 

Rate Review Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             CIRCONOMY SOLUTIONS | FEBRUARY 2020 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

Table of Contents 

 
 

I Introduction 

 

II Program Attributes and Performance 

A. Garbage 

B. Recycling 

C.    Bulk Trash 

D.   Transfer Station Services 

E. Equipment Rental 

F. Current Solid Waste Rates 

 

III. Rate Review Process 

A. Review of Hauler Contract Agreement 

B. Development of the Test Year 

C.     Capital Program 

D.     Determination of Billing Units 

E. Application of Inflation Adjustments 

F. Development of the Projected Solid Waste Expenses 

G.    Revenue Projections from Current Rates 

H.     Ending Fund Balance 

 

IV. Proposed Solid Waste Rates 

 

V. Recommendations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

I Introduction 
In December of 2019, the Town of Florence (Town) retained the services of Circonomy 
Solutions, LLC (CS) to complete a rate design study of the Town’s residential refuse collection 
operations (Study). The Town provides all solid waste services, including garbage, recycling 
and bulk collection, for residential customers through contracted private service providers 
 

The CS team met with Town staff to initiate the study on December 13, 2019. The meeting 
served as a forum to confirm the scope and schedule and discuss additional data collection. 
 

● Scope 
The purpose of this Study was to determine the total cost of providing solid waste 
services and design rates to safeguard the financial integrity of the program. The total 
cost of providing services includes costs associated with operations and capital outlays.  
 
This report provides a discussion of the methodology utilized to conduct the analysis, 
the cost of providing services and recommended rates to be adopted for solid waste 
services.  
 

● Schedule 
○ Draft Report due January 17, 2020 
○ Final Report and Presentation due February 7, 2020 
○ Present to Council February 18, 2020 

 
● Data Collection 

The Town provided detailed historical data and background information on operations 
and practices. The information included the following: 

○ Detailed financial reports and budgets  
○ Solid waste policies and ordinances  
○ Solid waste quantity reports 
○ Solid waste Contracts 
○ Operational and productivity data for the landfill, residential collections, and 

special collections 
 

In evaluating solid waste rates, the Town’s key concerns were: (1) eliminating the annual 
deficit, (2) ensuring that rates annually contribute enough to meet the minimum operations 
reserve balance, or at least meet this objective by the end of five years ending in FY 2025. 

II Program Attributes and Performance 
The Town strives to promote high quality solid waste, recycling, bulk collection and other 
services. Figure 1 compares the Town rates to other cities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

Figure 1 

Solid Waste Fee Comparison 

 
In comparing the rates with other cities, as shown in Figure 1, the Town is on the lower scale.  
 
The solid waste rate of $17.33 covers a variety of services to the residents of the Town of 
Florence. Those services include: 

A. Garbage 

Residential refuse services provided by Right Away Disposal (RAD) include once 
weekly residential garbage collection services via fully-automated collection vehicles 
with a combination of 96-gallon and 300-gallon carts. For FY20, RAD is projected to 
service approximately 3700-5000 units per week. The number of units varies with the 
influx of winter residents starting in November. The Town will remain the point of contact 
for its residents and will manage the billing responsibilities. Florence residents living in 
Anthem are serviced on Thursdays and all other residents are serviced on Mondays. 

B. Recycling 

The Town offers its residents once a week service through its contract with RAD, 
utilizing the same equipment as the garbage service. The number of units also fluctuate 
during the year. Recyclables are picked up once a week on the same day as the trash.  
For Florence residents living in Anthem, recycling containers are emptied every 
Thursday.  For all other residents, recycling containers are emptied every Monday. 

C. Bulk Trash 

Bulk Trash is provided at no additional charge to the Town’s residents. These are 
materials that don’t otherwise fit in the containers provided. Residents must call ahead 
to schedule the pick-up of their bulk trash at least 24 hours in advance of the scheduled 
pick-up. Bulk trash is picked up on the same day every month. For Florence residents 
living in Anthem, bulk trash is picked up on the 2nd Wednesday of each month. For all 
other Town of Florence residents, bulk trash is picked up on the 1st Wednesday of each 
month. 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

D. Transfer Station Services 

Town residents with active trash accounts can now dispose of bulk waste at the local 
Ironwood Landfill (Transfer Station) free of charge. A copy of the most recent trash bill 
and a Driver’s License is required to dump. Residents can dump up to 5 tons per month. 

E. Equipment Rental 

Residents can also rent a truck from the Town of Florence for a $95 fee. The truck is 
typically parked on a resident’s property on Friday and collected on Monday. Residents 
can fill the back/container with material, and the Town would pay the dump fees 
associated with the truck.  

F. Current Solid Waste Rates 

Table 1 

FY20 Rates 

Code Type FY20 

800 RAD Residential (1-week pick-up) $ 17.33 

801 RAD 95 gallon (2-week pick-up) $ 17.33 

803 RAD Residential (1-week pick-up) ADOC $ 13.17 

805 RAD Additional Container -1 week pick up $ 5.00 

810 RAD Institutional 2 Cubic Yard (1 week) $ 45.10 

815 RAD Institutional 2 Cubic Yard (2 week) $ 71.50 

820 RAD Institutional 3 Cubic Yard (1 week) $ 49.50 

825 RAD Institutional 3 Cubic Yard (2 week) $ 93.50 

830 RAD Institutional 4 Cubic Yard (1 week) $ 55.00 

835 RAD Institutional 4 Cubic Yard (2 week) $ 104.50 

840 RAD Institutional 6 Cubic Yard (1 week) $ 77.00 

841 RAD RECYCLE 6 CY 1 X WEEK $ 33.00 

842 RAD RECYCLE 4 CY 1 X WEEK $ 33.00 

845 RAD Institutional 6 Cubic Yard (2 week) $ 143.00 

850 RAD Institutional 8 Cubic Yard (1 week) $ 100.10 

855 RAD Institutional 8 Cubic Yard (2 week) $ 191.50 

III. Rate Review Process 

A. Review of Hauler Contract Agreement 

The Town entered into a 5-year contract with Right Away Disposal on July 01, 2013, 
with five one-year extensions for Solid Waste Services, Recycling Services and Bulk 
Trash Services.  
 
The financial terms of the Town’s Agreement appear to be standard to the industry. 
Section 13.7 of the Town’s Agreement includes provisions for adjusting service charges 
according to changes in the CPI of two indices, 85% of which will be the Consumer 
Price Index - All Urban Consumers, CUUSA429SAO, CWUSA429SAO, Not Seasonally 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

Adjusted, Area: Phoenix-Mesa, Item: All items ("CPI") and 15 % of which will be the 
Diesel Fuel price index by the United States Department of Energy (the "DOE"). The 
Diesel Fuel adjustment shall be based on the most recent price as of July 1st of the 
then-current year as compared to the same price as calculated one year ago for Diesel 
Fuel (cents per Gallon), for the Phoenix-Mesa Metropolitan Area, which is a typical price 
adjustment measure in the solid waste industry. 

B. Development of the Test Year 

The revenue requirement is defined as the amount of revenue required to recover all 
costs associated with O&M, debt service and cash financed capital outlays. In 
developing the revenue requirement for solid waste services, CS used the fiscal year 
(FY) 2021 Projected operating budget as the basis for the “Test Year”. CS worked with 
Town staff to compare the previous year’s budget and adjust to ensure that the “Test 
Year” would reflect expenses that occur on a regular basis. 
 
The FY 2021 projected budget was compared to actuals from FY 2017 through FY 
2020. Through this comparison, and with input from Town staff, CS adjusted to ensure 
that the “Test Year” would reflect expenses that occur on a regular basis.  
 

Table 2 

FY21 Test Year 

   

053-571-101 Salaries and Wages $21,310.00 

053-571-103 Overtime $0.00 

053-571-105 Holiday Pay $0.00 

053-571-106 Stand By $0.00 

053-571-110 Car Allowance $240.00 

053-571-111 AZ Retirement Contributions $2,580.00 

053-571-121 FICA - Employer's Portion $1,650.00 

053-571-123 Worker's Compensation $220.00 

053-571-124 Health, Accident & Life Insurance $10,250.00 

053-571-201 Telephone $574.00 

053-571-203 Reproduction/Printing $1,800.00 

053-571-206 Liability Insurance $22,000.00 

053-571-207 Service Contracts $180.00 

053-571-209 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance $1,200.00 

053-571-217 Professional Services $842,966.15 

053-571-228 Admin Fee $30,200.00 

053-571-230 Landfill Charges $50,887.00 

053-571-301 Office Supplies $800.00 

053-571-304 Uniform Allowance $750.00 

053-571-306 Fuel - Oil $1,500.00 

053-571-312 Safety Equipment $300.00 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

053-571-403 Training and Development $600.00 

053-590-910 TO GENERAL FUND $82,000.00 

 Total Expenses $1,072,007.15 

 

C. Capital Program 

Since the Town outsourced the solid waste collection and disposal services, the Capital 
program is minimal. However, they have started the design of a $300k Eco Station in 
FY20 and hope to start construction FY21. They are also setting aside funding for 
capital equipment of $100k and $500k funding for a transfer station in collaboration with 
other cities in the region. 

D. Determination of Billing Units 

The determination of the billing units was provided by the Town staff. CS reviewed the 
information and adjusted based on the actuals for the first four months in FY20. Table 3 
shows the adjusted forecast through FY30. 

 
Table 3 

Billing Unit Forecast 
 

 JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN Total 

FY19 3,530 3,561 3,640 3,958 4,322 4,417 4,494 4,556 4,608 4,553 4,054 3,813 49,506 

FY20 3,739 3,767 3,917 4,166 4,539 4,650 4,763 4,843 4,888 4,765 4,229 4,015 52,282 

FY21 3,832 3,867 3,979 4,374 4,766 4,883 5,001 5,085 5,132 5,004 4,441 4,215 54,579 

FY22 4,023 4,061 4,177 4,593 5,004 5,127 5,251 5,340 5,389 5,254 4,663 4,426 57,308 

FY23 4,224 4,264 4,386 4,822 5,255 5,383 5,514 5,607 5,658 5,516 4,896 4,647 60,173 

FY24 4,436 4,477 4,606 5,064 5,517 5,652 5,789 5,887 5,941 5,792 5,141 4,880 63,182 

FY25 4,657 4,701 4,836 5,317 5,793 5,935 6,079 6,181 6,238 6,082 5,398 5,124 66,341 

FY26 4,890 4,936 5,078 5,583 6,083 6,232 6,383 6,491 6,550 6,386 5,668 5,380 69,658 

FY27 5,135 5,183 5,332 5,862 6,387 6,543 6,702 6,815 6,878 6,705 5,951 5,649 73,141 

FY28 5,391 5,442 5,598 6,155 6,706 6,871 7,037 7,156 7,221 7,041 6,249 5,931 76,798 

FY29 5,661 5,714 5,878 6,463 7,042 7,214 7,389 7,514 7,583 7,393 6,561 6,228 80,638 

FY30 5,944 6,000 6,172 6,786 7,394 7,575 7,758 7,889 7,962 7,762 6,889 6,539 84,670 

E. Application of Inflation Adjustments 

The Town’s residential solid waste, recycling and bulk trash rates are designed to be 
forward looking. This means that the rates need to be designed with the intention of 
providing the necessary revenue to cover the costs of the contractor providing the 
above services and administration and overhead costs. Also, the revenue should be 
enough for an ending fund balance equal to 2 months of expenses. 
 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

CS worked with staff to identify the inflationary adjustments that will be used to project 
the costs associated with the Solid Waste program. 
 

Table 4 
Inflationary Adjustments 

Expense Increase 

Salaries & Wages 4% 

Pensions 4% 

Health Insurance 6% 

Liability Insurance 3% 

Disposal 3% 

Professional Fees 1.36%- 4% 

Other Charges 3% 

Admin Fee 4% 

General Fund 4% 

F. Development of the Projected Solid Waste Expenses 

The projected annual operational expense was developed working with the Town to 
project the changes in costs due to new customers, inflation, salary changes, new 
equipment, capital and debt services. Table 5 projects the annual expenses that the 
Town can expect to incur. 
 

Table 5 

Solid Waste Expenses 

 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25-FY30 

Projected 
Expenses 

$1,394,874 $1,222,007 $1,299,106 $1,542,176 $1,344,284 $10,587440 

 

G. Revenue Projections from Current Rates 

CS developed projections concerning the annual amount of revenue that the Town 
would generate from current rates. These projections are based on the number of billing 
units in Table 3. Table 6 projects the total annual revenue the Town could expect to 
generate from current rates from the forecasted billing units shown in Table 3. 
 

Table 6 

Projected Revenue 

 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25-30 

Projected 
Revenue 

$992,289 $1,050,207 $1,093,395 $1,136,920 $1,186,898 $8,366,562 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

 

H. Ending Fund Balance 

As shown in Table 7, the current fee will not be enough to recover the projected 
expenses and the minimum fund balance of two months’ worth of operational expenses.  
 

Table 7 
Ending Fund Balance 

 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25-FY30 

Over/(Under) $788,373 $616,573 $410,862 $5,607 ($151,779) ($2,372,657) 

 

As shown in Figure 2, the ending fund balance for the Solid Waste program will be 
depleted by FY23 if rates stay at the current $17.33 per month 
 

Figure 2 
Ending Fund Balance (no rate increase) 

 

IV. Proposed Solid Waste Rates 

The Town’s long-term financial needs were summarized in a 10-year financial plan that 
forecasts the amount of revenue needed to cover operating expenses, capital, reserves, and 
other obligations. This plan is based on the utility’s current operating budget, customer 
statistics and related information.  
 
The basic objectives of the financial plan were:  

● Meeting Operations Costs: The solid waste utility must generate enough revenue to 
cover the expenses of solid waste operations, including RAD’s contracted services. For 
FY20, the revenue requirement is approximately $1.4 million.  

 
● Maintaining Adequate Reserve Funds: The solid waste utility at the beginning of FY19 

has a healthy reserve fund balance of about $1.27 million. However, without rate 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

increases, this balance will fall to less than the recommended minimum reserve target 
of 2 months of operating expenses by the end of FY23.  

 
The proposed rates provided in this section are based on three options; 

● Option 1 - The Town can continue to leave rates at the current rate of $17.33. 
However, within three years the General-Purpose Fund will need to supplement the 
program every year. The Town will need to set aside approximately $2.4 million over 
the ten-year period. 

 
● Option 2 - Table 8 shows the proposed rates assuming the Town would continue to 

fund all services including all Capital Improvement Program and Capital Equipment 
with cash.  

 

Table 8 
Proposed Rates 

 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25-FY30 

Proposed 
Rates 

$18.08 $19.08 $20.00 $20.5 $20.5 $20.5 
 

 

Based on the proposed rates for Option 2, Figure 3 shows the projected ending fund balance. 
 

Figure 3 
Ending Fund Balance (Cash Fund) 

 
 

● Option 3 - Using the same proposed rates as shown in Table 8 and assuming the 
Town would debt fund the capital improvement program and capital equipment, Figure 
4 shows the projected ending fund balance. 

 

 
 



2020 Solid Waste Rate Review  

Figure 4 
Ending Fund Balance (Debt Funding) 

 

V. Recommendations 

• Increase Residential Fees to the following: 
○ FY20 - $18.08 
○ FY21 - $19.08 
○ FY22 - $20.00 
○ FY23 - $20.50 

• Recommend the Town maintain an ending fund balance equal to two months of 
operational expense 

• Increase Residential Fee for ADOC equal to Residential Fee 

• Increase second container to half of Residential Fee 

• Increase Commercial Fee 10% above RAD costs 

• Review Fee Forecast yearly 

• Recommend the Town consider debt funding Capital Equipment and CIP projects. 

• The RAD contract with expire by 7/1/2023. Town will need to start procurement process 
by January ‘22 so the contractor will have time to procure equipment for a start date of 
July ‘23. 

 
 



Notice of Intention to Increase Sanitation Rates and Fees 

 

The Town of Florence is notifying citizens of its intention to Increase Sanitation 
Rates and Fees.  A Public Hearing will be held to receive citizens comments on 
April 20, 2020, at 775 N. Main Street, Florence, AZ  85132, in the Town Council 
Chambers at 6:00 P.M. 

 

Description 
TOF  

Current  
Rate  

TOF 
Recommended 

New Rate  

TOF 
Rate 

Increase $ 

TOF 
Rate 

Increase % 

Residential (1 pick-up per week)  $          17.33  $             18.10              0.77 4.3%

ADOC Residential (1 pick-up per week)   $          13.17  $             18.10               4.93 37.3%

Residential Additional Container (1 pick-up per week)   $            5.00  $               9.05               4.05 80.8%

Institutional 2 Cubic Yard (2 pick-ups per week)  $          71.50  $             76.10               4.60 6.4%

Institutional 3 Cubic Yard (1 pick-up per week)  $          49.50  $             52.70               3.20 6.4%

Institutional 3 Cubic Yard (2 pick-ups per week)  $          93.50  $             99.50              6.00 6.4%

Institutional 4 Cubic Yard (1 pick-up per week)  $          55.00  $             58.55               3.55 6.4%

Institutional 4 Cubic Yard (2 pick-ups per week)  $        104.50  $           111.25              6.75 6.4%

Institutional 6 Cubic Yard (1 pick-up per week)  $          77.00  $             81.95               4.95 6.4%

Institutional Recycle 6 Cubic Yard (1 pick-up per week)  $          33.00  $             35.15               2.15 6.4%

Institutional 6 Cubic Yard (2 pick-ups per week)  $        143.00  $           152.20               9.20 6.4%

Institutional 8 Cubic Yard (1 pick-up per week)  $        100.10  $           106.55               6.45 6.4%

Institutional 8 Cubic Yard (2 pick-ups per week)  $        191.50  $           203.70             12.20 6.4%

 

***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY REGARDING 
ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A DISABILITY MAY REQUEST 
REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA 
COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS 
EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION. 



Sanitation Rate Increase 

January 10, 2020 

Delivered report to office of the Town Clerk  

February 3, 2020 

Present Sanitation Rate Study to Town Council   

Request to Accept Rate Study  

Authorize staff to Post Notice of Intention to Increase Sanitation Rates and Fees 

Set time of Public Hearing to receive citizens comments 

(If the municipality proposes to increase the rate of an existing tax or fee on a business, 
provide written notice of the proposed increase, the schedule of the proposed increased 
tax or fee and the written report or data that supports the proposed increased tax or fee 
on the home page of the municipality's website at least sixty days before the date the 
proposed new rate is approved or disapproved by the governing body of the municipality. 
ARS 9-499.15 -3.) 

(Prepare a notice of intent to establish or increase taxes, assessments or fees including 
assessments pursuant to section 48-572, subsection B, paragraph 1.  The notice of intent 
shall include the date, time and place of the meeting of the governing body of the 
municipality in which the proposed new or increased tax or fee will be considered and a 
statement that a schedule of the proposed new or increased tax or fee that includes the 
amount of the tax or fee and a written report or data that supports the new or increased 
tax or fee is available on the municipality's website. The notice of intent shall be posted 
on the municipality's website at least fifteen days before the date the proposed new or 
increased tax or fee will be approved or disapproved by the governing body of the 
municipality.  If the municipality uses social media or other electronic communication 
tools, the notice of intent shall be distributed through the municipality's social media 
accounts or other electronic communication tools. ARS 9-499 1.5-4) 

February 4, 2020 

Post Rate Study and Intention to Increase Rates and Fees on Town website 

Include on the March 1 Utility bills, the Notice of Intention to increase 

March 1, 2020 

Notification on Utility Bills 

March 19, 26, 2020 

Ran ad in newspaper  

April 20, 2019 



Public Hearing on increase of Sanitation Rates and Fees 

Accept Sanitation Rate Study and adopt rates and fees 

May 1, 2020 

Implement Rates and Fees 

 



Subject: National Library Week   Meeting Date: April 20, 2020   
Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
6b.  

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Council 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
SUBJECT:  National Library Week Proclamation  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclaim April 19-25, 2020 as National Library Week.  
  
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
National Library Week is a time to celebrate the contributions of our nation's libraries and 
librarians and to promote library use and support.  All types of libraries - school, public, 
academic and special - participate.  This year, National Library Week will be observed 
April 19-25, 2020 with the theme, "Find Your Place at the Library." 
 
Every April, National Library Week recognizes the enormous value we receive from our 
libraries every day.  Not only do libraries provide us with books to read, but they are 
valuable tools and resources.  They are continually changing to meet the demands of 
today’s technology and ever-expanding volumes of knowledge. Libraries and those who 
coordinate the effort to keep them up to date have been challenged to provide a wide 
range of media, and they have met the need. 
 
The American Library Association in conjunction with the Advertising Council founded the 
first National Library Week in 1958.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 



Subject: National Library Week   Meeting Date: April 20, 2020   
Page 2 of 2 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not Applicable 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Proclamation 



 

 
 
 

NATIONAL LIBRARY WEEK 
APRIL 19-25, 2020 

 
 

WHEREAS, today’s libraries are less about what they have on the shelves and more 
about what they can do with and for their communities; and libraries have long served as trusted 
and treasured institutions where people of all ages, interests and backgrounds can come 
together and learn alongside one another; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries of all types are at the heart of their cities, towns, schools and 
campuses; and libraries offer members of the community a welcoming space and opportunities 
to explore new passions through technology, programs and services; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries and librarians help patrons find tools to help improve the quality of 
their life; and promote the free exchange of information and ideas for all, are cornerstones of 
democracy; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries strive to develop and maintain programs and collections that are as 
diverse as the populations they serve; and 
 
 WHEREAS, libraries and librarians work to create an equitable society by providing free 
access to accurate information to all people; and 
 

WHEREAS, libraries are a resource for all members of the community regardless of race, 
ethnicity, creed, ability, sexual orientation, gender identity or socio-economic status, by offering 
services and educational programming that transform lives and strengthen communities; and 

 
WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers and supporters across America are 

celebrating National Library Week. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I Tara Walter do hereby proclaim April 19 – 25, 
2020 as National Library Week.  During this time, I encourage all residents to visit the library and 
explore what’s new at your library and engage with your librarian. Because of you and our library 
leaders, Libraries Transform.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 20h day of April 2020. 
 
 
________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



Subject:  Fair Housing Proclamation                                                                                Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020  
Page 1 of 1 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
 6c. 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2020   
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: 2020 Fair Housing Proclamation  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Proclaim April 2020 as Fair Housing Month.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
All recipients of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds must certify they 
affirmatively further fair housing.  Declaration of this proclamation is required each year 
for the Town of Florence to continue to receive CDBG funds. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
2020 Fair Housing Proclamation 



 
 
 
 

FAIR HOUSING PROCLAMATION 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the Civil Rights Act of 1968, commonly known as the Federal Fair 
Housing Act and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, prohibit discrimination in the 
sale, rental, leasing and financing of housing or land to be used for the construction of 
housing or in the provision of brokerage service on the basis of: race, color, religion, sex, 
disability, familial status or national origin; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the 1986 and 1988 Federal Fair Housing Acts declare that it is a 
national policy to ensure equal opportunities in housing; and 
 
 WHEREAS, April has traditionally been designated as Fair Housing Month in the 
United States. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tara Walter, Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona, do 
hereby proclaim April as Fair Housing Month in the Town of Florence, and do hereby urge 
all residents of this community to comply with and show their support for the letter and 
spirit of the Fair Housing Acts. 
 
Issued this 20th day of April 2020. 
 
 
 
              
        Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 



 

Subject:   Authorization to contract with The SJ Anderson Co.                          Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7a. 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Public Works 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Christopher A. Salas, P.E. 
                                      Public Works Director/Town Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:  Authorization to contract with The SJ Anderson 
Company  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality        Economic Prosperity   Leadership and Governance     

 Partnership and Relationships      Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Authorization to contract with The SJ Anderson Company, to address occupant safety items 
related to egress including: minor modifications to existing doors, suppression systems, exit 
landing, exit lighting, secure access and extension of existing deck to the existing staircase, 
using the Gordian Job Order Contract (JOC) # ADSPO17-174290 for an amount of 
$54,969.75, plus a 15% contingency ($8,245.46) for a total not to exceed of $63,215.21. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Suite 201 and the balcony area of the Silver King Marketplace require modifications to bring 
occupancy conditions into compliance.  The primary components of this project are to extend 
the existing balcony around the north side to connect to the existing exterior staircase, in 
addition to addressing door widths and exit route lighting along the egress path.  This project 
will take into consideration the secure access to the balcony during non-business hours, and 
also improve the exterior landing at the north door of Suite 102. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of no would affect the ability to lease Suite 201 and restrict public use of the balcony. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 
 
A vote of yes would allow egress improvements, permitting the lease of Suite 201, and public 
access to the Silver King balcony. 



 

Subject:   Authorization to contract with The SJ Anderson Co.                          Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
$54,969.75, plus a 15% contingency ($8,245.46) for a total not to exceed $63,215.21.   
 
Services will be obtained following the Town’s Purchasing Policy, Section 5.63 Purchases of 
$25,000 or More (specifically, 5.6321 of Vendor Selection) 

 
5.632 Vendor Selection 

 
5.6321 Alternative purchase methods are identified if approved by necessity or by the Town 
Manager as indicated by Emergency / Sole Source Purchase, cooperative purchase, state 
contract or any other method authorized.  The Finance Director reviews for budget availability 
and bidding procedures.  The Town Manager reviews for need. 

 
4.12 Purchasing Policy  

  
Department Heads must approve all purchases regardless of dollar value.  This does not 
preclude the Department Head from obtaining the necessary approval from the Town Manager 
and/or Town Council, nor does this allow them to have signature authority on contracts.  The 
Town Manager has signature authority on purchases up to $24,999.  Town Council is required 
on any purchases of $25,000 or more. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Exhibit 1:  Price Proposal Summary, using Gordian JOC #ADSPO17-174290 
Exhibit 2:  Executed Offer and Acceptance Form between The SJ Anderson Co. and the  
                 State of Arizona (Solicitation No. ADSPO17-00007249) 
Exhibit 3:  Current plan set for the Silver King 
Exhibit 4:  Cooperative Contract between The SJ Anderson Co. and the Town of Florence 
 
 



Price Proposal Summary - CSI

Job Order Contract

www.eziqc.com

Statewide JOC Contract

 

Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town HallJob Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Date:

ADSPO17-174290-ez

20-Florence-0006.00

April 06, 2020

Scope of Work

· Repair a few stucco patches and cracks

· Paint entire exterior stucco

· Replace damage fascia

· Repair fascia from peeling paint, blistering, grain separation, etc.

· Paint fascia around entire exterior of building.

· Paint entire exterior soffits

· Paint exterior post and beams.

Includes all equipment, labor, and materials to be completed during business hours

Excludes painting of metals, MEP, landscaping, roofing, gutters, and any other work not listed 

within.

Detailed Scope:

Proposal Name:

Proposal Value:

Proposal created by 

Contractor:

Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

The SJ Anderson Company

$50,977.32

01 - General Requirements: $12,305.43

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $1,492.69

09 - Finishes: $37,179.20

$50,977.32Proposal Total

This  proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

PO should be directly issued to the Contractor and not Gordian or The State of Arizona .

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

 1.00

Page 1 of 1

4/6/2020

Price Proposal Summary - CSI

jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT 1



Price Proposal Detail  - CSI

Job Order Contract

April 06, 2020

20-Florence-0006.00

ADSPO17-174290-ez

Date:

Job Order Title:

Job Order Number: 

Contract Number:

Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

1.0526-Option 3 - ezIQC Reimbursable Fee, 1.1889-Option 3 - State - Owner Funded - Normal 

Working Hours

Adjustment Factor(s) Used:

Proposal created 

by Contractor:

Proposal Value:

Proposal Name: Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

The SJ Anderson Company

$50,977.32

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base cost to the actual 

Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, list each one 

separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warranty, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt shall be submitted with 

the Price Proposal.

1 $1,038.70EA

Installation =x x $1,038.70
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0526$1.00 986.79

User Note: 2% Payment and Performance Bond

01  22   16   00 0002 Reimbursable FeesReimbursable Fees will be paid to the contractor for eligible 

costs.  Insert the appropriate quantity to adjust the base cost to the actual 

Reimbursable Fee. If there are multiple Reimbursable Fees, list each one 

separately and add a comment in the "note" block to identify the Reimbursable 

Fee (e.g. sidewalk closure, road cut, various permits, extended warranty, 

expedited shipping costs, etc.). A copy of each receipt shall be submitted with 

the Price Proposal.

2 $598.94EA

Installation =x x $598.94
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$1.00 503.78

User Note: 1% Builder's Risk Insurance

01  22   16   00 0004 TaxesThe Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other similar taxes 

required by Law for which an exemption does not exist. If the Contractor is 

required to pay sales tax on non-exempt material, equipment, services or other 

items purchased in connection with a Purchase Order, the Member will 

reimburse the Contractor for such tax, without mark-up, provided the 

Contractor submits the appropriate documentation therefore.

The base cost of the Taxes is $1.00. The quantity used will adjust the base 

cost to the actual Taxes (e.g. quantity of 125 = $125.00 Taxes). If there are 

multiple Taxes, each one shall be listed separately with a comment in the "note" 

block to identify the Taxes. A copy of each receipt shall be included with the 

Proposal.

3 $3,218.66EA

Installation =x x $3,218.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.0526$1.00 3,057.82

User Note: Sales Tax

01  22   23   00 0012 80' Engine Powered, Telescoping Boom Man Lift With Platform4 $6,152.58WK

Installation =x x $6,152.58
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$2,587.51 2.00

User Note: 1 Lift for 2 weeks to replace Fascia and Paint Exterior of Building.

 2.00

Page 1 of 4

4/6/2020

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

20-Florence-0006.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

01 - General Requirements

01  71   13   00 0003 Standard Equipment Delivery, Pickup, Mobilization And Demobilization Using A 

Tractor Trailer With Up To 53' BedIncludes loading, tie-down of equipment, 

delivery of equipment, off loading on site, rigging, dismantling, loading for return 

and transporting away. For equipment such as bulldozers, motor scrapers, 

hydraulic excavators, gradalls, road graders, loader-backhoes, heavy duty 

construction loaders, tractors, pavers, rollers, bridge finishers, straight mast 

construction forklifts, telescoping boom rough terrain construction forklifts, 

telescoping and articulating boom man lifts with >40' boom lengths, etc.

5 $682.99EA

Installation =x x $682.99
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$574.47 1.00

User Note: Delivery and Pickup for Boom Lift

01  71   13   00 0003 For Distance >15 Miles From Project, Add Per Hour6 Mod $167.72EA

Installation =x x $167.72
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$141.07 1.00

01  74   19   00 0015 20 CY Dumpster (4 Ton) "Construction Debris"Includes delivery of dumpster, 

rental cost, pick-up cost, hauling, and disposal fee. Non-hazardous material.

7 $445.84EA

Installation =x x $445.84
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$375.00 1.00

User Note: For Construction Debris

Subtotal for 01 - General Requirements: $12,305.43

06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites

06  46   26   00 0002 1" x 2" White Pine Cornices, All Dimensions Are Nominal8 $768.03LF

Installation =x x $605.39
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$3.35 152.00

Demolition x x = $162.64 1.1889$0.90 152.00

User Note: When replacing damaged fascia replace sub-fascia as well.

06  46   29   00 0008 2" x 8" Pine Fascia Board9 $724.66LF

Installation =x x $525.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$2.91 152.00

Demolition x x = $198.78 1.1889$1.10 152.00

User Note: Replace damaged fascia

Subtotal for 06 - Wood, Plastic, and Composites: $1,492.69

09 - Finishes

09  01   20   91 0009 Up To 10', Chip, Clean And Repair Crack In Plaster/Stucco10 $371.89LF

Installation =x x $371.89
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$7.82 40.00

User Note: Repair 4 different cracks in the Stucco.

09  01   20   91 0023 Up To 10 SF, Chip, Clean And Repair Plaster/Stucco11 $851.25SF

Installation =x x $851.25
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$14.32 50.00

User Note: Patch 5 different location of Stucco

09  91   13   00 0092 Paint Exterior Stucco Walls, 1 Coat Primer, Sprayed12 $5,373.95SF

Installation =x x $5,373.95
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.38 11,895.00

User Note: North 3808 SF, South 3846 SF, East 2121 SF, and West 2121 SF

Page 2 of 4

4/6/2020

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

20-Florence-0006.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  91   13   00 0092 For Work >20', AddApplied only to work area above 20'.13 Mod $364.66SF

Installation =x x $364.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.06 5,112.00

09  91   13   00 0092 For >10,000 To 20,000, Deduct14 Mod -$848.52SF

Installation =x x $-848.52
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$-0.06 11,895.00

09  91   13   00 0094 Paint Exterior Stucco Walls, 2 Coats Paint, Sprayed15 $12,444.93SF

Installation =x x $12,444.93
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.88 11,895.00

User Note: North 3808 SF, South 3846 SF, East 2121 SF, and West 2121 SF

09  91   13   00 0094 For Work >20', AddApplied only to work area above 20'.16 Mod $850.87SF

Installation =x x $850.87
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.14 5,112.00

09  91   13   00 0094 For >10,000 To 20,000, Deduct17 Mod -$1,838.46SF

Installation =x x $-1,838.46
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$-0.13 11,895.00

09  91   13   00 0165 Paint Exterior Rough Wood Ceiling, 1 Coat Primer, Sprayed18 $4,195.47SF

Installation =x x $4,195.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.57 6,191.00

User Note: Paint Exterior Ceilings from Fascia to stuccoed wall. North 1213 SF, South 2102 SF, East 1438 SF, and West 

1438 SF

09  91   13   00 0165 For >5,000 To 10,000, Deduct19 Mod -$441.63SF

Installation =x x $-441.63
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$-0.06 6,191.00

09  91   13   00 0167 Paint Exterior Rough Wood Ceiling, 2 Coats Paint, Sprayed20 $8,317.34SF

Installation =x x $8,317.34
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$1.13 6,191.00

User Note: Paint Exterior Ceilings from Fascia to stuccoed wall. North 1213 SF, South 2102 SF, East 1438 SF, and West 

1438 SF

09  91   13   00 0167 For >5,000 To 10,000, Deduct21 Mod -$809.65SF

Installation =x x $-809.65
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$-0.11 6,191.00

09  91   13   00 0301 Paint Fascia Board, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work22 $679.19LF

Installation =x x $679.19
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.37 1,544.00

User Note: North 351 LF, South 483 LF, East 355 LF, and West 355 LF

09  91   13   00 0303 Paint Fascia Board, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work23 $1,156.47LF

Installation =x x $1,156.47
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.63 1,544.00

User Note: North 351 LF, South 483 LF, East 355 LF, and West 355 LF

09  91   13   00 0472 Paint Exterior Wood Trim, 1 Coat Primer, Brush/Roller Work24 $1,435.43SF

Installation =x x $1,435.43
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.56 2,156.00

User Note: 704 SF of Post and 1452 SF of Beams

Page 3 of 4

4/6/2020

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



Repair Fascia and Paint Building - Florence Town Hall

20-Florence-0006.00Job Order Number: 

Job Order Title:

Price Proposal Detail - CSI Continues..

CSI Number Line TotalDescriptionUOMMod.Rec#

09 - Finishes

09  91   13   00 0474 Paint Exterior Wood Trim, 2 Coats Paint, Brush/Roller Work25 $3,024.66SF

Installation =x x $3,024.66
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$1.18 2,156.00

User Note: 704 SF of Post and 1452 SF of Beams

09  91   43   00 0035 Hand Scrape Wood Surface26 $302.88SF

Installation =x x $302.88
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.33 772.00

User Note: Hand Scrape off pealing paint on Fascia

09  91   43   00 0039 Sanding Wood Trim27 $422.20SF

Installation =x x $422.20
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$0.46 772.00

User Note: After Hand Scrape off pealing paint on Fascia, sand Smooth before painting.

09  91   43   00 0051 Flat Surfaces, Paint Removal, Strip To Bare Wood28 $1,326.27SF

Installation =x x $1,326.27
FactorUnit PriceQuantity Total

 1.1889$2.89 386.00

User Note: Repair severe areas of fascia by striping to bare wood and patching before painting.

Subtotal for 09 - Finishes: $37,179.20

$50,977.32Proposal Total

This proposal total represents the correct total for the proposal.  Any discrepancy between line totals, 

sub-totals and the proposal total is due to rounding of the line totals and sub-totals.

PO should be directly issued to the Contractor and not Gordian or The State of Arizona .

The Percent of NPP on this Proposal: 0.00%

Page 4 of 4

4/6/2020

Price Proposal Detail  - CSI



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT 2



jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT 3



























jenniferh
Typewriter
EXHIBIT 4











Subject: Lease Purchase of Firefighting Turnouts    Meeting Date:  April 20 , 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7b.  

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Fire Department 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:   David Strayer, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Lease Purchase of Turnouts  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
Authorizing the Town’s participation in an Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchase 
Agreement with Lead Contracting Agency, A Public Procurement Authority, to 
Cooperative Purchase 24 fire turn-outs from Municipal Emergency Services using a 
three-year lease agreement in an amount not to exceed $68,191.90.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:  
 
The National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) Standard 1851 establishes requirements for 
the selection, care, and maintenance of firefighting protective ensembles to reduce health 
and safety risks associated with improper maintenance, contamination, or damage.  
 
It is important, for safety reasons, that the Fire Department have enough stock of 
protective clothing available to all members in the event that the protective clothing 
became soiled, wet, or contaminated during daily activities, a second set would be 
available.  Therefore, the Department should provide each member with two complete 
sets of structural fire-fighting protective clothing that meet the requirements of NFPA 
1971, Standard on Protective Ensembles for Structural Fire Fighting and Proximity Fire 
Fighting, whenever possible.   
 
This procurement is an Alternative Bid Process allowed in our Purchasing Policy.  The 
Town is using a public procurement agency that has already procured bids.  The 
procurement was done through Public Procurement Authority, an Oregon National 
Procurement Agency allowed through Arizona State Statutes.  They publicly bid out 



Subject: Lease Purchase of Firefighting Turnouts    Meeting Date:  April 20 , 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

firefighting supplies and equipment.  The items purchased have been recommended as 
a superior product to what had been offered on the Arizona State Procurement website.   
 
An Intergovernmental Agreement must be authorized to procure through the Public 
Procurement Authority. 
 
The company chosen to procure the needed product was Municipal Emergency Services, 
a Tempe, Arizona, company on the bid list of the Public Procurement Agency. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN:   
 
The Town of Florence would not move forward with the purchase of 24 sets of firefighting 
turnouts. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN:  
 
The Town of Florence would move forward with the purchase of 24 sets of firefighting 
turnouts.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
Due to the unknown financial impact of the current Covid19 virus, the Fire Department 
has chosen to present an opportunity to extend the payments of this major purchase. 
 
Staff feels this if fiscally responsible and allows an amortized impact instead of a one-
time major capital expenditure.  This frees up working capital for other Town projects. 
 
The terms of the lease agreement are for three years with annual payments of 
$20,597.30, at a rate of 3.67% or $4,523.50 in interest expenditure over the term of the 
lease purchase agreement.  A down payment of $6,400 is required, leaving $57,268.40 
to be financed. The total expenditure over the three-year period will be $68,191.90 
(including down payment).  The first payment will be one year from the date of the 
lease/purchase agreement authorization.  
 
Additional Option: 
 
Alternate motion: Authorize the procurement of 24 fire turn-outs from Municipal 
Emergency Services, in an amount not to exceed $63,668.40; or.   
 
If council chooses, it can pay cash for the entire purchase in full.  This would save interest 
payments in the amount of $4,523.50.  Funding for the purchase will be made out of our 
General Capital Projects Fund.  The fund has sufficient money to fund the purchase. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
MES Invoice, Intergovernmental Agreement with Public Procurement Agency, Lease 
Documents, Bid Documents, NPPGov Frequently Asked Questions. 









 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 

 
 
 This Intergovernmental Agreement (Agreement) is by and between the Lead Contracting 
Agency (“Public Procurement Authority (PPA)”) and participating government entities 
(“Participating Agencies”) that agree to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  The Lead 
Contracting Agency and all Participating Agencies shall be considered as “parties” to this 
agreement. 
 
 WHEREAS, upon completion of a formal competitive solicitation and selection process, 
PPA has entered into a Master Price Agreement with one or more Vendors to provide goods and 
services, often based on national sales volume projections; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Master Price Agreement provides that Participating Agencies may 
purchase goods and services on the same terms, conditions and pricing as the PPA, subject to 
applicable local and state laws of the Participating Agencies; 
 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to comply with the requirements of the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act as may be applicable to the local and state laws of the Participating Agencies; 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to conserve and leverage resources, and to improve the 

efficiency and economy of the procurement process while reducing solicitation and procurement 
costs; 

 
WHEREAS, the parties are authorized and eligible to contract with governmental bodies 

and Vendors to perform governmental functions and services, including the purchase of goods 
and services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to contract with Vendors under the terms of the Master 

Price Agreement; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE 1: LEGAL AUTHORITY 
 
 Each party represents and warrants that it is eligible to participate in this Agreement 
because it is a local government created and operated to provide one or more governmental 
functions and possesses adequate legal authority to enter into this Agreement.  
 
ARTICLE 2: APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 The procurement of goods and services subject to this Agreement shall be conducted in 
accordance with and subject to the relevant statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations that 
govern each party’s procurement policies.  Competitive Solicitations are intended to meet the 
public contracting requirements of the PPA and may not be appropriate under, or satisfy 



Participating Agencies’ procurement laws.  It is the responsibility of each party to ensure it has 
met all applicable solicitation and procurement requirements.  Participating Agencies are urged 
to seek independent review by their legal counsel to ensure compliance with all local and state 
solicitation requirements. 
 
ARTICLE 3: USE OF BID, PROPOSAL OR PRICE AGREEMENT 
 

a. A “procuring party” is defined as the PPA or any Participating Agency that desires to 
purchase from the Master Price Agreement awarded by the PPA. 
 

b. Each procuring party shall be solely responsible for their own purchase of goods and 
services under this Agreement.  A non-procuring party shall not be liable in any 
fashion for any violation of law or contract by a procuring party, and the procuring 
party shall hold non-procuring parties and all unrelated procuring parties harmless 
from any liability that may arise from action or inaction of the procuring party. 
 

c. The procuring party shall not use this agreement as a method for obtaining additional 
concessions or reduced prices for similar goods and services outside the scope of the 
Master Price Agreement. 

 
d. The exercise of any rights or remedies by the procuring party shall be the exclusive 

obligation of such procuring party. 
 

e. The cooperative use of bids, proposals or price agreements obtained by a party to this 
Agreement shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions of the bid, proposal 
or price agreement, except as modified where otherwise allowed or required by 
applicable law, and does not relieve the party of its other solicitation requirements 
under state law or local policies.   

 
 
 
ARTICLE 4: PAYMENT OBLIGATIONS 
 
 The procuring party will make timely payments to Vendors for goods and services 
received in accordance with the terms and conditions of the procurement.  Payment for goods 
and services, inspections and acceptance of goods and services ordered by the procuring party 
shall be the exclusive obligation of such procuring party.  Disputes between procuring party and 
Vendor shall be resolved in accordance with the law and venue rules of the state of the procuring 
party. 

 
ARTICLE 5: COMMENCEMENT DATE 
 

This Agreement shall take effect after execution of the “Public Procurement Authority 
Endorsement and Authorization” or “Participating Agency Endorsement and Authorization,” as 
applicable.   

 



ARTICLE 6: TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by a party giving 30 days written 

notice to “PPA”. 
 
ARTICLE 7: ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement and any attachments, as provided herein, constitute the complete 
Agreement between the parties hereto, and supersede any and all oral and written agreements 
between the parties relating to matters herein. 
 
ARTICLE 8: CHANGES AND AMENDMENTS 
 
 This Agreement may be amended only by a written amendment executed by all parties, 
except that any alterations, additions, or deletions of this Agreement which are required by 
changes in Federal and State law or regulations are automatically incorporated into this 
Agreement without written amendment hereto and shall become effective on the date designated 
by such law or regulation. 
 
ARTICLE 9: SEVERABILITY 
 
 All parties agree that should any provision of this Agreement be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect any other term of this Agreement, which 
shall continue in full force and effect. 
 

THIS INSTRUMENT HAS BEEN EXECUTED IN TWO OR MORE ORIGINALS BY 
EXECUTION AND ATTACHMENT OF “THE PUBLIC PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY 
ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION” OR “PARTICIPATING AGENCY 
ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION,” AS APPLICABLE.  ONCE EXECUTED, IT IS 
THE RESPONSIBILITY OF EACH PARTY TO FILE THIS AGREEMENT WITH THE 
PROPER AGENCY IF REQUIRED BY LOCAL OR STATE LAW. 

  



 
PUBLIC PROCUREMENT AUTHORITY 

ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 
 
 The undersigned acknowledges, on behalf of the Public Procurement Authority (“Lead 
Contracting Agency”) that he/she has read and agrees to the general terms and conditions set 
forth in the enclosed Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating use of the 
Master Price Agreements and purchase of goods and services that from time to time are made 
available by the Public Procurement Authority to Participating Agencies locally, regionally, and 
nationally.  Copies of Master Price Agreements and any amendments thereto made available by 
the Public Procurement Authority will be provided to Participating Agencies to facilitate use by 
Participating Agencies. 
 
 The undersigned understands that the purchase of goods and services under the 
provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the absolute 
discretion of the Participating Agencies. 
 

The undersigned affirms that he/she is an agent of the Public Procurement Authority and 
is duly authorized to sign this Public Procurement Authority Endorsement and Authorization.   
 
 
 
 
 
  
        Date: October 10, 2018  
 
BY:  Teila Leighton 
ITS:  Contract Manager 
 
Public Procurement Authority Contact Information: 
 
Contact Person:  Teila Leighton 
Address:      25030 SW Parkway Avenue 
          Suite 330 
          Wilsonville, OR 97070 
Telephone No.:  855-524-4572 
Email:                questions@ppa-or.gov  

  



 
PARTICIPATING AGENCY 

ENDORSEMENT AND AUTHORIZATION 
 
 The undersigned acknowledges, on behalf of _____________________ (“Participating 
Agency”) that he/she has read and agrees to the general terms and conditions set forth in the 
enclosed Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating use of the Master 
Price Agreements and purchase of goods and services that from time to time are made available 
by the Public Procurement Authority to Participating Agencies locally, regionally, and 
nationally.   
 
 The undersigned further acknowledges that the purchase of goods and services under the 
provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the absolute 
discretion of the Participating Agency and that PPA shall not be held liable for any costs or 
damages incurred by or as a result of the actions of the Vendor or any other Participating 
Agency.  Upon award of contract, the Vendor shall deal directly with the Participating Agency 
concerning the placement of orders, disputes, invoicing and payment. 
 

The undersigned affirms that he/she is an agent of _____________________ and is duly 
authorized to sign this Participating Agency Endorsement and Authorization.   
 
 
 
  
______________________________  Date:______________ 
BY:  _________________________ 
ITS:  _________________________ 
 
Participating Agency Contact Information: 
 
Contact Person:  ________________________ 
Address:  ______________________________ 
______________________________________ 
______________________________________ 
Telephone No.:__________________________ 
Email:_________________________________ 
 
 



 
 

215 S. Seth Child Road 
Manhattan, KS 66502 
Phone: 888.777.7850 

Fax: 888.777.7875 
www.clpusa.net 

 
MUNICIPAL INFORMATION FORM 

- Version #20150123 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR MUNICIPALITY 
 

 

Legal Name of Lessee:  
 

 

Primary Contact-Name: Title: 

 

Address: 
 

Phone Number-Office: Cell: 

 

City, State, Zip:                 
                
 

 

Email:   

 

County: Second Contact- Name: Title: 

 

Fed. Tax ID #:   Phone Number - Office: Cell: 

 

Bond Rating (if applicable): Email: 

 

Name of Insurance Carrier/Agent: 
 

 

Name of Attorney (if any): 

 

Phone Number: Phone Number: 

 

Population Served: 
 

Coverage Area (sq. miles): 
 

# of fleet vehicles: 

TRANSACTION INFORMATION 
 

Equipment Description: Equipment Cost:    

Delivery Date:        Down Payment:    

# of Payments:                          Trade In/ 
Other: 

  

Payment Frequency: 
 

Monthly        Quarterly         Semi-Annual       Annual  

 

Amount to Finance: 
 

ESSENTIAL USE & VENDOR INFORMATION 
 

Replacement:    Yes  No  If yes, explain what equipment is being replaced. If no, explain why the addition is needed:  
 
 
 
 New Equipment:    

  Yes     No 

 
 

Vehicle Year (if applicable): 
 

Miles (if used):  

Vendor/Dealer: Salesperson’s Name: 

 

Phone: 
 

Email: 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION REQUIRED 
 

If lessee’s expenditures exceeded revenues during any of the last 3 years, explain why and describe the actions taken to correct shortfall:  
 
 
 
  
Will the lessee issue more than $10,000,000 in new tax-exempt debt in this Calendar Year?                                          

 

 Yes  No 
 

Has the lessee defaulted or non-appropriated on a prior lease, bond, or legal obligation? 
 

 Yes 

 

 No 
 

Are there any judgments, liens or bankruptcies on/against the municipality? 
 

 

 Yes 

 

 No 
 

• Three (3) most recently completed audits or year-end Financial Statements 

• If  most recent Financial Statement is more than six (6) months ago, provide year-to-date Balance Sheet  and 
Profit and Loss Statement 

Completed By: Title: Date: 
 

I certify everything stated in this form is correct to the best of my knowledge.  Lessor is authorized to verify any information on this form with an appropriate 
third party as necessary to complete the credit review process. Lessor is authorized to contact our insurance to obtain carrier information as part of the credit 
review process.  My signature above authorizes said agent to release this information to CLP.  Upon submission of this form, we are committing to work with 
CLP and acknowledge failure to complete the lease in its entirety may result in a $500 documentation fee being charged. 

blake
Highlight

blake
Highlight



Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2020 GOHS Grant for Traffic Safety Equipment           Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7c.  

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Bruce Walls, Police Chief   
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of FFY2020 Governor’s Office of 
Highway Safety Grant for Traffic Enforcement Records 
Equipment 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to accept funds in the amount of $24,469 from the Governor’s Office of Highway 
Safety (GOHS) to purchase mobile data computer tablets for traffic records enforcement.  
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The Florence Police Department was awarded funds from the GOHS to purchase mobile 
data computer tablets.  The tablets will be used to support the demands of the Arizona 
TraCS system that is used for traffic enforcement records. The tablets will allow officers 
to complete electronic Arizona Department of Transportation crash reports and issue e-
citations.  
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will not accept the $24,449 in grant funds from GOHS. 
 
A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will accept the $24,449 in grant funds from GOHS. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
There are no matching fund requirements for this grant. 



Subject:  Acceptance of FFY2019 Operation Stonegarden Funds from AZDOHS     Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

GOHS Grant Agreement 2020-405c-012 



















































Subject:  Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service License – FibAire Communications, LLC d/b/a 
AireBeam   
Meeting Date:  04/20/2020 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
7d.  

MEETING DATE: April 20th, 2020  
 
DEPARTMENT:  Information Technology 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Trenton Shaffer (Information Technology 
Manager) 
 
SUBJECT:  Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service 
License – FibAire Communications, LLC d/b/a AireBeam 
  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnerships and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Approval of the Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service License by FibAire 
Communications, LLC d/b/a AireBeam for a term not to exceed 10 years. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2018 the State of Arizona amended Title 9 of the Arizona Revised Statutes by adding 
chapter 13: Amending section 41-1092.01, Arizona Revised Statutes; relating to video 
and cable providers. This new law limits how cities and towns regulate video and cable 
service providers. Per the new law, cities and towns were required to establish a standard 
form for Uniform Video Service License Agreement containing an application and affidavit 
by July 1, 2019. The Town of Florence adopted this form at the Town Council meeting on 
June 26th, 2019. Video and cable service providers are required to file a Uniform Video 
License Agreement in order to conduct business within the right-of-way and town limits. 
 
A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence would not issue a uniform video service license to FibAire 
Communications, LLC d/b/a AireBeam. 
 
 
 



Subject:  Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service License – FibAire Communications, LLC d/b/a 
AireBeam   
Meeting Date:  04/20/2020 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Town of Florence will issue a uniform video service license to FibAire 
Communications, LLC d/b/a AireBeam 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Applicant pays all lawful fees and charges imposed by the Town of Florence as provided 
in Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 9-1414(B)(4) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Application and Affidavit for Uniform Video Service License 













1 

Model Uniform Video Service License Agreement 
Date of Issuance: April 20, 2020 

This Uniform Video Service License Agreement (“License”) is made on the date of 
issuance hereof by and between the Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal corporation 
(“Licensor”) and  FibAire Communication, LLC. d/b/aAireBeam “Licensee”). 

WHEREAS, Licensee has filed a completed application and affidavit under Title 9, 
Chapter 13, Arizona Revised Statutes (“Licensing Statute”), for Licensor to issue a 
Uniform Video Service License to Licensee; and  

WHEREAS, Licensee is authorized under the laws of the State of Arizona to 
provide Cable Service. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are 
incorporated herein and the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Parties agree as 
follows: 

1. Definitions.  Capitalized terms that are not defined herein have the same
meaning prescribed in the Licensing Statute, including A.R.S. Section 9-1401.   

2. Licensee Information.  Attached hereto and are incorporated herein by 
this reference: 

2.1 The name of Licensee, its type of entity and its jurisdiction of 
formation. 

2.2 The address and telephone number of Licensee’s principal place of 
business. 

2.3 The names, titles and addresses of Licensee’s principal executive 
officers or general partners. 

2.4 The names, titles, telephone and fax numbers and email addresses 
of any persons authorized to represent Licensee before Licensor. 

3. Grant of License.  Under the Licensing Statute, Licensor hereby issues to
Licensee, and Licensee hereby accepts from Licensor, a nonexclusive Uniform Video 
Service License. 

3.1 The Service Area in which this License authorizes Licensee t o  
provide Video Service in the area described on Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

3.2. Licensor grants Licensee authority in the delivery of Video Service to 
use and occupy, and to construct and operate a Video Service Network in, 
Highways in the Service Area in compliance with the Licensing Statue and this 
License .   



2 

3.3 Licensee may operate and maintain facilities installed in the 
Highways in the Service Area to provide services pursuant to and subject to all the 
following:  A.R.S. Section 9-584 and A.R.S. Title 9, Chapter 5. 

4. Licensee Compliance with Law.  Licensee shall comply with and be subject

to: 

4.1 All valid and enforceable federal and state laws. 

4.2 All generally applicable, nondiscriminatory Local Laws, including 
highway use, mapping, insurance, performance bonds, security fund, 
indemnification, letter of credit or similar requirements that apply to the use and 
occupation of any highway and that conform to the Licensing Statute.  

4.3 All public, education and government programming requirements of 
the Licensing Statute.   

4.4 All customer service rules of the Federal Communications 
Commission under 47 Code of Federal Regulations Section 76.309(c) applicable 
to Cable Operators. 

4.5 All consumer privacy requirements of 47 United States Code 
Section 551 applicable to Cable Operators. 

5. Commencement of Video Service; Revocation.  If Licensee is an incumbent
cable operator, Licensee shall begin to provide Video Services under this License on the 
date of issuance of this license.  If Licensee is not an incumbent cable operator, Licensee 
shall provide video service to at least one subscriber within each service area authorized 
by this License not later than twenty-four months after the date of issuance of this License.  
Failure of a non-incumbent cable operator to provide video service to at least one 
subscriber within each service area as set forth above shall result in revocation of this 
License unless the Licensee establishes to the satisfaction of the City/Town that such 
failure was for reasons beyond the Licensee’s control. 

6. License Fee.  Licensee is required to pay the License Fees required under
the Licensing Statute and all other lawful fees, taxes and charges imposed by Licensor. 
The initial rate of the License Fee shall be [five (5)] percent. 

7. Federal Filing Requirement.  Licensee is required to file in a timely manner
with the Federal Communications Commission all forms required by that agency before 
Licensee offers Video Service in the Service Area, including the forms required by 47 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 76.1801. 

8. Term.  The term of this License is ten (10) years and shall begin on the date
of issuance. 



3 

9. Compliance with Law.  Licensor and Licensee agree that they are subject
to and must comply with the Licensing Statute.  This License is subject to A.R.S. 
Section 38-511. 

Licensor 

Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal 
corporation 

By:  
  Its:__________________________ 
Date:  

ATTEST: 

Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney 

Licensee 

FibAire Communication, LLC. 
d/b/aAireBeam 

By : 
 Its: ________________________________ 
Date:  

STATE OF ____________________ ) 
) ss. 

County of ____________________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day 
of , 20__ by _________, the _____________., a ________ on 
behalf of Licensee. 

(Seal) 
Notary Public 













Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 1 of 20 

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 
FEBRUARY 3, 2020, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy 
Hughes 
Absent:  Bill Hawkins 
     
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Chris Reid, Florence Resident, said the Chamber Awards Banquet was a beautiful event and 
it was great to see the partnership in action.  She was surprised to have received the Honorary 
Town Historian Award and thanked everyone for the recognition.    
 
PRESENTATIONS 
 
2019 Annual Report from the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce. 
 
Mr. Roger Biede, Executive Director, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, provided a 
presentation, in which he outlined the following: 
 
- McFarland State Park – A New Beginning 

• 2019 Statistical Data 
 Visitations:  9,347 
 Donations: $1695 
 Gift Shop: $21,481 

- Visitation 
• 2018 
 1st Quarter   5,808 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 2 of 20 

 2nd Quarter  1,161 
 3rd Quarter      605 
 4th Quarter   1,827 

          Total  9,501 
• 2019 
 1st Quarter   4,754 
 2nd Quarter  1,885 
 3rd Quarter      771 
 4th Quarter   1,937 

          Total  9,347 
- Donations 

• 2018 
 1st Quarter   1,115 
 2nd Quarter     389 
 3rd Quarter      173 
 4th Quarter      446 

          Total  1,838 
• 2019 
 1st Quarter      918 
 2nd Quarter     313 
 3rd Quarter      111 
 4th Quarter      352 

           Total 1,695 
- Gift Shop 

• 2018 
 1st Quarter   11,762 
 2nd Quarter    2,939 
 3rd Quarter     1,756 
 4th Quarter     5,379 

           Total 21,836 
• 2019 
 1st Quarter      9,625 
 2nd Quarter     4,276 
 3rd Quarter      1,756 
 4th Quarter      5,375 

            Total 21,481 
 
Mr. Biede stated that they are working with the State Parks to obtain new displays and items which 
will increase attendance.  He stated that the Chamber held a number of events and talks in 2019.  
They also participated in the 75th Anniversary of the GI Bill.  They are pushing social media and 
connections to nearby towns a lot more to draw people to Florence.   
 
Mr. Biede stated that they complied with the contract by: 
- Remained open as outlined in the contract 
- Maintained a newsstand outside of the facility 
- Advertising on the Chamber website, Facebook and other social media sites 
- Had distributed newsletters and flyers throughout Pinal County 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 3 of 20 

Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if they are open during the 3rd Friday events.  
 
Mr. Biede stated that have not been open, but rather assisted them so as not to take away from 
the businesses.; however, they will start opening in March.   
 
Mr. Biede stated that they are planning several things at McFarland State Park in 2020 such as: 
- Having the State Parks and the McFarland family open their archives and allow the Chamber 

to display things that have not been displayed before.   
- Use the court room at McFarland State Park as an exhibit for some things like “Art Behind 

Bars”.    
• The Chamber has partnered with the Town and has purchased approximately $4,000 in 

supplies for inmates to produce art.  Their artwork will be displayed in various places 
throughout Town for two weeks and then be sold at the Arts and Culture Festival in April.  
A portion of the proceeds will go the Florence Unified School District, State Parks and a 
charity.  

- Poetry reading, storytelling and music festival for Jr. Parada 
- Candidate Forum  
- Lunch and Learns with Arizona State University 
- Cowboy Festival 
- 2021 Community Award has been added to the calendar 
 
Councilmember Larsen commended Mr. Biede and the Chamber for all that they have 
accomplished and for the relationship that they have with the Town.   
 

2020 Legislative Agenda Presentation  
 

Mr. Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, provided a presentation, in which he outlined the 
following:  

 
- Goal 

• To adopt a legislative agenda that allows the Town of Florence to effectively focus our 
legislative efforts on Council priorities. 

- 2020 Legislature 
• Second Regular Session of the 54th Legislative Session began January 13, 2020. 
 Session should last about 100 days (~April 22, 2020) 
 Likely to be shorter than last year’s session, as the Senate, House, and Governor 

have all released their budget proposals.  And it’s an election year, so they want to 
go campaign! 

 Senate President Karen Fann (R -Prescott) 
 Speaker of the House Rusty Bowers (R -Mesa) 

- Florence Representatives 
• District 8 Senator Frank Pratt (R –Casa Grande) 
• Representative T.J. Shope (R –Coolidge) 
• Representative David Cook (R –Globe) 

- Proposed Legislative Agenda 
• Protect/Enhance Existing Revenue Sources 
 Highway User Revenue Fund/State-Shared Revenues 
 Financial hit was not anticipated 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 4 of 20 

• Oppose Cost Shifting onto Cities and Towns 
 Repealing vehicle licensing fee 
 Cost to cover DPS operations 

• Preserve Local Control 
 Incorporation/Land Use Planning/Business Licensing 

• Fight for the Prison Industry 
 Prisoners should be counted where they live at the Prison 
 Support pay increases for correctional officers 
 Minimize financial/economic impacts of closure of ASPC-F 

• Seek budget allocations for the Heritage Fund 
 Has passed out of Committee favorably 
 Anticipate $10 million dollars statewide 

• Create Economic Development Tools Tax Increment Financing / AZ Commerce 
Authority/Vacant Building Registry 
 House Bill 2705 
 Bill has created a registry of any vacant buildings   

• Enhance Tourism AZ Office of Tourism 
• Public Services 
 Protect surface and ground water/reclaimed & remediated 
 What is happening in the Active Management Areas and how will it affect the 

Town 
- Implementation Plan 

• Staff will: 
 Advocate in support of this agenda at all levels. 
 Coordinate activities with the Arizona League of Cities and Towns. 
 Communicate with Council on issues affecting Florence and Pinal County through 

Legislative Updates in Council agenda packets. 
 Enlist assistance of individual members of Council to initiate targeted strategies, when 

warranted. 
 Seek additional Council direction as needed. 
 Attended CAG Legislative Day 
 Three senators were present  

• Staff has/will 
 Advocate in support of this agenda at all levels. 
 Coordinate activities with the Arizona League of Cities and Towns. 
 Communicate with Council on issues affecting Florence and Pinal County through 

Legislative Updates in Council agenda packets. 
 Enlist assistance of individual members of Council to initiate targeted strategies, when 

warranted. 
 Seek additional Council direction as needed. 

- State Budget (FY21) 
• Arizona’s largest budget in history ($12.3 billion) 
• Governor is proposing over $1B in new spending 
 One-time deposit of $25 million to the State “Rainy Day Fund” 
 Anticipate 10% of the budget annually 

 $608 million in new money for K-12 education 
 Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) remains fully funded 
 $10 million of funding for competitive Rural Broadband grants 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 5 of 20 

 Keeps the Department of Revenue assessment at $20.8 million 
 Town of Florence paid $69,178 to Arizona Department of Revenue in FY20. 

• Proposes 10% increase in salaries for Department of Corrections employees across the 
state. 

• Funds soil and drainage studies of the Superstition Vistas Planning Area in Pinal County. 
• $28 million to accelerate expansion of the I-10 between Tucson and Phoenix. 

- Important Bills 
• HB 2053 –Executive Sessions; Security Plans (Rep. Espinoza) 
 Would allow cities to hold executive sessions to discuss building safety or 

cybersecurity plans behind closed doors. 
• HB 2305 –Private Trash Providers (Rep. Townsend) 
 Would prohibit cities from criminally enforcing any requirements for residents to 

maintain solid waste services through a private provider. 
• SB 1160/1161 –Cancer Presumption (Sen. Carter/Boyer) 
 All forms of cancer contracted by firefighters and/or peace officers would be 

presumed to have been contracted on the job. Town insurance would be required to 
cover costs associated with its treatment. 

 How would the Town fund this? 
 Some complications that need to be addressed  

• HB 2313 –Fire Codes for Restaurants that hold more than 300 people (Rep. Grantham) 
 Cities would be prohibited from adopting any codes that would require the installation 

of fire sprinklers in an existing building, unless the owner undertakes a major 
renovation or remodel. 

 Fire sprinklers can protect firefighters from being exposed to cancer causing elements. 
• HB 2053 –Executive Sessions; Security Plans (Rep. Espinoza) 
 Would allow cities to hold executive sessions to discuss building safety or 

cybersecurity plans behind closed doors. 
• HB 2705 –Vacant; abandoned buildings; ordinances (Rep. Shope)  
 Bill for Florence and other rural communities. Allows for registry for vacant and 

abandoned buildings. 
 Florence will testify.  

• •HB 2615 –Prohibit cities from requiring vacant buildings from maintaining utilities (Rep. 
Espinoza) 
 Would prohibit cities from requiring vacant properties to maintain utilities. 

• •HB 2551 –Appropriation; state parks; heritage fund (Rep. Osborne) 
 Would provide the Heritage Fund with $10 million in FY21. 

• •SB 1280 –Pensions; unfunded liability; expenditure limits (Sen. Mesnard) 
 Would remove payments to PSPRS/ASRS unfunded liabilities from consideration in 

the calculation of the Town’s expenditure limitation. 
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 

a. Authorization to purchase one 2020 Chevy Crew Cab, from Courtesy Chevrolet, for 
the Water Division of Public Works, in an amount not to exceed $37,940.41.   

 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 6 of 20 

b. Authorization to suspend the Town of Florence Special Event Vendor Permit rules 
for the Road to Country Thunder event to allow the Greater Florence Chamber of 
Commerce to coordinate vendors and collect vendor fees as a fundraiser during the 
Road to Country Thunder event on April 11, 2020. 
 

c. Authorization to enter into Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2019-03, allowing the 
Florence Police Department to participate in the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission   Grant No. DC-20-010 and accept the reimbursement of employee 
overtime costs and related expenses.   
 

d. Approval of a Settlement Agreement and General Release in the matter of the 
Association of Florence Firefighters, International Association of Firefighters Local 
4512 versus the Town of Florence.  

 
e. Approval of accepting the register of demands ending December 31, 2019, in the 

amount of $3,349,618.12. 
 

On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written, with the exception of Item 7c and 7d.  
 

c. Authorization to enter into Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2019-03, allowing the 
Florence Police Department to participate in the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission   Grant No. DC-20-010 and accept the reimbursement of employee 
overtime costs and related expenses. 

 
Councilmember Wall asked Mr. Bruce Walls, Police Chief, to clarify the vote request for this item.   
 
Mr. Bruce Walls, Police Chief, stated that the Police Department has participated with the Pinal 
County Narcotics Task Force for several years.  It has allowed for the reduction in criminal activity 
as well as to keep drugs out of the schools.  A Florence Police Officer has been on this team for 
several years and the request is to allow for this partnership to continue.  He clarified that the RCA 
had the vote requests reversed.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
enter into Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2019-03, allowing the Florence Police Department 
to participate in the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission   Grant No. DC-20-010 and accept the 
reimbursement of employee overtime costs and related expenses.   
 

d. Approval of a Settlement Agreement and General Release in the matter of the 
Association of Florence Firefighters, International Association of Firefighters Local 
4512 versus the Town of Florence.  

 
Mayor Walter recused herself from this item.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson asked the Town Attorney to explain the settlement.  
 
Mr. Cliff Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that the issue was a dispute pertaining to social security 
taxes that were withheld.  There was a change in the opinion of the Social Security Administration 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 7 of 20 

in 2013 and some refunds were processed.  The Local Firefighters Association felt that they had 
a position to pursue additional funds from the Town and filed a lawsuit.  The Town was victorious 
and sought attorney’s fees in the amount of $68,587.  He stated to resolve the case between the 
parties, their representative signed off on the settlement agreement that they would agree to not 
challenge the court’s dismissal of the lawsuit if the Town agrees to not pursue the attorney’s fees.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes and carried (5-0; Mayor 
Walter recused herself) to approve a Settlement Agreement and General Release in the matter 
of the Association of Florence Firefighters, International Association of Firefighters Local 4512 
versus the Town of Florence.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Ordinance No. 687-20:  

Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 687-20 by title only.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
30.45 ENTITLED ACTION TAKEN BY ORDINANCE. First reading held on January 21, 2020.  

Mr. Mattice stated that this is a cleanup item which will remove the requirement of an ordinance 
to come before Council when the Town leases property.  This will also help expedite the process 
and the change in the Code will be consistent with the practice.    

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Ordinance No. 687-20. 

NEW BUSINESS  

Resolution No. 1731-20:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1731-20 by title only.  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY ARIZONA, SUPPORTING 
PENDING LEGISLATION REGARDING ABSENTEE LANDLORDS OF VACANT AND 
ABANDONED BUILDINGS; AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION BY THE MAYOR OF 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS.  
 
Mr. Larry Harmer, Community Development Director, stated that in March 2019, Town staff began 
to enhance code compliance activities throughout the Town, especially in the Old Town Florence 
area.  One of the most vexing issues faced in the Old Town is vacant and abandoned buildings 
owned by absentee property owners.  While researching this issue, staff found that in other states, 
legislation existed that requires owners of vacant and abandoned buildings to register the 
buildings with the local jurisdiction. In addition, these owners would be required to make certain 
minimal improvements to stabilize the structures and actively pursue rehabilitation to make the 
buildings safe and viable for reuse.  Staff began pursuing such an option for the Town by initiating 
a draft of an ordinance that places similar requirements in effect for properties within the Town.  
Unfortunately, there is currently no enabling legislation in Arizona to support such an ordinance. 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 8 of 20 

Mr. Harmer state that while making presentations at the June 2019 Historic Preservation 
Conference and at the 2019 Rural Policy Forum, staff introduced this concept to other 
practitioners with positive results.  With Town staff’s input, the Arizona League of Cities and Towns 
has drafted legislation to be introduced at the upcoming legislative session that will specifically 
address this issue. 
 
Mr. Harmer stated that he sat on a panel with the Mayor of Superior Arizona and brought up this 
concept.  The Mayor then discussed this concept with the League’s Legislative Committee and 
he, along with Mr. Bitter have been working on the language for the legislation.   
 
Mr. Harmer stated that House Bill 2705, is sponsored by Representative TJ Shope, and has a 
number of supporting sponsors.  They have been asked to testify with rural caucus on February 
18, 2020. 
 
Mr. Harmer stated that the resolution before you tonight would be to support HB 2705.  Staff would 
use the resolution to show support at the Capitol and provide copies to appropriate legislators.  
The League is also requesting resolutions from other communities to show their support.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that many communities have expressed the hardships that they are 
experiencing due to the vacant and abandoned buildings in their communities.  It also negatively 
impacts their growth.  She is glad to see that all of the communities have been heard and it has 
gone up to legislative action.   
 
Mr. Harmer stated that the larger communities are looking at this favorably as well.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired about enforcement with regards to abandoned buildings that are 
owned by companies that mailing addresses can’t be found.   
 
Mr. Harmer explained that the goal is for this resolution to assist with enforcement.  The legislation 
will allow cities and towns to develop a registry of contact people for the properties as well as 
provide legal status for the cities and towns to go after the owners for a variety of reasons, such 
as stabilization of the building.  The owners or trust will need to respond. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if the Town has any recourse if the owner does not respond.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that if the owner does not respond, the Town may charge a fee, and the fee is 
progressive.  He stated that it will take some effort to get the owners to register; however, the 
Town will now have the legislative backing.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to adopt 
Resolution No. 1731-20. 
 
Ordinance No. 688-20:   
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 688-20 by title only.  



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 9 of 20 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA RESCINDING ORDINANCE NO. 
678-19 AND ADOPTING THE LOCAL ALTERNATIVE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION FOR THE 
TOWN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 AT $45,251,331.  
 
Ms. Rebecca Jimenez, Finance Director, stated that in 2018, the Town adopted a permanent base 
adjustment for alternative limitation.  She stated that the League of Arizona Cities and Towns 
assisted the Town, along with the constitution provisions that stated that after you adopt the 
permanent base adjustment, it is effective for the next budget year.  Staff mentioned to the Town’s 
auditor that the Town was going to be on the permanent base adjustment, and was asked by the 
auditor to research it further because there was another community which had done the same 
thing, and the Auditor General made them adhere to Home Rule. 
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that they contacted the Auditor General and found that the Town is still under 
Home Rule until it expires.  When the Town adopted its expenditure limitation for this fiscal year, 
it was based on the permanent base adjustment, which has several exclusions; home rule does 
not.   
 
Ms. Jimenez is requesting that Council rescind Ordinance No. 678-19 and adopt the actual Home 
Rule limitation.  This will not affect the actual budget.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Ordinance No. 688-20. 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to accept the Sanitation Rate Study and adopt by 
motion, a Notice of Intention to increase sanitation rates and fees as provided in the 
Sanitation Rate Study and set a Public Hearing for March 16, 2020. (Rebecca Jimenez) 
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the Town has been depleting the Sanitation Fund Balance and it is 
important to review the rates.  Staff did a detailed analysis and compared the costs to determine 
how this occurred.  Staff had a utility rate consultant review the detailed analysis for validation 
and to provide suggestions.   
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the Town contracted with Mr. John Trujillo, Circonomy Solutions for an 
overview of their analysis.    
 
Mr. John Trujillo, Principal of Circonomy Solutions, provided a presentation in which he outlined 
the following: 
 
- Introduction 

• Circonomy Solutions hired to complete a rate design study of the Town’s residential refuse 
collection operations (Study).  

• Scope 
 The purpose of this Study was to determine the total cost of providing solid waste 

services and design rates to safeguard the financial integrity of the program. 
 This report provides a discussion of the methodology utilized to conduct the analysis, 

the cost of providing services and recommended rates to be adopted for solid waste 
services.  

- Program Attributes and Performance 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 10 of 20 

• Garbage 
• Recycling 
• Bulk Trash 
• Free Disposal once a month 
• Yearly Community clean-up 
• Rental Equipment 

 
Type Fiscal Year 2020
RAD Residential (1 x week pickup) $17.33
RAD Residential (1 x week pickup) ADOC $13.17
RAD Additional container (1 x week pickup) $5.00

 
- How does the Town compare to other cities 

 
- Program Attributes and Performance 

• CIP and Equipment 

 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 11 of 20 

- Rate Review Process 
• Most operating expenses increase 3-4% per year; some expenses (insurance) increase at 

higher rates  
• Town contracts, personnel levels and other factors likely to remain stable but will be subject 

to modest cost increases. 
• Capital Improvement Plan used reflects review and analysis by staff. 
• Assumes a 5% yearly increase of billing units  

 
 

Test Year FY21 
Operation $65,954.00
RAD $842,966.15
Disposal $50,887.00
Transfer $112,200.00
Capital $150,000.00
Cost of Service $1,222,007.15

 
 
 
 

 
 
- Scenario 1 – Status Quo 

 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 12 of 20 

Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that when the Town stopped doing their own 
sanitation service, there remained a fund balance of approximately $1 million.  Right Away 
Disposal (RAD) maintained the Town’s fee structure to allow the Town to purchase equipment, 
administration, etc. and the fund balance has steadily decreased.  The fund will be fully depleted 
in 2023 if nothing is done.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that solid waste is an enterprise fund and are required by State law to utilize 
their rate structure to ensure that they are balanced.  The fund is losing revenue on an annual 
basis.  The account balance is being spent down.    
 
Mr. Trujillo stated that the proposed rates may cover the associated costs while maintaining the 
fund balance.  
 
- Proposed Rate Structure 
 
 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY 25
Proposed 
Rates 

$18.08 $19.08 $20.00 $20.50 $20.50 $20.50 

 
- Scenario 2 – Pay cash for capital purchases as you go 

 
 
- Scenario 3 – Debt Fund 

 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 13 of 20 

- Scenario – Comparisons 

 
- Recommendations 

• Increase Residential Fees to the following: 
 FY20 - $18.08 
 FY21 - $19.08 
 FY22 - $20.00 
 FY23 - $20.50 

• Recommend the Town maintain an ending fund balance equal to two months of operational 
expense 

• Increase Residential Fee for ADOC equal to Residential Fee 
• Increase second container to half of Residential Fee 
• Increase Commercial Fee 10% above RAD costs 
• Review Fee Forecast yearly 
• Recommend the Town consider debt funding Capital Equipment and CIP projects. 
• The RAD contract with expire by 7/1/2023. Town will need to start procurement process by 

January ‘22 so the contractor will have time to procure equipment for a start date of July 
‘23. 

 
Mayor Walter inquired about the recycling component.  She stated that the Town opted to go 
forward with the private sector for sanitation because the Town could not offer recycling and RAD 
was able to do so for half the cost.  
 
Mr. Trujillo stated that the recycling program will not be impacted.  There may be some increases; 
however, the contract only allows them to do increases based on certain limitations.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that RAD did not do an increase for the first four years and have done small 
increases last year and this year.  The Town is in close proximity to RADs recycling center that 
they can make money on the Town’s recycling.   
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 14 of 20 

Mr. Billingsley stated that there are other things that affect the rates such as supplementing the 
transfer station in the amount of $112,000 annually.  There are no revenues to augment that cost; 
however, Council felt that it was beneficial and approved the expenditure.       
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town provided transfer station services to its residents and needed 
to find someone who could continue to provide that service when the service went to the private 
sector.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town went to bid and received a very good bid from Waste 
Management and the cost decreased.  The challenge is that the dump is now closed so the costs 
increased substantially to use that transfer station.  A decision needs to be made if the Town is 
going to continue to provide that service going forward, and if so, it needs to be reflected in the 
rate structure.    
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that there were discussions about the Town and Pinal County having 
a joint transfer station and inquired what came out of those discussions.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Pinal County did a feasibility study and was found not to be financially 
viable for the benefit that the Town would receive.  Staff has continued with discussions, and most 
recently, it is suggested that everyone in this area of Pinal County would jointly bid the solid waste 
services to obtain a competitive advantage in price and include three transfer stations (San Tan 
Valley, Florence and Eloy) from whoever wins the bid.  They have drafted the documents and 
provided them to Pinal County.  Eloy, Coolidge, Florence and Pinal County have shown interest; 
and Casa Grande has shown cursory interest.  Queen Creek recently went through their own bid 
process; however, they have not awarded the bid as of yet.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has $500,000 set aside for improvements in the event that 
the Town gets the transfer station. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the initial bid with RAD was for a four-year contract, with five extensions.  
The Town is on their second extension and will be going on the third extension soon.  The Town 
will need to go out and re-bid in two years.  The Town is hoping to do the regional bid within the 
next two years in the hopes of obtaining better pricing.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired what is the Echo Station?  The cost was for $300,000 and will the 
Town recover the $300,000 for the purchase?  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the Echo Station is the property that was purchased for the Water 
Barn and where the dumpsters and recycling bins will be relocated to from Heritage Park.  He 
stated that the Town could increase the rates, pay cash for the property, or finance the purchase.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired what the $150,000 in Capital Amount is for. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the $150,000 is for half of the portion of the Echo Station.  It is being 
paid for in two fiscal years. 
 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 15 of 20 

Councilmember Wall inquired if the $65,000 is for the overhead to administer the solid waste 
program through the Finance Department. 
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that it is for anything aside from contracted service for RAD, transfers or 
capital. It will be for personnel, maintenance costs and commodities.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired which scenario were used for the proposed rate structure.   
 
Mr. Trujillo stated that Scenario 2 and Scenario 3 was used for the rate structure. 
 
Councilmember Hughes inquired what the minimum fund balance would be for Scenario 2 and 
Scenario 3.  
 
Mr. Trujillo stated that the minimum fund balance would be dependent on the year as costs will 
increase.  It could vary between $80,000 to $90,000 the first years and approximately $250,000 
by the tenth year.   
 
Councilmember Hughes inquired what the current fund balance is.  
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the fund balance is approximately $1 million not including exclusions.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired why the revenue is decreasing. 
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the revenue he is referring to is the reserve for capital items. The 
decrease is for the Echo Station.  Initially, it was projected to cost approximately $300,000 and is 
now estimated at $250,000.   
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she does not like the options presented.  She would prefer the 
fund to be self-sustaining.   
 
Ms. Jimenez explained that the use of the fund balance is because the expenditures are 
exceeding the revenues.  She stated the following items were not considered in the rate and are 
being funded with the fund balance: 
- Professional services 
- Administrative Fees 
- $500,000 for transfer station  
  
Mr. Billingsley stated that the fund balance was left specifically for capital expenditures like those 
Ms. Jimenez referred to.  He stated that the challenge is that the expenditures are exceeding the 
revenue on an annual basis.  The revenues need to be adjusted to cover the expenditures.  Mr. 
Trujillo was challenged to create rates that reflect a 5% population increase annually as well as 
having minimal rate increases in order to extend the time frame of the fund balance before it is 
fully exhausted.  It is suggested that the rates be reviewed every three years.  
 
Discussion occurred on the various scenarios and how to maintain the fund balance.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the projected rates will be for five years and then they will revisit the 
rates every three years.   



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 16 of 20 

Ms. Jimenez stated that the funds are continually being monitored.  She stated that there may be 
instances when the rates need to increase based on needs, capital purchases, etc.  There are 
several options for Council to consider:  
- Council could continue to operate status quo until the fund balance is depleted and then could 

utilize the General Fund to augment the revenue needed.   
- Council could choose to increase the rates which will provide for a positive fund balance and 

supporting the expenditures.  The rates are smooth so the customers will not see a massive 
price increase in any given year.  

- Council could eliminate capital projects.  There would be no consideration for a transfer station.  
This would provide fund balance back into the operating funds; however, the rate increases 
will still need to be implemented to extend the time frame before the fund balance is depleted.   

- Eliminate the transfer station services at Waste Management at the Ironwood Landfill.  This 
would save the customer approximately $0.93 per month.  

- Contract out billing and administrative functions of the sanitation operations (customer service 
functions and have provider provide those services).  This would save the fund approximately 
$66,000 in expenditures between direct charge, Town staff, administrative staff and the cost 
of billing.  There would also be a saving of $6,800 savings because there would not be an 
intrafund transfer.   

 
Mr. Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, stated that the current trend is that it would be 
favorable to go out for bid when the time comes.  The haulers have an advantage over 
municipalities with regards to the cost for customer service and billing as they can utilize economy-
to-scale items where municipalities cannot.  If Council chose to cease billing and customer service 
functions, there would be positive and negative impacts to the organization and to the fund.     
  
Ms. Jimenez stated they could resurrect the Sanitation Department; however, there would be a 
financial impact because you would need to purchase all of the containers, vehicles, and staff 
would need to be added to the fund as an expenditure.  This would be a significant capital outlay 
cost and will result in a significant increase in rates, which could be approximately $30.00 per 
month.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the rate prior to utilizing privatization was approximately $30.00 per 
month.  The Town has done a good thing with providing recycling services and decreasing the 
monthly cost.  The fund balance was approximately $1.6 million with the intent of starting its own 
transfer station.  This is still the plan; however, she is concerned about utilizing the fund balance 
but wants to ensure that services are not impacted.  
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the last option would be to outsource the sanitation service and contract 
with an entity that will do everything.  The only thing the Town would get is the franchise fee and 
that would go to the General Fund.   
 
Mayor Walter inquired about the status of the transfer station.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that there are no plans at this time for a transfer station.  It would rely on the 
regional agreement for it to take place.  The Town’s portion would cost approximately $500,000.  
The cost to build a transfer station would be $2.5 million to $3 million.   If built, the Town may 
receive some revenue from the transfer station.   
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 17 of 20 

Councilmember Larsen inquired why is the Town involved in the service if it would cost less to 
outsource the service.  
 
Mr. Bitter stated that the employees understand the streets or the sensitivities of the residents 
where a person working for the private company may not.  It is important to have local customer 
services.  Some providers’ customer service offices are out of state.  If the Town were to elect for 
RAD to provide the customer service, it changes the contract and may require a new bid.   
 
Discussion occurred on the nuisances of the contract and the differences between when the 
contract was first entered into and now, such as population, etc. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the current contract that is in place is a great contract.  The intent of the 
Council at that time was to utilize the fund balance to enhance services, build new infrastructure 
and vehicles.  The intent was not to fund a transfer station; and the Council is now adapting to the 
changes of time.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that the current rate not only includes the payment for RAD which is $13.00 
monthly, but also includes a $4.00 per month charge for the landfill and the rental truck program.  
The customer pays $95 for the Truck Rental Program; however, the cost to dump can vary 
between $200 and $300 and the Sanitation Fund absorbs the difference. 
 
Councilmember Larsen expressed her concern of having a consultant review the rates on an 
annual basis.  She stated as a rate payer she would rather pay the small increase than having to 
pay for a consultant to come and verify the rates. She wants to ensure that the customers maintain 
the service that they are accustomed to.  
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that her preference would be to continue with RAD for two 
additional years and then go out for bid when the time comes.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson suggested that those who disconnect their sanitation service be required 
to turn in their trash cans.  The records indicate that the Town paid approximately $12,000 for 
those who utilized service even though they discontinued service.  
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that it is difficult to pick up the containers because the customers lock them 
up in their garages.  She stated that they are working with Waste Management to rectify the 
situation.   
 
Discussion occurred on various ways to stop the leakage.  RAD is providing new technology by 
installing cameras and tablets on the trucks to provide the drivers information of open/closed 
accounts so they know who they can provide services to.  The Town is also working with Epcor 
(Johnson Utilities) who will provide the Town with information on who is starting/stopping service.  
 
Councilmember Cordes suggested that the Town charge the customer for cans that are not 
returned when they shut off service.  She suggested that the customer be required to pay the 
actual cost for the roll off dumping fees and not just $95.   
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 18 of 20 

Ms. Jimenez stated that the cans belong to RAD and not the Town.  She stated there are several 
challenges in trying to bill a customer for the cans because many of them are renters.  There are 
also personnel restrictions.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired about the ADOC rates for the dumpsters which are less than most 
and is now being proposed to increase them to the proposed rate for all others.  She inquired if 
they have recycling.   
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that the ADOC housing complex has dumpsters for their residents and the 
proposed fee of $18.08 per resident.   
 
Mr. Bitter stated that they can utilize the recycling containers at Heritage Park; however, they only 
have trash service on site.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the rates could be in whole dollars.   
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that they will make the rates whole dollars and no cents.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
accept the Sanitation Rate Study and adopt by motion, a Notice of Intention to increase sanitation 
rates and fees as provided in the Sanitation Rate Study and set a Public Hearing for March 16, 
2020. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
There was no report.  
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Development 
Community Services 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 

 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
Councilmember Wall offered her apologies for not attending the joint HDAC/Council meeting.  She 
watched the video and was impressed with Ms. Lanning’s presentation.  She hopes to continue 
to interact with Ms. Lanning and utilize her services.  



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 19 of 20 

Councilmember Wall stated that the Town received a grant for Little League Park improvements 
from the Arizona Diamondbacks.  
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that even though the Town did not 
receive the main grant, the Town received notification that the Kendrick Family (Diamondback 
owners) will pay for renovations to the Little League Park.  They did a site visit and were impressed 
and thought it had potential for renovations.  The renovations will be done in the fall, followed by 
a dedication.  The Kendrick Family will make the formal announcement at a later date.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that they are painting a mural of the Pinal County Historical Museum.  
They have partnered with a muralist who is doing the mural.  The muralist is writing a book about 
his murals and will be used as a guidebook to travel to those towns.   
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that Ms. Lanning is an asset and hopes that the Town will ork with 
her regarding the downtown area.  She apologized to everyone for not attending the 
HDAC/Council meeting.  She congratulated the FHS Cheers for going to Nationals.  You can 
support them by having dinner at La Cantina.  A portion of the proceeds will go to the FHS Cheer 
Squad.  
 
Councilmember Cordes attended the HDAC/Council meeting and felt that it was beneficial.  She 
also participated in the Make a Difference Day and assisted at the rodeo grounds.  They also 
assisted a resident with weeds at their home.  She went to the POWWOW event and asked that 
the POWWOW not be referred to as a Farmer’s Market.   
 
Councilmember Cordes attended the Chamber Awards Assembly and they sold out.  It was a 
great event and everyone is looking forward to next year’s event.   
 
Councilmember Larsen asked that if the Town utilizes Ms. Lanning’s services, that she spend 
more time with staff, review policies, changes made, etc. so that there is an accurate description 
of things that need to be changed.   
 
Councilmember Larsen appreciates that the Town is continuing with the Make A Difference Day.  
She invited the public to the many events taking place in Town.  She noted that there is art hanging 
in the community center and is excited to see the artwork. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson concurred with the Council’s comments.   
 
Mayor Walter invited everyone to the local events.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:04 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2020 
Page 20 of 20 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on February 3, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a 
quorum was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 

 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 1 of 12 

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 
FEBRUARY 18, 2020, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 
LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL:  
 
Present:  Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy    
                Hughes 
Absent:   Bill Hawkins 
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Mr. Arthur Wilkerson, Anthem K-8 Teacher, stated that he teaches history, government and social 
studies.  He would like to recognize Roberto Riveles, who is an Anthem 8th grade student.  He is 
trying to achieve his Eagle Scout, in which he opted to attend the Council meeting for his 
community event.    
 
Ms. Cathy Adams, Florence Resident, Boardmember Pinal County Historical Societyrecognized 
Mr. Biede and the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce for an outstanding car show.  She 
stated that the car show grows every year.  She thanked Fire Chief Strayer and the Department 
for having the refurbished fire truck in the show.     
 
Ms. Adams stated that the Board also participated in the Home Tour and had over 400 people visit 
the museum.  Randy Helm, the “Horse Whisperer” presented at the museum at 10:00 am and 
people were lined up to see him as early at 9:00 am and stayed for most of the day. 
 
Ms. Adams stated that they are having a mural painted on the south wall of the museum.  The 
murals will welcome the visitors.  The mural is part of a children’s story book.  There will be 
approximately 40 murals, across Arizona and the murals will correlate with the children’s book.  
The point of the book is to encourage tourism.  Nearby communities taking part in the project are 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 12 

Queen Valley, Miami and Superior and they, along with Florence, will be four consecutive pages 
of the book.   
 
Ms. Adams stated that they are forming partnerships in the community, such as Arizona 
Department of Corrections.  They are restoring the fire truck.  They have also had the Chamber 
run their tours for the ADOC Admin offices, which is a fundraiser for the Museum.   
 
Ms. Adams stated that they are also participating in the 3rd Fridays on Main event.  She noted that 
the museum is now offering a formal program with the Greater Florence Women’s Club as well.   
 
Ms. Stephanie Joyner, Executive Director for Pinal County Historical Society (PCHS), stated in 
honor of International Women’s Day, will be honoring women with a special exhibit titled “Cradle 
to Grave”, The Evolution of Women 1880s -1950s.  PCHS Museum celebrates womanhood with a 
special exhibition of 19th and 20th century fashion and accessories throughout the life, from 
childhood to the coming of age, adulthood and end of life.  Explore how fashion shapes women’s 
identity and how womanhood has evolved or remained the same.  Many of the items have been 
rarely seen and you will be amazed at their quality, and how small women used to be.  She stated 
that the exhibit will be from March 8 -15, 2020.   
 
Ms. Catherine Kitchell, Chairman, Greater Florence Women’s Club, stated that the board has five 
members.  Within their Articles of Incorporation, their mission is to serve the community.  She 
provided a brief history of the Women’s Club and stated that they have been serving the community 
for 123 years. They will be assisting the PCHS Museum’s exhibit by providing clothing for their 
exhibit.  They also do several fundraisers and the money is filtered back into the community such 
as providing scholarships for our youth.   
 
Mr. Mike Shoppell, Florence Resident, encouraged everyone to participate in the POWWOW, 
which provides up to 70 pounds of fruits and vegetables for $12.00.  All the fruits and vegetables 
are fresh.  The event is held at the Community Center.   
 
Mr. Richard Biede, Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce, invited everyone to the “Third Fridays 
on Main” event, in which they will recognize the Florence High School Cheerleaders, who won 
State for the third time in a row and finished Nationals, where one of the groups finished 2nd.   
 
ADJOURN TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6- 0) to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1.  
 
Discussion and possible approval of a Professional Services Agreement with Stifel, 
Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (“Stifel”), to serve as Financial Advisor for the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1 for a variety of potential future bond financings and 
related services.  
 
Ms. Rebecca Jimenez, District Treasurer, stated that the District Financial Advisor performs a 
variety of duties such as assisting with bonding issues and the feasibility study.  The Town has 
worked with Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. since the 1990s and have been instrumental with the 
bonding issues, specifically, within the CFD area.   



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 12 

On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to approve 
a Professional Services Agreement with Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (“Stifel”), to serve as 
Financial Advisor for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 for a variety of potential 
future bond financings and related services.  
 
Discussion and possible action to approve Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 
1 January 21, 2020 Special Meeting minutes. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Cordes, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 January 21, 2020 Special Meeting 
minutes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUINITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO 1. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1. 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO 2. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2.  
 
Discussion and possible approval of a Professional Services Agreement with Stifel, 
Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (“Stifel”), to serve as Financial Advisor for the Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 2 for a variety of potential future bond financings and 
related services. (Rebecca Jimenez) 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve a Professional Services Agreement with Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc. (“Stifel”), to 
serve as Financial Advisor for the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 for a variety of 
potential future bond financings and related services. 
 
Discussion and possible action to approve Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No.2 
January 21, 2020 Special Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No.2 January 21, 2020 Special Meeting 
minutes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO 2. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to adjourn 
from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2. 
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Public hearing to receive public comments on proposed increase to water and wastewater 
rates and fees.  
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 12 

Ms. Rebecca Jimenez, Finance Director, stated that the Town is required to have a public hearing 
on the proposed water and wastewater rates and fees for public comment. She stated that there 
will be another opportunity for public comments on February 21, 2020 at 4:00 pm.  This item will 
be presented to Council for consideration in March.   
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There being no comments, Mayor Walter closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Recognition of the 35th Annual Historic Home Tour Committee.  
 
Ms. Alison Feliz, Recreation Programmer, stated that the committee began meeting in October 
2019 for this event. The Town has been fortunate to have the same members sit on the committee, 
which has helped with the planning and execution of the event.  There were approximately 781 
paid guests; however, this does not include those who attended the Assumption of the Blessed 
Virgin Mary Parish Festival or those just walking around enjoying the community.    There were 
approximately 120 volunteers who assisted with the event.  The committee members for the 35th 
Annual Historic Home Tour are Lynn Smith, Maricela Benitez, Barbara Kelly, Roger Biede and 
Chris Reid.  
 
Mayor Walter thanked the Committee for all of the time and effort.  
 
Ms. Maricela Benitez, Town employee and Committee Member, stated that this is her second year 
on the committee.  She thanked the committee members and Ms. Feliz for helping put on a great 
event.  
 
Introduction and recognition of the Town of Florence’s Community Emergency Response 
Team Class of 2020.  
 
Mr. Dave Strayer, Fire Chief, stated that the program is funded from a FEMA grant and in 
partnership with Pinal County.  This program has exceeded all expectations and have assisted in 
many events. The program continues to evolve.    He introduced the Town of Florence’s 
Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) Class of 2020.  They had 23 participates this 
year.   
 
Chief Strayer stated that this is the 2nd class to complete this training and join Florence’s CERT.  
The Community Emergency Response Team Program educates volunteers about disaster 
preparedness for the hazards that may impact their area and trains them in basic disaster response 
skills, such as fire safety, light search and rescue, team organization, and disaster medical 
operations.  CERT offers a consistent, nationwide approach to volunteer training and organization 
that professional responders can rely on during disaster situations, which allows them to focus on 
more complex tasks.  Through CERT, the capabilities to prepare for, respond to and recover from 
disasters is built and enhanced. 
 
Chief Strayer stated that the CERT leaders are Ms. Barb Elliott, Mr. Mike Sherm and Mr. Donovan 
Elliott. 
Ms. Barb Elliott, CERT Leader, works with Pinal County Emergency Management, stated that it 
has been a great working relationship with the Town.  Because of Florence, Coolidge and Casa 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 5 of 12 

Grande want to start a CERT Team.  She stated that the trainers volunteer their time to help 
everyone be better prepared for their community.   
 
Mr. Mike Scherm, Florence Firefighter and CERT Leader, stated that he it has been a rewarding 
opportunity to work with the individuals on the Team.  Some of the uniqueness of Florence’s team 
is that they have the ability to run two assignments at the same time.  They also have a Rehab 
truck and it was deployed seven times for various events.  The vehicle went to Eloy went they had 
a 72-hour power outage to hand out ice.  They also have the Pinal County trailer that assist with 
any type of disaster aid.    
 
Mr. Scherm stated that the 2020 members are: John Compton, Dan Danser, Reena Danser, Mike 
Evans, Judy Evans, Jill Griffith, Jim Hansen, Mary Hansen, Mary James. Kelly Keith, Mary 
Lindsey, Ted Macek, Rita Manzi, Clifford McGinnis, Diane Morris, Mark Nedza, Mike Runice, 
Marianne Sage, Cassandra Scherm, Bill Scott, Kathy Sichling, John Styers, Jim Viere and Greg 
Waterman.  There are a total of six couples (husband/wife) that are part of the CERT Team.   

 
Mr. Scherm stated that Mr. and Mrs. Hansen moved here from Oregon and were already part of 
the CERT team in Oregon.  They are also members of the Ham Radio Operator Program and have 
offered to put on a class to do HAM radio operations.  
 
Mr. Evans had previously made a plaque for the Fire Department.  He modified the plaque to add 
the word CERT to it and presented it to Chief Strayer.    
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 

a. Approval of a Professional Services Agreement for Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Inc., 
to serve as the Financial Advisor for the Town of Florence for a variety of potential 
future bond financings and related services. (Rebecca Jimenez)  
 

b. Resolution No. 1733-20:  

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1733-20 by title only.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
DECLARING AS A PUBLIC RECORD CERTAIN TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND USAGE” FILED WITH THE TOWN 
CLERK AND ENTITLED “CHAPTER 150: DEVELOPMENT CODE, ADMINISTRATION AND 
PROCEDURES SECTIONS 150.000 TO 150.019” AND “PART 1. GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
SECTIONS 150.080 AND 150.081”.  (Lisa Garcia) 

c. Authorization to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with Pinal County for 
provision of service by the Pinal County Elections and Recorders Department. (Lisa 
Garcia) 
 

d. Approval of the January 6, January 13, and January 21, 2020 Town Council Meeting 
minutes. 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 6 of 12 

e. Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 
1. April 11, April 18, April 28, May 30, June 21, and July 5, 2017 Board of Appeals 

Meeting minutes. 
2. December 18, 2019 and January 13, 2020 Historic District Advisory Commission 

Meeting minutes.  
3. November 14, 2019 Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Meeting minutes.  

 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written with the exception of Item 11b.  
 

b. Resolution No. 1733-20: Adoption of  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, DECLARING AS A PUBLIC RECORD 
CERTAIN TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TITLE XV “LAND USAGE” FILED WITH THE TOWN CLERK AND 
ENTITLED “CHAPTER 150: DEVELOPMENT CODE, ADMINISTRATION AND 
PROCEDURES SECTIONS 150.000 TO 150.019” AND “PART 1. GENERAL 
PROVISIONS, SECTIONS 150.080 AND 150.081”.  (Lisa Garcia) 

Councilmember Wall asked for a summary of the changes.   
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that the request is to declare the 
document a public record and not for the changes at this time.  The Town’s consultant, Dana 
Burkhart, has worked on the Code and has presented it to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
She explained the process of adopting an ordinance and the associated costs for publishing. She 
is requesting that the document be adopted as a public record so that it can be heard in the future.  
She clarified that the Council is not adopting the code.  Mr. Burkhart will come before Council in 
March to explain this in detail. There will also be a public hearing.  It will have two readings and 
will require 30 days for adoption.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) adopt 
resolution No. 1733-20, declaring as a public record certain text amendments to the Town of 
Florence Code of Ordinances Title XV “Land Usage” filed with the Town Clerk and entitled 
“Chapter 150: Development Code Administration and Procedures Sections 150.000 to 150.019” 
and “part 1. General Provisions, section 150.080 and 150.081”. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  

Ordinance No. 690-20: first reading of  AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES BY STRIKING SECTIONS 32.030, 32.032, 32.033, 32.120, 32.121, 32.121, 
32.200, 32.201, 32.202 ELIMINATING  THE PARKS AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD, 
THE LIBRARY ADVISORY BOARD, THE ARTS AND CULTURE BOARD, AND THE 
FLORENCE YOUTH COMMISSION AND ESTABLISHING THE COMMUNITY SERVICES 
ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERSHIP SECTION 32.085 ESTABLISHED 32.086, POWERS AND 
DUTIES  SECTION 32.087 AND MEETING SECTION 32.015.   

Ms. Garcia stated that at the January 13, 2020 Work Session, Council authorized staff to proceed 
with consolidating boards and commissions that advise the Town Council and Community 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 7 of 12 

Services Director.  Adoption of the ordinance would mean that the Parks and Recreation Board, 
Library Advisory Board, Arts and Culture Commission and Youth Advisory Board would be 
dissolved.  The Florence Teen Council (FTC) would develop elected positions within the 
membership, who will serve as the Board of the FTC and attend leadership functions for the Town 
of Florence.  Interviews will be held for those who have applied.   

Ms. Garcia stated that the newly created Community Services Board will be a nine-member 
board, three of which may reside within the planning boundary.  Members who term is current 
will be asked to serve on the newly created Community Services Advisory Board but be assigned 
new expiration dates to allow for staggering of terms. They will each be contacted to see who 
would like to retain their seat and then we would come before Council to appoint the members 
under the new commission.  Currently, there is one vacancy and applications are being accepted.   

Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that though he likes the different boards, 
the new board will more sufficient and effective.  Expanding the members to include members 
from outside of the Town and planning area will enhance the expertise of those on the board.   

Ms. Garcia stated that per Mayor Walter’s request, Section J, which reads “Organize and promote 
a healthy living initiative for adults and youth, including nutritious diets and appropriate exercise 
habits” was included in the ordinance.  This is part of the P.O.W.W.O.W. initiative that Council 
had requested as well.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that this will allow for greater participation.  
  
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of establishing an ad hoc committee titled the Florence 
Strategic Plan Advisory Committee, and assigning the following members: Roger Biede, 
Harold Christ, Peter Koulouris, Henry Padilla, Mike Shoppell, and Betty Wheeler.  

Ms. Garcia stated that this item was discussed at the work session.  This Ad Hoc committee will 
consist of nine members to review strategic events.  The Town is currently accepting applications 
and have two applications on file.  Council has the authority to specify the number of members it 
would like if they wish to have more than nine or any other changes that it wishes. 

Mayor Walter expressed her appreciation to the members and feel that Council can do a better 
job through establishing this committee and ensuring that the Town is following the Strategic Plan 
and meeting the outlined goals.  

Ms. Garcia asked that the Council follow the process, established by ordinance, for appointments 
of boards.    

Councilmember Hughes inquired about the terms and how often they would meet.  

Ms. Garcia stated that the Strategic Plan is from 2017 – 2022 and will serve through 2022.  In 
2021, staff will ask Council as how they would like to proceed.  She stated that they would meet 
as needed.   

Councilmember Hughes inquired about meetings because the previous committee expressed 
concern about not meeting after the Strategic Plan was adopted.  



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 8 of 12 

Ms. Garcia explained that they were an Ad Hoc Committee and the Committee was dissolved 
once the Strategic Plan was adopted.  This is why Council needed to re-appoint the committee.    

Councilmember Wall asked that they include members from Parkside and the Five Parks area, if 
they do not have representation from there. 

Councilmember Cordes stated that she is concerned about time constraints to attend these 
meetings as well as the other board/commission meetings that they are on. 

Ms. Garcia stated that if a member misses more than three meetings, staff can bring the request 
to remove the individual from the committee before Council.  Council can elect to change the 
number of meetings that they can miss.  

Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if each member was contacted and accepted the invitation to be 
part of the committee. 

Ms. Garcia stated that each of the individuals were contacted and accepted the invitation.  

On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) 
approve establishing an ad hoc committee titled the Florence Strategic Plan Advisory Committee, 
and assigning the following members: Roger Biede, Harold Christ, Peter Koulouris, Henry Padilla, 
Mike Shoppell, and Betty Wheeler.   

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to correct the date for a public hearing on an increase 
of Sanitation rates and fees from March 16, 2020 to April 20, 2020, to be in compliance with 
Statutory Law.  

Ms. Jimenez stated that she came before Council asking for a public hearing on March 16th for 
the sanitation rates.  The same rules do not apply to sanitation as they do for water and 
wastewater; and she must comply to the 60-day notification.  The notice has been posted on the 
Town’s website with the corrected dates.  She is requesting that the public hearing be set for April 
20, 2020.       

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the correct the date for a public hearing on an increase of Sanitation rates and fees from 
March 16, 2020 to April 20, 2020, to be in compliance with Statutory Law.  

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of a Professional Services Agreement with the James 
Vincent Group (JVG), to conduct a Certificate of Necessity Feasibility Study for Ambulance 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $30,000. (David Strayer) 

Mayor Walter tabled item 12d to a future meeting.  She stated that this is going through the 
legislature, and dependent on the outcome, will be depend on how the Town will proceed.   

LEGISLATIVE REPORT 
 
Mr. Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, discussed the following bills: 
 HB2825 

• Eliminate any requirement for Certificate of Necessity  
 No need for Town to go through with expense of conducting a feasibility study if the 

requirement is eliminated.  



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 9 of 12 

 HB2521 
• Appropriations for the Heritage Fund 
• Is in the House Appropriation Committee  
• Town signed into support the bill 

 HB2705 
• Pertains to vacant and abandoned properties 
• Town of Florence Bill 
• Passed through the House Government Committee in 8-3 vote 
• Will now go to the Rules, followed by going to the entire House and then to the Senate 

 There are a total of 1692 bills  
• 899 bills in the House 
• 682 bills in the Senate 
• 111 resolutions 

 Link of the video from House Appropriations Committee is available on the Town’s website. 
• Pertains to discussion regarding the possible closure of the prison in Florence 
 Costs to close vs. cost to keep it open 
 $50,000,000 cost per year to close the prison   
 Beds that will be needed to move inmates to move to private prison 
 Florence is having discussions to the impacts it will have to Florence  

 
Councilmember Cordes inquired about the employment of personnel who are not officers and 
what will happen to their jobs. She inquired if they have considered what they will do with the 
building once it is empty.  
 
Mr. Bitter stated that they answer the question towards the end of the video.  Some administrative 
positions will be shifted to Phoenix.  Many of those individuals will be able to work at the Eyman 
Complex.   He stated that the execution chamber may remain active, which will limit future use for 
the remainder of the building; however, there is still not a definitive answer as to what will happen 
with the building.   
 
Discussion occurred regarding that the cost to actually close the building.  There was also 
discussion on where the inmates would be placed such as Pinal County Jail.  Jails would need to 
do structural and capital upgrades in order to receive inmates from the prisons, as defined and 
codified in the Arizona Administrative Code.  The Arizona Administrative Code requires that they 
have education programming, recreational programming and even a certain number of televisions 
per inmates.    
 
Mr. Bitter explained that the contracts to house the inmates in county jails and/or private prisons 
may cost approximately $50,000,000 more annually.   
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if the legislature has any power to stop the closure from happening.  
 
Mr. Bitter explained that they are the ones who approve the budget and if the RFP for those 
contracts is not approved then it cannot move forward because the State will not have any money 
in which to do so.  
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 10 of 12 

Councilmember Cordes inquired about SB1446, which is the Senate Education Committee that 
would require all school IDs to have the suicide prevention awareness on the back of them.  She 
signed in and provided her support for the bill.     
 
Mr. Bitter stated that it is the Rules Committee and explained the remaining process for it to move 
forward.   
 MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
There was no report.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
Councilmember Wall stated that the Chamber of Commerce and Destination Florence Visitor 
Guide and Business Directory is beautiful.  She appreciates all the work that they put into creating 
it.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that she attended the Home Tour and was impressed with the tour 
and the volunteers.  The highlight for her was to hear Mr. Helm at the museum.  They brought 
three inmates who shared what the program means to them and their future once they are 
released from prison.  They discussed how the program has changed them.  
 
Councilmember Wall thanked Mr. Billingsley and Vice-Mayor Anderson for the summary provided 
regarding the Growing Water Smart workshop.  The information was eye-opening in terms of what 
Florence has in the terms of water resources.   
 
Councilmember Wall would like to see more restrooms in the downtown area.  This would alleviate 
the requirement of small businesses on Main Street from having ADA restrooms in their buildings.  
They would be able to utilize the Town’s restrooms because they would be in close proximity.  
This would also help economic development in the downtown area.  
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that the car show was a great event. She was impressed with the 
number of cars that were there.  
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that she was impressed with the car show.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she volunteered at the event and was only able to see the 
cars that were in front of the Silver King. She worked during the Home Tour and it was a great 
event.  She met a lot people that came to visit the Town and were not aware of the Home Tour 
and were able to do the tour.  She invited everyone to come to the 3rd Fridays on Main event this 
Friday.  They will be recognizing the Cheer Squad and asked them to come out to support them.  
The Florence Unified School District had many athletes that have had successes this year.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson thanked Mr. Billingsley for inviting the Council to the Growing Water Smart 
Workshop.  The workshops offered were very informative.  There were many recommendations 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 11 of 12 

provided to the Arizona Department of Water Resources.  He enjoyed the car show and the Home 
Tour.  He and wife were ambassadors and learned a lot about the buildings in the downtown area.  
He also attended Mr. Helm’s talk and was impressed with him and the inmates.  The inmates did 
a fantastic job explaining the importance of the program.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town has a lot of successful events.  There is a lot of work that goes 
on behind the scenes to plan the events and ensure everyone’s safety while at the events.  She 
is proud of the athletes in the community and congratulated the Cheerleaders for representing the 
Town at Nationals.   
 
Mayor Walter invited everyone to the following events: P.O.W.W.O.W., the Tea, Fashion Show, 
Music Festival and Arts and Crafts Show. 
 
Mayor Larsen thanked Mr. Wilkerson for bringing his student to the Council.  He is a positive role 
model for the community.  
 
ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa 

County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325, 
including counterclaims. 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case 
No. 16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  

c. Discussion on possibility of purchasing land.  
d. Discussion on a pending claim arising out of the Town’s Judgement Lien affecting 

property at 79001 W. Desert Blossom Way.  
e. Discussion on the following development agreements: 

1. Project Foresight 
2. Project Trailblazer 
3. Project Whitesock 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURN FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 9:43 p.m.  
 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
February 18, 2020 
Page 12 of 12 

 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on February 18, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a 
quorum was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 1 of 9 

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, MARCH 
2, 2020, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 
N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.   
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present:  Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle  
Absent:  Bill Hawkins, Judy Hughes 
     
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the 
jurisdiction of the Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask 
staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, 
members of the Council shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call 
to the public unless the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
Ms. Sharon Gerard, Eloy Resident, stated that she is a candidate for the State House in this 
District.  She will have a Town Hall Legislative Update on March 5, 2020 at the Florence Library 
and Community Center.  She asked that you bring your concerns.  
 
Ms. Melissa Romains, Florence Resident and supervisor at the Correction Education Department, 
stated that they are working on high school accreditation and are coming on their three-year 
accreditation.  One of their criteria is that they create a local advisory board and inquired if any 
members wish to be part of their board.  
 
Mayor Walter asked that she provide the information to Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager or 
Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager.  
 
Supervisor Pete Rios, Pinal County Board of Supervisors, stated that Pinal County is doing well 
fiscally and their economic development is doing excellent.  All their revenues grew last year.  
Nikola and Lucid were two large projects that are in Pinal County.  They will be providing between 
4,000 and 5,000 jobs.  He stated that he will be running for re-election and has opposition.  He 
does not understand the closure of the prison.  His hopes that it will take years before it closes as 
Pinal County is not equipped to accept the state inmates.    He stated that Pinal County and 
Florence need to work together on the Joint Land Use Study regarding the National Guard Facility.    
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 2 of 9 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Update on the Cuen Building repairs by Tom and Lynn Smith.  
 
Mr. Tom Smith and Mrs. Lynn Smith, Florence Resident and property owners of the Cuen Building, 
stated the plans are complete and construction will begin.  The initial plan were over 10 years old 
and no longer comply with the current codes or SHPO.  They hired a new architect who has 
experience with SHPO and created the new plans.  He stated that this building holds historical 
significance.  At one point, it was a butcher shop, telephone exchange on two separate occasions 
and an attorney’s office for Mr. Fulbright and Ernest McFarland, who was a senator and Governor 
of Arizona.   
 
Mr. Smith stated that the building is worth saving and is thankful to everyone who has assisted 
him.  He explained that concrete was added to two of the walls and must now be removed which 
will cost approximately $36,000 to repair.   The center wall was a structural wall and was partially 
removed which caused the roof to sink.  The wall will be replaced with adobe.  The framework in 
the roof will remain; however, they will add support to the roof.  He stated that there are also 
wooden walls that will need to be replaced.  It appears that they can save approximately 85%-
90% of the original building.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that she is impressed with the work that is being done.  She stated that they 
have restored other buildings in Florence and the Town is grateful for all that they do for the 
community.   
 
Presentation recognizing Florence being named the Safest City in Arizona by the National 
Council for Home Safety and Security.  
 
Mr. Bruce Walls, Police Chief, stated that out of 38 cities, Florence was named the Safest City in 
Arizona for 2020 with a crime rate of 6.2 per 1,000 citizens. The second safest city had double 
the crime rate.  The Town received an award that was presented to Council.           
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 
Approval to enter into a contract with Centimark Corporation, for roof repairs at Fire Station 
#1 and the South Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility, in an amount not to exceed 
$53,682.47.  
 
Adoption of a Partial Release of the Judgment Lien insofar as it relates to the real property 
located at 7901 W. Desert Blossom Way, Florence.  
 
Approval of accepting the register of demands ending January 31, 2019, in the amount of 
$1,963,845.29.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (5-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.  
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 3 of 9 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Reaffirmation of 2020 rate increase as adopted by Council Resolution No. 1664-18: A 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE 
FEE SCHEDULE OF TERMS, RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR TOWN-OWNED WATER 
AND WASTEWATER UTILITIES.  
 
Ms. Rebecca Jimenez, Finance Director, stated that the resolution is to reaffirm the rates that 
were set forth in the 2018 Utility Rate Study.  Two public hearings were held: 
- February 18, 2020  

• No comments received 
- February 21, 2020 

• Five people attended 
 Provided general comments on the rates  
 Concerns about rate increases 
 Resolved issued that one of the attendees had on their utility account 

 
Ms. Jimenez stated that they smoothed out the rates so that there would not be a significant 
impact to the customer.   
 
The request is to reaffirm the rates and set the new rates to begin April 1, 2020.   
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (5-0) to 
reaffirmation of 2020 rate increase as adopted by Council Resolution No. 1664-18.  

 
Ordinance No. 690-20:   
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 690-20 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY STRIKING SECTIONS 32.030, 
32.032, 32.033, 32.120, 32.121, 32.200, 32.201, 32.202 ELIMINATING  THE LIBRARY 
ADVISORY BOARD, THE ARTS AND CULTURE BOARD, AND THE FLORENCE YOUTH 
COMMISSION AND BY MODIFYING THE PARKS AND RECREATIONS ADVISORY BOARD 
MEMBERSHIP SECTION 32.086, POWERS AND DUTIES  SECTION 32.087 AND MEETING 
SECTION 32.015.  
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director stated that this is the second reading.  The 
ordinance is to combine the Library Advisory Board, Arts and Culture Commission, and the Parks 
and Recreation Advisory Board into one board that will have nine members with two alternates.  
It will also allow for three members to be from the Town’s planning area, not the Town limits.  It 
will also have a liaison from the Florence Teen Council.  The new board will meet once per month.     
 
On motion of motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried 
(5-0) to adopt Ordinance No. 690-20. 
 
NEW BUSINESS  



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 4 of 9 

Resolution No. 1731-20:  

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1731-20 by title only.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, APPROVING, 
REAFFIRMING, RESTATING AND RE-ESTABLISHING THE FLORENCE DOWNTOWN 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA BOUNDARIES AND CONDITIONS OF SLUM OR BLIGHT BASED 
UPON ONGOING SUBSTANTIAL ACTIONS TAKEN TO REMOVE THE SLUM AND BLIGHT 
CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES.  

Mr. Larry Harmer, Senior Planner, stated that part of the process to update the Town of Florence 
Redevelopment Plan requires that the boundary of the plan be reaffirmed.  The current boundary 
of the Redevelopment Plan Area was established via Resolution No. 877-04.  That resolution 
included commercial and vacant properties along Main Street, most of the Historic District and 
the Territory Square Planning Area north and west of Town Hall.  The attached Resolution No. 
1731-20 demonstrates the area through mapping and legal description. 

 
Mr. Harmer stated that the Redevelopment Plan Update is currently preparing for its second Open 
House scheduled for March 12, 2020 at Town Hall in the Council Chambers.  The focus of this 
Open House will be the draft Land Use Plan.  All interested members of the public are invited.  
There will be specific invitations forwarded to participants of the first Open House and to members 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Historic District Advisory Commission and Chamber 
of Commerce Director. The meeting has been posted.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (5-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1731-20. 

Resolution No. 1734-20:  

Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1734-20 by title only.  

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
ESTABLISHING REGULAR MEETING LOCATIONS, DATES AND TIMES FOR TOWN OF 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TOWN BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS.  

Mr. Hughes stated that this establishes the meeting dates and times for the Town Council, boards 
and commissions.  This is allowing for the new Community Services Advisory Board to meet on 
the second Thursday of the month at 6:00 pm. All other meeting dates and times will remain 
status quo.   

Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if worksessions can be held away from Town Hall.  

Mayor Walter stated that Council can hold special meetings at other locations.  

On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (5-0) to 
adopt Resolution. No. 1734-20. 

First Reading of Ordinance No. 691-20:  



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 5 of 9 

Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 691-20 by title only.  

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA AMENDING 
SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 32.001 (D) TOWN BOARDS, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEES.  

Mr. Hughes stated that this is to amend the Town Code to remove the old boards and replace 
with the Community Services Advisory Board.   

Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to adopt the Public Involvement Plan for the General 
Plan Update.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that ARS §9-461.06 requires that the Town Council adopt a plan that allows 
for public outreach.  This plan was prepared based on the Town’s General Plan consultants 
defined scope and feedback they obtained from the initial Project Immersion activities held on 
January 8, 2020.  These activities included one-on-one staff interviews, a visual tour of the 
community and afternoon interactive meeting with Department Heads and staff.  As a reminder, 
our consultant, Michael Baker International, already possesses significant knowledge of the Town 
and our Planning Area through their previous work preparing our Regional Transportation Plan 
and the San Tan Valley Area Plan for Pinal County. 
 
Mr. Harmer stated that the Public Involvement Plan outlines the numerous steps that will be taken 
throughout the update process to insure comprehensive involvement by all facets of our 
community.  These steps include meetings with stakeholders, community members, elected and 
appointed officials, focus groups and community workshops.  Additional efforts will be placed 
media and digital engagement.   
 
Councilmember Wall stated that this is a very important phase of the General Plan Update.  She 
wants to ensure that they use the Next-Door website be included as well as the weekly newsletters 
to get the information out.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that they can add flyers into the utility bill.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (5-0) to adopt 
the Public Involvement Plan for the General Plan Update. 
 
LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 
 
Mr. Ben Bitter, Assistant to the Town Manager, provided an update on the following bills: 
- HB2705 

• Florence’s Bill on abandoned buildings 
• Has been stuck in the Rules Committee as they are awaiting the amendment.  
• Staff has proposed the amendment to the Realtor’s Association, and they have accepted 

the amendment.  
• This bill will be moving out of the Committee 

- HB2551 
• Heritage Fund 
• Successfully passed out of the House and moves on to the Senate. 
• Would allow for additional dollars for Heritage and Park preservation. 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 6 of 9 

• Anticipate $10,000,000 appropriation 
- Bill pertaining to Certificate of Needs and Necessity 

• Removes requirement for all communities and areas  
• Bill died in the House 
• Waiting to see if it pops up on another bill as a striker bill 

 
Councilmember Cordes inquired what amendments needed to be made with the Realtor’s 
Association.  
 
Mr. Bitter stated that some definitions were better clarified such as what constitutes vacant and 
abandoned buildings and locations.   The bill, after the amendment, is 80-90% conforming tow 
what the Town is trying to accomplish.  
 
Mayor Walter asked that Mr. Bitter provide a listing of bills that are similar to this bill so Council 
can sign in to support those bills.     
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley provided an update on relational data on single family permits and how it is tied it 
to valuation.  This has a direct impact to the Town’s economic prosperity  
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the first graphic represents Single-Family Residential Permit activity 
in Florence over the last two calendar years (2018/2019).  The permit activity has significantly 
increased.  Primary contributors to permit growth are market strength, the addition of another 
major homebuilder (DR Horton), and the addition of “infill” development in the Florence Town 
Core. 
 
Mr. Billingsley explained that the second graphic provides a representation of how that single-
family growth, coupled with other permit activity, affects the valuation of our community.  The 
January 2020 valuation includes the new Pinal County Development Services Building, permit 
valuation at $9,300,000.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated what is impressive is when you compare the permitting data to actual 
valuation being provided to the Town on a monthly basis.  Th lowest value from 2018, 2019, and 
2020 is $5 million in one month; however, two recent months the valuation increase by $20 million 
of construction.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the permits have grown 66.8% from this same time last year.       



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 7 of 9 

 
 
 

 
    
 



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 8 of 9 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS   

Community Development 
Community Services 
Courts 
Finance 
Fire 
Police 
Public Works 
 
The Department Reports were received and filed.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she attended the Spring Parade in Caliente.  She also 
attended an event at the Visitor Center where grants were being awarded and she was able to 
see raw copper, which was very impressive.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that he attended the Fashion Show at the Women’s Club.  It was a 
great event.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Women’s Club raised funds for all three high schools in the District.  
They had state and national representatives at this event as well.  It is Read Across America 
Week and many have volunteered to do so. She invited everyone to the Florence Music Festival 
and other events in our community.   
 
Councilmember Larsen thanked Mr. Hughes for his service to the Town and wished him well.  
 
Mr. Bryan Hughes, Community Services Director, stated that working with Florence for six years 
has been rewarding.  He has had many great experiences with the Town.  His staff is amazing, 
and he is fortunate to work with great employees.   
 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
- Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa 

County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325, 
including counterclaims. 

- Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case No. 
16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  



 

Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 2, 20202 
Page 9 of 9 

- Discussion or consultations regarding the Town of Florence intervention in the matter 
of the Arizona Corporation Commission’s investigation into the 2019-2020 rate case. 

- Possible discussions on government agencies and private entities involving the 
purchase, sale or lease of real property and other property related to the Town of 
Florence’s water and wastewater systems, including upgrades, expansions, contracts, 
and/or settlement discussions related thereto. 

- Discussion on possible contract negotiations with Magma  
Flood Control District.  

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (5-0) to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, carried (5-0) to adjourn 
from Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (5-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 7:26 p.m. 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on March 2, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 

 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 1 of 16 

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, MARCH 
16, 2020, AT 5:30 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 
N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.      
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,  

Judy Hughes 
Absent:   Bill Hawkins 
 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Walter called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,  

Judy Hughes 
Absent:   Bill Hawkins 
 
MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:  
 
Present: Tara Walter, John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes,  

Judy Hughes 
Absent:   Bill Hawkins 
 
ADJOURNMENT TO A JOINT EXECUTIVE SESSION WITH MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY 
FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1, MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
AND THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE.  
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 
 
Discussion or consultations regarding a Notice of Claim filed by Merrill Ranch Owner’s 
Agent, L.L.C., CMR/Casa Grande, L.L.C., Roadrunner Resorts, L.L.C. and Florence Copper, 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 2 of 16 

Inc. against Merrill Ranch Community Facilities Districts No. 1, Merrill Ranch Community 
Facilities District No. 2 and the Town of Florence. 
 
Discussion or consultation potential and threatened claims against the Town and Districts.  
 
Motioned, seconded, and carried (6-0) to adjourn to a Joint Executive Session with Merrill Ranch 
Community Facilities District No. 1, Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 and the 
Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence.  
 
Tara Walter, John Anderson (M), Karen Wall (S), Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy Hughes 
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 Executive Session.  
 
 ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 1 
MEETING. 
 
On motion of Vice-Chairman Anderson, seconded by Boardmember Wall, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 1 meeting.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Wall, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM MERRILL RANCH COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2 
MEETING. 
 
On motion of Boardmember Larsen, seconded by Boardmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Merrill Ranch Community Facilities District No. 2 meeting.  
 
ADJOURNMENT FROM THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSION AND TO 
RESUME REGULAR MEETING. 
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn from Executive Session and to resume regular meeting.  
 
MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
Mayor Walter called for a moment of silence in honor of Councilmember Bill Hawkins, who lost 
his battle to cancer on March 12, 2020.  She stated that he devoted his life to Florence, caring 
deeply about this Town and our citizens.  
 
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 3 of 16 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Walter led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the Town Council.  
Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  Individual Councilmembers may 
respond to criticism made by those commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised 
or may ask that a matter be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council 
shall not discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless the 
matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATION 
 
Public hearing to receive public comment on the Text Amendment to the Town of Florence 
Land Development Code and first reading of Ordinance 689-20: 
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 689-20 by title only.  
 
An Ordinance of the Town of Florence, Pinal County, Arizona, amending the Town of 
Florence Code of Ordinances, Title XV Land Usage, Chapter 150: Development Code, 
Administration and Procedures Sections 150.000 to 150.019 and adding Sections 150.020 
to 150.024, and relocating “Part 1. General Provisions,” Sections 150.080 to 150.081 to the 
Administration and Procedures Sections 150.020 and 150.021, respectively. The proposed 
text amendment document was declared a public record by Resolution No. 1733-20, one 
paper copy is on file in the Office of the Town Clerk, and one electronic copy is available 
on the Town of Florence website. 

 
Mr. Dana Burkhart, Consultant, stated that this is the first of two readings (second reading is 
scheduled for April 6, 2020) along with a public hearing on this proposed text amendment.   

 
Mr. Burkhart, Consultant, provided a presentation on the Development Code Text Amendment: 
Administration & Procedures, in which he outlined the following:  
 
- Why? 

• Correct code discrepancies and conflicts 
• Address statutory changes 
• No regulatory changes 
• Economic Development tool for the Town  
• Organize section to easily navigate 

- Scope 
• Correct Discrepancies 
 Redundant design review processes 
 Codify Pre-Application Conference and added Temporary Use procedures 
 Meet with applicant prior to submittal of application 
 Update terminology to be consistent 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 4 of 16 

• Update to reflect changes in statute 
 House Bill 2116 passed in 2017 – rezoning appeal 
 Arizona Revised Statute §12-1134 Claim and Diminution in Value 

o Inserted procedural language to give Town additional opportunity to appear 
regarding future claims  

o Will put Town in better situation 
• No regulatory changes 
 Decennial General Plan Update and other leading policy studies coming soon 

- General Plan/Strategic Plan 
• Master Plans: Transportation, Redevelopment, Parks and Open Space, etc. 
• Technical Codes: Development, Building, Fire, Flood Control, etc. 

- Public Review and Recommendations 
• Started process in May 2019 
• Have had 10 public meetings 
• Community meeting and draft updates available for download and comment online 
• Historic District Advisory Commission (HDAC) and Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommend approval. 
 
Mayor Walter opened the public hearing.  There be no public comments, Mayor Walter closed the 
public hearing.   
 
Census 2020 Presentation. (Jennifer Evans) 

 
Ms. Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, provided a presentation, in which she outlined the 
following: 
- How to Respond 

• Respond online, by phone, or by mail 
• Partner Questionnaire Assistance Center at the Florence Community Library - Place with 

computers and information for community members to self-respond.    
• Event-Based Questionnaire Assistance - Census Bureau and Town staff will have a 

presence at community events.       
• Highly Mobile Questionnaire Assistance - As we receive self-response data, partners and 

the Census Bureau will ensure we have questionnaire assistance in areas that are not 
seeing expected self-response.   

- Census Schedule 
• What we will send in the mail 
 March 12 – 20, 2020   

o An invitation to respond online to the 2020 Census.  Some households will also 
receive paper questionnaires.  

 March 16 – 24, 2020 
o A reminder letter 

• If you haven’t responded yet 
 March 26 – April 3, 2020 

o A reminder postcard 
 April 8 – 16, 2020 

o A reminder letter and paper questionnaire. 
 April 20 – 27, 2020 

o A final reminder postcard before we follow up in person 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 5 of 16 

- Support the Census 
• Encourage people to respond online, by phone, or by mail 
• Remind people to cooperate with census takers if they visit their home. 
• Emphasize the census is safe and secure. 
 Information is retained for 72 years 

• Reach hard-to-count populations – farmworkers, children 0-5 years, non-English speakers, 
low-income families, veterans, winter residents 

• Response Rate Challenge 
 Challenge public to increase response rate 
 Would like to see the response rate to 90% 

- More Information 
• Contact Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst, at 520-868-7549 or 

Jennifer.evans@florenceaz.gov 
• www.icount2020.info 
• www.2020census.gov 

- Count everyone…once, only once, and in the right place 
 
Mayor Walter inquired if there were as many platforms in which to respond ten years ago as there 
are now.   
 
Ms. Evans stated that they did not have as many platforms to respond as there are now.  This is 
the first time that online and phone options are available.   
 
CONSENT: All items on the consent agenda will be handled by a single vote as part of the 
consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public objects at the time 
the agenda item is called.  
 
Authorization to dispose of vehicles that are no longer needed and have outlived their 
useful life. (Rebecca Jimenez) 
 
Approval of Lantis Fireworks and Lasers contract for the 2020-2021 Fireworks Display in 
an amount not to exceed $37,000. (Alison Feliz) 
 
Approval of a Change Order for the Poston Butte Preserve Project On-Call Engineering, 
pursuant to Council approved contract with WestLand Resources, Inc., for an additional 
$2,500, increasing the total to $199,913, which is within budget for this fiscal year.  (John 
Nixon) 
 
Authorize Town staff to proceed with negotiations with the five parks communities in 
drafting a special use agreement for future development of a Town parcel for use as a 
community dog park. (John Nixon) 
 
Approval of the January 27, 2020 Town Council Meeting minutes. 
 
Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 
 
January 9, 2020 Arts and Culture Commission Meeting minutes.  
January 29, 2020 Historic District Advisory Commission Meeting minutes. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 6 of 16 

December 5, 2019 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting minutes.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
approve the Consent Agenda, as written.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Ordinance No. 691-20:  
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 691-20 by title only.  
 
Second reading and Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN 
OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 32.001 
(D) TOWN BOARDS, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEES. (Lisa Garcia) 
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager, stated that this will correct the Town Code to be 
consistent with the ordinance that was adopted at the last meeting regarding boards and 
commissions.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Ordinance No. 691-20. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval to adopt the Major General Plan Amendment Calendar 
for 2020. (Larry Harmer) 
 
Mr. Larry Harmer, Senior Planner, stated that by State Statute, each community is allowed to 
process major plan amendments once per year. The Town is doing a major update to the overall 
plan; however, that will not be completed until next year. There may be some submittals for 
properties north of the Gila River so the Town is setting a calendar for Council’s approval.   
 
Mr. Harmer stated that there is a large gap between the submittal due date and the first public 
hearing because the application is distributed to neighboring jurisdictions and agencies for a 60-
day comment period.  A sampling of these agencies includes: APS, SRP, Arizona Department of 
Water Resources, Pinal County, Central Arizona Governments, City of Coolidge, Town of Queen 
Creek, Florence Unifies School District, Arizona State Land Department, and others. The 
proposed calendar for the Major General Plan Amendment for the 2020 year is as follows: 
 
Completed Application Submittal due:    April 23, 2020 
Planning and Zoning Commission 1st Public Hearing:  August 6, 2020 
Planning and Zoning Commission 2nd Public Hearing 
and Recommendation:      September 3, 2020 
Town Council Public Hearing and Possible Action:  October 5, 2020 
 
The required Public Hearings include notifications of neighboring property owners, on-site 
advertising signs and legal advertisement in the local newspaper.  At this time, staff has had only 
one inquiry regarding this year’s process. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 7 of 16 

Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired why the Council is not provided as much time to review the 
application as the other entities.  
 
Mr. Harmer stated that the calendar is tentative.  Staff can also hold work sessions to discuss the 
applications if they are comprehensive.  The calendar sets the public hearings.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt the Major General Plan Amendment Calendar for 2020. 

 
First reading of Ordinance No. 692-20:  
 
Mayor Walter read Ordinance No. 692-20 by title only.  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCE, ARIZONA, TITLE XI BUSINESS REGULATIONS, BY 
AMENDING CHAPTER 111, SECTION 111.05 (F) OPERATIONAL REQUIREMENTS.  
 
Ms. Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk, stated that in 2018, Arizona passed a mobile 
food truck ordinance. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns did a model city code for all 
municipalities to adopt.  There was a section to allow for residential to be 250 feet.  This made it 
so mobile food trucks could not be on the streets, specifically in the downtown area because there 
are residential homes in near proximity.  It is not the intention of the Town to eliminate food trucks 
from being able to operate in our community.  Food trucks are utilized at special events.  The 
State law allows them to park in any public parking space.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that once it was brought to the Town’s attention, staff is requesting to modify 
the Code to allow for a mobile food vendor, including auxiliary generator and other related 
equipment, that projects less than 66 decibels at property line may be within 50 feet of a residential 
use. 
 
Councilmember Wall asked for clarification with regards to how Section H 1. of Sec. 111.05 
Operational Requirements will be interpreted.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that it would read: “ A residential area, a mobile food vendors shall not operate 
in an area zoned for residential use or within 50 feet of the area zoned for residential use to use, 
not property line to property line and then outline the exceptions.     
 
Councilmember Wall inquired what use-to-use means.   
 
Mr. Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney, stated that there are issues when there are separation 
requirements and zoning regulations when measuring from point A to point B.  By allowing the 
measurements to be from use-to-use, this will allow for some flexibility.       
 
Resolution No. 1735-20:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No. 1735-20 by title only.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 8 of 16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, EXERCISING 
TOWN COUNCIL’S LEGISLATIVE DISCRETION TO NOT ENFORCE OR SUSPEND 
ENFORCEMENT OF CHAPTER 111, SECTION 111.05 (F) UNTIL THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF 
ORDINANCE NO. 692-20. (Lisa Garcia) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the intent of this resolution is so that the Town will not enforce the Code 
as it is currently written until the adoption and effectiveness of Ordinance No. 692-20.   
 
On motion of Councilmember Larsen, seconded by Vice-Mayor Anderson, and carried (6-0) to 
adopt Resolution No. 1735-20. 
 
Resolution No. 1736-20:  
 
Mayor Walter read Resolution No.1736-20 by title only.   
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING 
REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE PROPERTY LEASE POLICY.  (Lisa 
Garcia/Jennifer Evans) 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that per Council’s direction, staff reviewed and modified the lease policy, 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ), Request for Proposals (RFP) and the lease.  The Policy 
Committee and Town Attorney reviewed the documents.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the following areas need clarification:  
- Page 4 of the Memorandum regarding examples and lease rates 

• Ms. Cindy Sills, Florence Realtor provided commercial lease rates 
• Staff spoke with those who rented and confirmed rate 
• Council needs to make determination on what to charge 
 $0.51 per square foot 
 Charge less than market rate because of the GPLET and charge a combined rate of 

$0.51 per square foot 
 

Ms. Garcia stated that staff is recommending that they do a Consumer Price Index (CPI) each 
year and the rates would increase if the CPI increased.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the following was done: 
- Lease was modified and there will be no utility charges for the common areas, as requested 

by Council.   
- Modified the process to make it more user-friendly.   
- Removed the language stating that the area would be used as an incubator since it is no 

longer used as such. 
- Defined the RFP process which is 30 days per State Law.   

• Two spaces will be available 
• Outlined the RFP Process 
 Use comes before Council  
 The 30-day appeal process begins once Council approves the use 
 After the 30 days has lapsed, the Town Manager can negotiate and sign off on the 

lease. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 9 of 16 

Councilmember Wall inquired about Space 4. She also inquired about the telephone changes, 
which is more than the electrical for the common area.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that Space 4 is the Brunenkant Building and their square footage will change 
because currently the lower floor (891 square feet (sq. ft.) was the only part of the building being 
leased; however, they will now include the upstairs which will be a total of 1,782 sq. ft.    
 
Discussion occurred on various leased scenarios.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the Fudge Shop has sold and will now be for-profit.  The business upstairs 
is vacating effective April 30th so there will be two spaces vacant upstairs.  
 
Ms. Garcia explained the process to fill those upstairs vacancies at the Silver King Market Place.   
 
Ms. Garcia explained that the telephone changes includes the alarm system and fire sprinkler 
system, for a total of four lines.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the electrical for the common areas is on a separate meter.  
 
Ms. Garcia explained that the common areas have a separate electrical meter from the suites.  
The water usage would be for the common restroom.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the renter pays GPLET tax on the Brunenkant Building.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that they do pay GPLET tax.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the lease is listed as a modified gross lease basis, which 
means that it is inclusive of all costs (i.e. rent, taxes, insurances, utilities, etc.); however, this is 
not how the leases are and the tenants pay separate for each of those items.  
 
Discussion occurred on the verbiage and it will be changed to modified triple net rather than 
modified gross lease.  She inquired if the tenants contribute to the cost of the phone line. 
 
Ms. Garcia stated that she will change the verbiage to modified triple net lease and explained 
that the tenants do not pay for the phone line.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the GPLET should be included in their lease rate.  If they are 
charged the going rate along with the GPLET tax, this may raise the cost more than the market 
can handle.  She suggested that the rates be combined to what the going rate is.  During the 
summer months (May – August) she suggested that some type of relief, such as a 30% decrease 
in rent be offered to the tenants because business is seasonal in Florence.  She suggested the 
rate be decreased if they maintain the minimum of hours open as outlined in the lease; otherwise 
they may choose to close early but would forego the discount.   
 
Ms. Garcia stated that staff can incorporate Councilmember Cordes’ suggestions should Council 
agree.  She asked if Council is in agreement with Scenario Two which is for a combined rate of 
$0.51 sq. ft. She stated that staff will develop a summer program with the modified rates for those 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 10 of 16 

businesses who will remain open for the 32 hours per week.  Those who choose not to remain 
open will not receive the discounted rate.    
      
Councilmember Larsen inquired how this will be managed.  It may appear that the Town is micro-
managing the businesses.  
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that the tenant needs to notify the landlord if they are making 
changes to their hours of operation.  
 
Discussion occurred on various scenarios with regards to closing early or opening late.   
 
Ms. Garcia asked that Council modify the motion to allow for staff to advertise the RFP so that 
they can start the process to fill the two vacancies.  
 
Councilmember Wall stated the discount would result in the square footage to be approximately 
$0.24 sq. ft.   
 
Councilmember Hughes inquired if the ingress/egress issue has been resolved.  
 
Ms. Garcia stated that the issue will be resolved no later than June 2020.  
 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Cordes, and carried (6-0) to 
advertise for RFPs and to have staff bring back to Council options on the discussed changes to 
the Lease Policy.   
 

WORK SESSION ON STREET LIGHT IMPROVEMENT ORDINANCE AND POLICY (Chris 
Salas) 
 
Mr. Chris Salas, Public Works Director, provided a presentation, in which he outlined the 
following:  
 
- Definition 

• A Street Light Improvement District (SLID) is a neighborhood partnership and very common 
practice in which property owners in a defined area agree to pay the costs to operate and 
maintain their immediate area’s streetlights through a property tax. 

- Other communities that have SLID’s 
• All new developments in the City of Surprise require a SLID for streetlights on collector or 

local roadways. 
• The City of Apache Junction utilizes a special district mechanism to fund the installation 

and energy costs of streetlights placed in residential subdivisions. 
• Maricopa County - A Street Lighting Improvement District (SLID) may be formed for the 

sole purpose of paying for the energy to power streetlights on the public streets and parks. 
The SLID provides the means for purchasing energy for lighting public streets and parks. 
The SLID also provides a mechanism to split these energy costs among all property owners 
in the SLID. 

• The City of Scottsdale’s streetlight improvement districts were established beginning in 
1971 to allow taxpayers residing in the benefiting area to pay for the operation of the 
streetlights. The City currently has 355 streetlight improvement districts formed by petition 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 11 of 16 

of the property owners for the sole purpose of purchasing electricity for the lighting of public 
streets. 

• Buckeye - All new development is subject to the implementation of a Streetlight 
Improvement District (SLID) in accordance with Town of Buckeye Ordinance 43-05 as 
found in Chapter 20, Article 20-15-1 of Town Code and in Resolution No. 109-12. 

• Queen Creek - The Town is the administrator of over 100 Street Light Improvement 
Districts (SLIDs) at the time of budget development. The fund receives revenues through 
an assessment on secondary property tax that pays for the electricity consumption in the 
districts.  

• Showlow 
• Litchfield Park 
• Gilbert 
• Peoria 

- New SLID’s forthcoming 
• Each new sub-division is required to form a SLID before the Final Plat is recorded. 
• Mesquite Trails has already submitted their application  
• Many, many more to come 

 

 
 
- Use of HURF for streetlights 

• Previously asked, ‘Is still an opportunity to determine how many streetlights could be paid 
by the HURF fund in the Anthem area so that the residents will not have to pay for those 
streetlights.  The lights would be the ones in the arterial roadways as well as density lights. 

• Response – The State law covering the use of HURF doesn’t delineate to this level. Several 
communities pay both the lights on the arterial streets as well as the lights interior to the 
sub-division.  

- HURF Revenues – Gas Tax 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 12 of 16 

• Arizona gas taxes were last increased in 1991 
• Cars are more fuel-efficient reducing total revenue per mile driven 
• Tires pressures have increased, causing the roads to see more of the loads and increase 

wear to the roads 
• Electric and hybrid vehicles cause similar wear to the roads but don’t contribute as much 

to the revenue stream to repair the roads 
• Public Works Street Departments across the nation, including at the State and Federal 

level, have been asked to do the same with less for a long time 
• House Bill 2899 aims to increase gas $.06 per year over the next three years 
• House Bill 2899 aims to increase registration fees for electric vehicles 

- HURF Revenues – Prison closing 
• Highway Users Revenue Fund (HURF) – Decreases from $2,028,423 in FY20 to 

$1,752,019. This is an annual loss of $276,404 to the HURF/Street Maintenance Fund 
• Loss of Pinal County Transportation Excise Tax (TET) Revenues – Decreases from 

$1,274,910 in FY20 to $1,110,121. This is an annual loss of $164,789 to the HURF/Street 
Maintenance Fund  

• Total revenue reduction of $441,193 
- Conclusion 

• Revenue streams continue to decrease 
• The streets CIP is not fully funded based on the improvements needed for Hunt Highway 

both in terms of maintenance and widening 
• Paying for streetlights out of HURF will mean less money available for maintaining the 

streets, the primary purpose of HURF 
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that though she feels that the SLIDs should be paid for by the 
Town, it would be irresponsible to request so, specifically with the anticipated reduction in HURF 
revenues.   
 
Mr. Salas explained that HURF and TET funds are used for salaries.  The various completed 
projects have reduced patch repairs and crack sealing as well as materials used.  One of his 
concerns is how to find funds to widen Hunt Highway and to maintain the interior lanes because 
the road is used as a main highway.  The City of Mesa has a separate tax that is earmarked for 
maintaining their roads.   
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the cost to install the streetlights included in the bonding.  She 
inquired if Mesquite Trails will have a Community Facilities District (CFD).  
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, explained that the Streetlight Improvement District (SLID) 
does not pay for the light poles but rather for the maintenance of the infrastructure and for the 
monthly usage.  He stated that developers have the option to establish a CFD; however, Mesquite 
Trails have not discussed the option of forming a CFD at this time. 
 
Mr. Salas explained how CFDs work.  
 
Councilmember Wall inquired if the SLIDS are mandated.  
 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 13 of 16 

Mr. Billingsley stated that with the exception of Sunrise Estates Phase II, the Code mandates that 
all new development form SLIDs.  They are not mandated to form a SLID because their plat was 
approved as a rural dark sky subdivision many years ago.   
 
Discussion occurred on various scenarios regarding when SLIDS would be required.   
 
Mr. Salas stated that developers can do more than what is required. 
 

MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Police Department is going to offer a Youth Citizens Police Academy 
for 6th – 8th grade students.  Topics will include:   
- Crime Scene Investigations 
- Fingerprinting 
- Dangerous Drugs Education 
- Firearms Safety  
- Equipment Demos  
- Internet Safety 
- Alcohol Abuse Education 
- Crime Reporting 
- Team Building 
- Working with the Town’s K-9 Officer. 
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the intent is to have a one-week course in June.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Police Chief Wall was elected as President of the Pinal County Law 
Enforcement Agency.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that today, the Town released two press releases regarding COVID-19 and 
the coronavirus.  The development that the Town has received is continually changing and staff 
is taking this information very seriously.  Staff is in constant contact with the State, County, and 
local medical professionals.  A State of Emergency has been declared at a Federal and State 
Level.  The Pinal County Department of Public Health has activated their Incident Command 
System.  Mountain Vista Medical Center is the operator of Florence Anthem Hospital and have 
vowed to provide the best community support possible.  He said in light of this pandemic, the 
Town is: 

- The Town is cancelling all special events through the end of April.  This will include 
POWWOW, Eggstravaganza, Road to Country Thunder, and Movie in the Park. 

- Town representatives have also reached out to the organizers of Country Thunder, 
Gallagher Softball Tournament, Third Fridays on Main, and the upcoming Rail 3 Ranch 
Rodeo to make them aware of the CDC guidance. 

- The Town is cancelling all Recreation, Active Adult Center, and Library programming until 
Monday March 30th. 

- Due to the nature of the activities performed at the Fitness Center, and our customer base, 
the Fitness Center is being closed until further notice. 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 14 of 16 

- The Give A Lift Program is being suspended at this time, as the program depends on 
volunteer drivers. 

- The Medical Equipment Loan Program will continue to be offered but patrons will need to 
contact Community Services staff at (520) 868-7040 to arrange for pickup and drop-off. 

- Due to the updated CDC guidelines, and the nature of program participants, closing the 
Florence Active Adult Center is imperative.  Getting seniors meals is a top priority, therefore 
we will continue the Meals on Wheels Program and are working to provide meals for pickup 
at the Active Adult Center, instead of hosting meals at the facility. 

- Consistent with the Maricopa County Library District and several Pinal County Libraries, the 
Florence Library will be closed on Wednesday March 18th, until further notice. 

- All room reservations at the Florence Community Center and facility rentals are suspended 
at this time. 

- All Town parks will remain open. Park restrooms will remain open and will receive cleaning 
and supply service as resources allow. 

- There are currently no plans to suspend the Intersession and After School Programs 
sponsored by the Town.  Protocols are being put in place and partnerships are being 
researched to be sure that we can meet the community need. 

- Suspended all volunteer programs because all of the Town’s volunteers fall into the high-risk 
categories under the CDC requirements. 

- Municipal Court will remain open 
 
Mr. Billingsley asked that citizens that are not feeling well or are showing symptoms of the 
coronavirus not utilize the Fire Department as they have no ability to test or treat at this site.  
Florence Anthem Hospital is putting protocols in place for COVID-19.  The Poison Control System 
is now a COVID-19 Call Center and asked that they be contacted if you are having symptoms.     
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Florence Town Council has the ability to hold remote meetings 
through technological means and if it takes place, it may limit public involvement.  This would 
mean that there would be no public hearings.  All board, commission and task force meetings and 
all meetings have been cancelled until further notice.      
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town is working with multiple agencies to ensure that accurate 
information is disseminated to the public so that people can protect themselves and their families.  
Town departments have an established protocol and are using the appropriate precautionary 
measures to ensure to have an established protocol in providing service to our residents and 
businesses. 
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson inquired if there are any businesses that are closed due to the pandemic.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated he does not know of any businesses closing due to the pandemic.  
 

CALL TO THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no public comments.  
 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 15 of 16 

Councilmember Wall stated that McDonald’s will only offer drive-thru service effective 
immediately.  L & B Cantina is open for business and offers take out service.  
 
Councilmember Larsen stated that she appreciates the public notices that are being sent out and 
the Council is doing its best to protect its residents.   
 
Councilmember Cordes stated that she attended the 7th Annual Caliente Car Show.  She dressed 
as a clown.  There were 75 cars that were in attendance.  She also attended the music festival; 
unfortunately, the attendance was low.  Everyone made sure to wash their hands and to 
continually sanitize.   She also extended her condolences to the Hawkins family.  
 
Vice Mayor Anderson stated that he would miss Councilmember Hawkins’ friendship.  He was a 
good friend and he is saddened by his passing.   
 
Mayor Walter stated that the attendance was low for the Music Festival.  She stated that many 
people are electing to distance themselves.  She asked that you limit your shopping to what you 
need so that there will be enough for everyone.  She also asked that you check on others to 
ensure that everyone is doing well.   
 
Councilmember Hughes stated that she is saddened with Councilmember Hawkins passing.   

 
ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
For the purposes of discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the 
public body and/or legal counsel pursuant to A.R.S. Sections 38-431.03 (A)(3), (A)(4) and 
(A)(7) to consider its position and instruct its representatives and/or attorneys regarding: 

 
a. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in Maricopa 

County Superior Court:  Town of Florence v. Florence Copper, Inc. CV2015-000325, 
including counterclaims. 

b. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding Arizona Department of 
Environmental Quality proceedings, related to Water Quality Appeals Board Case 
No. 16-002, including appellate proceedings to reviewing courts.  

c. Town’s position and instruct its attorneys regarding pending litigation in the U.S. 
District Court for the District of Arizona: (Case No. CV-14-01304-PHX-DMF) Walt 
Hunter and Jarris A.H. Varnrobinson Von Zombie v. Town of Florence, et al. 

d. Town’s position on purchasing, leasing and or selling land.  
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to adjourn to 
Executive Session.  

 
ADJOURNMENT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn to Executive Session.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 



Florence Town Council Meeting Minutes 
March 16, 2020 
Page 16 of 16 

On motion of Councilmember Cordes, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 8:27 p.m.  
 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on March 16, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 1 of 6  

MINUTES OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 18, 2020, AT 4:00 P.M., IN THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL 
CHAMBERS, LOCATED AT 775 N. MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA.     
   
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Walter called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
Present: Tara Walter 
Telephonically: John Anderson, Karen Wall, Kristen Larsen, Michelle Cordes, Judy Hughes 
     
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of the Town of Florence declaring a local emergency.  
 
Mr. Brent Billingsley, Town Manager, stated that he, along with Mayor Walter and Fire Chief David 
Strayer attended the Pinal County Board of Supervisor’s Meeting today in which they discussed 
several items pertaining to the COVID 19.  He stated that Town staff is monitoring the situation 
around the clock.  They have also attended a variety of meetings pertaining to COVID 19 virus.  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that at the Pinal County Board of Supervisor’s Meeting, the Pinal County 
Department of Public Health Director provided a presentation in which he discussed the status of 
the virus nationally, statewide, countywide, and locally.  Other items discussed were things that 
they are emphasizing amongst Pinal County and its employees, amongst other governmental 
entities, healthcare organizations in Pinal County and advice for the public.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that the Town has set up a specific link for specific resources regarding 
COVID 19 resources on the Town’s website.   
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that following the Pinal County meeting, he has had meetings with the 
Town’s Management Team as well as the Town’s Emergency Response Team.  The things that 
Pinal County asked the Town to consider include the following, but they may not all be 
implemented at the same time, are: 
-  Implement changes to visitor policies in public areas 

• Meeting with more than 10 people will be conducted telephonically   
• Postings advising people if they feel ill or having symptoms to not enter the building and 

do business telephonically and report to a healthcare professional for assistance.  
- The doors to the Administration portion of the building will be locked and all visitors will be sent 

to the window to obtain assistance.  
- The Town is working with the Anthem Hospital with regards to CDCs recommendations 

regarding triage of patients.   
• Mountain Vista Medical Center put out a press release and he encouraged everyone to 

read it.  
- Have been asked to actively monitor health of Town employees 

• Town will implement same policies as Pinal County. 
- Monitoring of personal protective equipment (ppe) 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 6  

• Ensure that the Town has enough supplies for employees who are coming into contact with 
the public 

• Proper training on how to use equipment 
• Federal reserve of emergency equipment and supplies has been released 
 Arizona will receive supplies 

o Florence has submitted their order 
- Town is encouraging places of gatherings (church, restaurant, etc.) where 10 or more are 

gathered to practice social distancing.   
• Social distancing is a six-foot requirement between individuals.  
• Discussing ways to serve special-needs population of the Town 
• The Town is cancelling all gatherings of more than 10 people. 
 Management Team meetings will be held telephonically. 

• Certain employees are in the at-risk population 
 Working with IT Department to ensure they can telework. 

- All non-essential work travel has been cancelled. 
- Health screening of employees 

• Sending employees home and suggesting medical care if they are exhibiting symptoms 
- Considering alternate work schedules or staggering times for employees 
- Educating employees 

• Have provided information via mailers and flyers from the Human Resources Department 
regarding the virus and to have a household plan in terms of how to react and stress 
awareness. 

- Advising everyone to not have large gatherings or to travel in order to limit exposure  
 
Mr. Billingsley stated that Pinal County’s next meeting is on March 20, 2020 to consider their 
emergency declaration.  The governments in Pinal County are working together to ensure 
consistency. He noted that certain processes have been put in place to ease procurement 
requirements to free up funding and to shorten time frames for decision making regarding key 
decisions as it pertains to this pandemic.    
 
On motion of Councilmember Wall, seconded by Councilmember Larsen, and carried (6-0) to 
declare a local emergency. 
 
Emergency Proclamation issued by Mayor Walter Declaring a Local Emergency in the 
Town Florence.  
 
Mayor Walter read the proclamation into the record, which states:  
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE  
EMERGENCY PROCLAMATION  

DECLARING A LOCAL EMERGENCY IN THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 26-311 authorizes the Mayor of the Town of Florence, Arizona or her 
designee to proclaim the existence or threatened existence of a local emergency when the Town 
of Florence is affected or likely to be affected by a public calamity; and 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 6  

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Florence adopted Resolution No. 1034-
07 adopting the Town of Florence Emergency Response and Recovery Plan (the “Florence 
Emergency Response Plan”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the novel coronavirus, COVID-19, was first detected in Wuhan Town, Hubei 
Province, China in December 2019, and the Centers for Disease Control (“CDC”) considers this 
virus to be a significant public health threat that has, and continues to spread globally; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 illness 
a public health emergency of international concern and on January 31, 2020 the United States 
Secretary of Health and Human Services declared a public health emergency due to the COVID-
19 illness; and  
 
WHEREAS, on March 11, 2020, Governor of the State of Arizona, Douglas A. Ducey, determined 
that the COVID-19 outbreak presents conditions in Arizona that justified his declaration of a State 
of Emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 13, 2020, the President of the United States of America, Donald J. Trump, 
found and proclaimed that the COVID-19 outbreak in the United States constituted a national 
emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention-in an effort to control the COVID-19 
outbreak-are currently recommending social distancing, the cancellation of non-essential large 
gatherings of more than 50 people, and that individuals older than 60 years of age, and those with 
chronic medical conditions should not attend gatherings of more than 10 people; and 
 
WHEREAS,  on March 16, 2020, the President of the United States of America, Donald J. Trump, 
issued “The President’s Coronavirus Guidelines for America: 15 Days to Slow the Spread,” which 
recommends that all individuals avoid social gatherings in groups of more than 10 people; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town continues to plan and prepare for event and facility closures, modified 
staffing plans, work-from-home programs, and enhanced communications to employees to 
ensure effective continuity of operations of the Town’s government; and 
 
WHEREAS, prudence requires that precautionary measures be taken proactively due to the 
widespread nature of COVID-19 and its threat to public health, safety, and welfare as referenced 
in the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency, and that impacts from the same threaten public 
health and safety and the economic recovery of Florence; and  
 
WHEREAS, the widespread nature of COVID-19 constitutes an immediate threat to life, public 
health, safety, and welfare, and to the economic recovery of Florence; and 
 
WHEREAS, this local declaration of emergency will help ensure the economic recovery of 
Florence and mitigate the spread of COVID-19, protect the public health, and provide essential 
protections to vulnerable Florence residents, and it is reasonable and necessary to impose limited 
and temporary restrictions on certain uses in our community; and 
WHEREAS, the immediate threat of COVID-19 is widespread across the State and precautionary 
measures are necessary to curtail the imminent impact on numerous homes and businesses in 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 6  

Florence because it is a threat to the health, safety, and welfare of the general public in Florence; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the above facts give credence to the conditions of extreme peril and public health 
emergency; and the declaration of a local emergency will enable the Town of Florence to provide 
emergency resources, request additional resources and receive mutual aid from other political 
sub-divisions and entities and, thereafter, to impose all necessary regulations to preserve the 
peace and order of the Town. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED AND DECLARED as follows:  
 
Section 1.  Pursuant to the Code of the Town of Florence, Arizona (“Town Code”), Section 33.01, 
and A.R.S. Section 26-311(A), a local emergency now exists throughout the Town of Florence, 
Arizona due to the COVID-19 outbreak which presents conditions in the Town that endanger life 
and justifies this proclamation. 
 
Section 2.  Pursuant to the Town Code, Section 33.15, the Town of Florence’s Emergency 
Response Plan is hereby reaffirmed, adopted and incorporated herein by reference as if set out 
in full. 
 
Section 3.  Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 26-308, the Florence Town Manager is hereby appointed 
as the Town of Florence Local Emergency Director (“Local Emergency Director”) of all local 
emergency management programs within the Town of Florence, including the programs 
enumerated in the Florence Emergency Response Plan. 
 
Section 4.  The Local Emergency Director may make, amend and rescind orders, rules and 
regulations necessary for emergency functions but such shall not be inconsistent with orders, 
rules and regulations promulgated by the Governor of Arizona or the Mayor of the Town of 
Florence. 
 
Section 5.  The Town Manager is ordered, directed, and authorized to implement any and all 
actions necessary to carry out the intent of this Proclamation. 
 
Section 6.  During the existence of said local emergency, the powers, functions, and duties of the 
emergency organization of this Town shall be those prescribed by State Law, by Ordinances, and 
Resolutions of Town of Florence.  
 
Section 7.  Citizens are urged to cooperate with this emergency declaration and, to every degree 
possible, abide by and cooperate with the safety announcements, advisories, and restrictions 
established the community’s public safety agencies and emergency services personnel.  
 
Section 8.  Town facilities will remain open for the time being but programs, events, and activities 
that are not essential will be suspended until further notice. Further details regarding suspended 
programs, events, and activities will be forthcoming. Closures of Town facilities may occur as 
needed in the future and the Town, acting through the Local Emergency Director and/or Mayor, 
will monitor those needs on an ongoing basis. 
 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 5 of 6  

Section 9.  This Proclamation shall remain in full force and effect until amended or terminated by 
order of the Mayor of the Town of Florence. 
 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.02, as amended, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN to the general 
public that during the declared State of Emergency a possible quorum of the Florence Town 
Council may be in attendance during the periodic County Health Emergency Operations Center 
and incident debriefs, however, no formal discussion/action will be taken by members in their role 
as the Florence Town Council. 
 
PROCLAIMED, DECLARED, AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
ARIZONA THIS 18TH DAY OF MARCH 2020. 
 
Mayor Walter stated that the Town is following the guidelines put forth by the CDC, President 
Trump, and Governor Ducey.  The guidelines are recommendations and the Town is not making 
them enforceable.  She stated that she has been in contact with local businesses and some have 
made the choice to close to the public, while others have made their services available 
telephonically.  The Town is honoring the decisions of our business owners.  Many restaurants 
will remain open but will only offer take out service and some may offer delivery as well.   
 
Mayor Walter pointed out that the grocery shelves look bare; however, there is product available 
and we need to be patient while they stock the shelves.  She asked that you please patronize our 
local businesses.  
 
Mayor Walter stated that there are policies and protocols in place to ensure the safety of our 
employees and residents.   

 
CALL TO THE COUNCIL – CURRENT EVENTS ONLY  
 
Councilmember Hughes asked everyone to be safe.  
 
Vice-Mayor Anderson stated that it is important to help our local businesses.  
 
Councilmember Wall thanked everyone who has helped prepare the Town during the pandemic 
and asked that we assist our local businesses.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
On motion of Vice-Mayor Anderson, seconded by Councilmember Hughes, and carried (6-0) to 
adjourn the meeting at 4:24 pm. 
 
________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 



Town of Florence Council Meeting Minutes 
March 18, 2020 
Page 6 of 6  

I certify that the following is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Florence Town Council 
meeting held on March 18, 2020, and that the meeting was duly called to order and that a quorum 
was present. 
 
_________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
  
 
 



Subject: Resolution No. 1736-20 Property Lease Policy      Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 1 of 2 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM
8a. 

MEETING DATE: April 20, 2020   

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

STAFF PRESENTER:  Lisa Garcia, Deputy Town Manager/ 
Town Clerk and Jennifer Evans, Management Analyst  

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 1736-20 Property Lease Policy

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading
 Other 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  

 Community Vitality       Economic Prosperity    Leadership and Governance    

 Partnership and Relationships       Transportation and Infrastructure 

 Statutory      None 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 

Adoption of Resolution No. 1736-20: A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, 
PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY.   

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 

The Property Lease Policy provides guidance for leasing properties owned by the Town 
of Florence.  The Town owns the Silver King Marketplace and Brunenkant Building that 
are currently leased to commercial tenants.  The Town Council discussed the proposed 
changes to the policy topic on November 4, 2019 and March 16, 2020. Since that time 
staff has amended the policy, lease, and issued the RFP.   The RFP deadline is April 27, 
2020.  

Actions since the March 16, 2020 meeting. 
1. Policy changed to a modified triple net lease and definition added.

2. The Town Council advised staff to use a combined rate to equal $0.51.  The Town
will deduct the GPLET rate from the amount the Town receives.  Tenant would pay
GPLET to Pinal County.  The motion approving the lease contains a finding that
the lease is for a valuable public purpose or use and it states such public purpose
or use.  The adopting Resolution has been modified to include a statement of
findings.



Subject: Resolution No. 1736-20 Property Lease Policy      Meeting Date:  April 20, 2020 
Page 2 of 2 

3. Tenants will maintain standard business hours as written in the approved lease
with the Town.  Tenant must be open for business a minimum of 35 hours a week.
Tenants are required to provide advance notice if their space will not be open
during standard business hours.

4. Summer Rates:  A 10 percent incentive rate reduction on the base lease rate (does
not include utilities or GPLET) will be provided to Tenants maintaining Standard
Business Hours during summer months (June, July and August).

A VOTE OF NO WOULD MEAN: 

The existing Property Lease Policy will remain in effect. 

A VOTE OF YES WOULD MEAN: 

The Property Lease Policy will be amended as specified in the attached policy. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Not applicable 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution No. 1736-20 
Property Lease Policy 
RFP 
Map  
Memorandum 



RESOLUTION NO 1736-20 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING REVISIONS TO THE TOWN OF FLORENCE 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY.   

WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that 
the current Town of Florence Property Lease Policy is in need of revision; and 

WHEREAS, Section 14-33 of the Code of the Town of Florence and other 
applicable laws require that the Council take formal action by Resolution to declare the 
relevant document to be public record, and to approve and adopt such amendments;   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Town Council, that 
the Town of Florence hereby adopts the recommended amendments to the Town of 
Florence Property Lease Policy effective April 20, 2020. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the Council finds that leasing the Town 
facilities provides a valuable public purpose to the citizens of Florence and the 
economic viability of the Town itself.  As such Council believes a combined rate of rent 
and GPLET shall equal fair market value.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council this 20th day of April 2020. 

________________________________ 
Tara Walter, Mayor 

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

____________________________ ________________________________ 
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L.  Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 1 OF 15 

 
 
Town of Florence  

 
Section I. Purpose 
 
Provide guidance and outline procedures for all lease activities on properties owned by 
the Town of Florence. 
 
Section II. Scope 
 
The policy applies to properties owned by the Town of Florence that are not required for 
current municipal use.   
 
Section III. Responsibilities 
 

A. The Town Council is responsible for approving the use for the Leased Premises. 
 

B. The Town Manager, or designee, is responsible for all lease negotiation       
activities, lease agreement management, and lease policy administration. 

 
C. The Town Finance Department is responsible for the billing and collection of all    

rents, utilities, and late payments.  
 

D. The Town Attorney is responsible for notifying Tenant of defaults and managing 
the eviction process. 

 
E. Tenant is required to sign a statement that they have read and understand this 

policy, terms of the lease, and State Statutes associated with this policy. Tenant 
is responsible for paying all invoices and taxes on time. 

 
F. The Pinal County Treasurer receives all payments for the Government Property 

Lease Excise Tax. 
 
 
 
 

POLICY TITLE:  
 PROPERTY LEASE POLICY 

EFFECTIVE DATE:    
 

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT:   
Administration 
 

AP / RESOLUTION NO.:   
Resolution No. 1736-20 

APPROVAL:                                                        REFERENCES:   
 

 TOWN MANAGER     SIGNATURE:  _______________ 
  

 TOWN COUNCIL       DATE APPROVED:____________ 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 2 OF 15 

Section IV. Policies 
 

A. General 
 

I. The Town of Florence will lease property when it is in the best interest of the 
Town to do so. The Town will seek to maximize the value of its assets and 
lease property for the highest and best use. 

 
II. The Town will implement its leasing program in accordance with all local, 

state and federal legal requirements and in a fair and nondiscriminatory 
manner. Opportunities for leases on Town-owned properties will be made 
available to the public through the request for proposal process described 
herein. 

 
III. The Town will lease property to a Tenant for a specific purpose or use. 

Leasing for the purpose of speculation, subleasing, or assignment of leases is 
not allowed. 

 
IV.  All properties, identified as available for lease by the Town of Florence, shall 

be subject to the lease policies and procedures contained herein. These 
lease policies shall be incorporated by reference into all leases. 

 
V. The Town will lease property as allowed by A.R.S §36-1474 and A.R.S.           

§42-6201. 
 

B. Acceptable and Unacceptable Uses 
 

I. All uses and activities on properties made available for lease are subject to 
the Town General Plan, 2009 Redevelopment Plan update (as amended), 
development code and other applicable local, state, and federal laws and 
regulations. 

 
II. The Town Council may restrict specific Town properties to certain uses or 

classes of use. Such properties will be available for leasing only for such 
uses. 

 
III. Retail and restaurant uses will be given preference in ground floor spaces on 

Main Street.  
 

IV. Residential dwellings or clubs are not acceptable uses. 
 

V. Tenant may hold special events in as much as these events are within the 
confines of their regular business and are meant to increase foot traffic to the 
Tenant’s business.   

 
VI. Tenant shall not sublet or assign the lease without the Town’s prior written 

consent.  
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 3 OF 15 

VII. Tenant shall not operate business within the common areas. 
 

VIII. Tenants shall not store items in common areas.  
 

Section V. Procedures 
 

A. Requests for Proposal Procedures and Evaluation Process 
 

Pursuant to Arizona State Statutes, the Town is required to issue a public notice 
to bid for at least 30 days prior to leasing Town-owned properties in the 
redevelopment area. Exhibit A contains the State Statutes related to 
redevelopment areas or projects.    

 
I. A submitted proposal shall include:  

 
a. Applicant contact information. 

 
b. A statement of purpose for use of the building space / Leased Premises. 

 
c. Any and all requested Tenant improvements.  

 
d. Sketch of building layout for proposed use.  

 
e. Business references. 

 
f. Information and release for credit check. 

 
g. Timeline for business opening to the public. 

 
h. Comprehensive business plan that includes a detailed budget and 

financing. 
 

i. Assurance that the Tenant maintains adequate insurance coverage to 
satisfy the lease terms. 

 
j. Any other information that will establish highest and best use. 

 
II. All proposals shall be evaluated by Town staff prior to being considered by 

the Florence Town Council. 
 

III. The criteria for evaluating proposals shall include, but is not limited to the 
following: 

 
a. Highest and best use. 

 
b. Compatibility with neighboring uses and consistency with applicable land 

use regulations including the General Plan. 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 4 OF 15 

c. Comprehensive business plan. 
 

d. Experience of the applicant in the proposed business or venture. 
 

e. Financial capability or backing of the applicant including credit history, 
prior lease history, and assets that will be used to support the proposed 
business. 
 

f. Number of employees. 
 

g. Other financial impacts such as potential tax revenues, stimulation of 
related or spin-off economic development. 
 

h. Other long term social and economic development benefits. 
 

IV. Proposals deemed to have the highest and best use will be presented to 
Town Council for consideration. If the use is approved, Council will authorize 
the Town Manager to negotiate and enter into a Lease Agreement.  

  
V. Town Manager and Tenant will sign and execute agreement that shall remain 

on file with the Town Clerk.  
 

VI. Protest Procedure 
 

a. Bid protests shall be submitted in writing to:  Town Manager, Florence 
Town Hall, 775 N. Main Street, P.O. Box 2670, Florence, Arizona 85132, 
phone (520)868-7500 or (520)868-7502 (TDD Relay) within 72 hours of 
notification of award. Protests must contain at a minimum, the name, 
address, and telephone number of the protestor; the signature of the 
protester or its representative and evidence of the authority to sign; a 
detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of the protest 
including copies of relevant data; and the form of relief requested. Within 
5 business days of receipt, and after consultation with legal counsel, the 
Town Manager will respond to the protest. The Town Manager’s decision 
shall be final. 

 
B. Lease Rental Rates, Taxes, and Payments 

 
I. General Lease Rental Rates 

 
a. Properties shall be rented on a modified triple net lease basis at fair 

market rent. A lease analysis will be performed under the direction of the 
Town Manager and may include an independent consultation of an 
Arizona licensed commercial real estate appraiser and/or real estate 
broker or agent.  
 

b. Leased rental rate increases will be tied to the Consumer Price Index. 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 5 OF 15 

c. The Town may approve a lease of Town property for less than fair market 
rent only if the motion approving the lease contains a finding that the lease 
is for a valuable public purpose or use and it states such public purpose or 
use. 

 
d. Summer Rates:  A 10 percent incentive rate reduction on the base lease 

rate (does not include utilities or GPLET) will be provided to Tenants 
maintaining Standard Business Hours during summer months (June, July 
and August). 

 
 

II. A security deposit of no less than two months’ rent is paid by the Tenant upon 
approval of the lease. The deposit may be increased or decreased depending 
on the type of business, length of lease and information in the business plan. 

 
III. Utilities 

 
a. The Town of Florence will maintain accounts for electric, water, and gas 

service, as applicable. Tenants will be invoiced for utility costs on a 
monthly basis for the Tenant’s suite. 
 

b. The Tenant bears the full costs of all cable, internet, and telephone 
service, if so elected, including deposits, setup, and cancellation fees.  

 
IV. Collection of payment 

 
a. Payment of rent and utilities are due on the first day of each month even if 

the first day of the month falls on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday.  It is the 
sole responsibility of the Tenant to pay rent and utilities on the first day of 
each month.   The Town will assess a $100 late fee after the fifth day of 
the month. The Town will also assess returned check fees, pursuant to 
local laws and regulations.  
 

b. For the Tenants’ convenience, the Town allows for automatic electronic 
payments to be deducted from the Tenant’s checking account. 
 

V.  Government Property Lease Excise Tax (GPLET) 
 

a. GPLET will be assessed in accordance with A.R.S. § 42-6201 et seq. The 
Town will levy the excise tax on each prime Tenant for the use or 
occupancy of each government property improvement. Within thirty (30) 
days after entering into a lease, the Town will record a memorandum of 
lease in the Pinal County Recorder’s office, submit a copy of the lease to 
the County Treasurer, post lease agreements on the Town website; and 
submit a current link to the list of lease agreements on the Town’s website 
to the Arizona Department of Revenue. The enforcement of the tax is 
governed by Sections 545 and 590 of the Model City Tax Code. 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 6 OF 15 

b. The Government Property Lease Excise Tax is due and payable to the 
Pinal County Treasurer annually on or before December 1. The tax is 
delinquent if not paid on or before that date. The Town calculates the 
excise tax for each prime Tenant, submits a return to the County 
Treasurer, and submits a copy of the return to the Tenant. If any part of 
the tax is not paid before it comes due, interest accrues on the unpaid 
amount at the rate and in the manner prescribed by A.R.S. §42-18053 
until it is paid.  

 
C. Tenant Improvements 

 
I. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, may remodel, redecorate, or make additions, 

improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased Premises 
from time to time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant 
Improvements”), provided Tenant obtains written consent of the Town prior to 
undertaking any such Tenant Improvements.  Tenant Improvements will be 
made in a workmanlike manner, lien free, in accordance with all codes and 
utilizing good quality materials. Tenant may place and install personal 
property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary installations in and 
upon the Leased Premises and fasten the same to the Leased Premises. All 
personal property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary 
installations, whether acquired by Tenant at the commencement of the Lease 
term or placed or installed on the Leased Premises by Tenant thereafter, shall 
remain Tenant's property free and clear of any claim by Town. Tenant shall 
have the right to remove the same at any time during the term of this Lease 
but not after ten (10) days after the expiration thereof, provided that such 
removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. Any damage caused 
by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be repaired by Tenant at 
Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to reasonably repair any such damage Town 
may repair the damage and deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security 
deposit, with Tenant remaining liable for the excess, if any, over the security 
deposit. At the expiration of this Lease, at Town’s direction, Tenant shall 
remove any such personal property from the Leased Premises at Tenant’s 
sole cost and expense, repairing any damage to the Leased Premises 
occasioned thereby.  

 
II. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of 

Tenant Improvements, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached 
hereto as Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall 
obtain all certificates, permits, licenses and other authorizations of 
governmental bodies or authorities which are necessary to permit the 
construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises and shall keep the 
same in full force and effect at Tenant's cost.  

 
III. Tenant shall negotiate, let, and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of 

services, labor, and materials for the construction of Tenant Improvements on 
the Leased Premises at its sole cost and expense. All such contracts shall 
require the contracting party to guarantee performance and all workmanship 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 7 OF 15 

and materials installed by it for a period of one year following the date of 
completion of construction.  Tenant shall cause all contracts to be fully and 
completely performed in a good and workmanlike manner and lien free, all to 
the effect that the improvements shall be fully and completely constructed and 
installed in accordance with good engineering and construction practice. 
Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Improvements a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum 
be furnished guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract 
requirements and the payment of any and all subcontractors. 

 
IV. During the course of Tenant Improvements, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in 

full force and effect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum 
equal to three times the amount expended for construction of the 
improvements. All risk of loss or damage to the improvements during the 
course of construction shall be upon the Tenant with the proceeds from 
insurance thereon payable to Town.  

 
V. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully 

and completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of 
Tenant Improvements to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs 
associated therewith. Town shall be under no duty to investigate or verify 
Tenant's compliance with the provisions contained herein. Moreover, neither 
Tenant nor any third party may construe the permission granted Tenant 
hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of Town to pay for any 
improvements, alterations or repairs occasioned by Tenant.  

 
D. Duration and Conclusion of Leases 

 
I. The lease term will be negotiated by the Town Manager or designee.  Lease 

extensions will be for a minimum of one year.  
 
II. The Town and Tenant may elect to extend the initial term upon such terms 

and conditions as may be agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at 
the time of any such election; provided that Tenant gives notice of its request 
to extend the initial term no later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of 
the initial term. If Tenant does not elect to extend the initial term, the lease 
shall terminate at the end of the term and the Tenant may only occupy the 
premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-month tenancy may be 
terminated by the Town upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Tenant. The Town’s 
acceptance of rent payments after the expiration date shall not constitute a 
renewal of this Lease Agreement.  

 
III. Tenant Improvement at Conclusion of Lease 

 
a. If authorized or required by the Town Facilities Maintenance Manager, 

improvements must be removed prior to the conclusion of the lease.  The 
Town Facilities Maintenance Manager will determine and approve 
techniques for removal prior to commencement of activities. 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 8 OF 15 

 
b. Tenant is responsible for the costs associated with removing   

improvements. 
 

i. If Tenant fails to remove Tenant improvements prior to the termination 
date of the lease, Tenant shall be responsible for the costs incurred by the 
Town in removing and disposing of the improvements. 
 
ii. Unless a permanent improvement has been authorized by the Town or 

as otherwise provided in the lease, or agreed to in writing by the 
parties, the Tenant shall restore the property to the same condition it 
was in at the time the lease was executed by the Tenant. 

 
iii. Any unpaid amount owed to the Town by the Tenant requires the Town 

to follow debt collection procedures. This may include Town staff 
making collection calls, referring the debt to a collection agency, or 
requesting the Town Attorney to initiate legal action on the lease 
agreement.  

 
E. Insurance 

 
I. The Tenant must provide the Town of Florence with a copy of the insurance 

policy naming the Town, its agents, officers, officials and employees as 
additional insured.  The Tenant must have coverage of a least $1,000,000 of 
comprehensive public liability (i.e. bodily injury, broad form property damage, 
personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage) and $1,000,000 per each 
occurrence.  If the Tenant’s operations require the use of open flame, Tenant 
will also provide insurance coverage for fire and casualty on the leased 
premises in an amount sufficient to provide replacement cost of the leased 
premises. The Town Manager or designee may raise the required amount at 
his/her discretion depending upon trends in the insurance industry, value of 
the building, risk to other lessees, and the Tenant’s business. 

 
II. Property Insurance 

 
a. Town shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy 

or policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, 
in the amount of the full replacement value thereof, providing protection 
against all perils included within the classification of fire, flood, extended 
coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief, and special extended perils. 

 
b. Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a 

policy or policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of 
the Leased Premises. Tenant agrees that Town shall not be liable for 
injury to Tenant’s business or any loss of income there from, or for loss or 
damage to goods, wares, merchandise, or other property in or on the 
Leased Premises owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s employees, 
invitees, customers, or any other person in or about the Leased Premises; 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 9 OF 15 

nor shall Town be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s 
employees, invitees, agents, or contractors, whether such damage or 
injury to persons or property is caused by or results from fire, steam, 
electricity, gas, water, or rain, or from the breakage, leakage, obstruction, 
or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air 
conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said 
damage or injury to person or property results from conditions arising 
upon the Leased Premises or from other sources or places, and 
regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of 
repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 

 
III. Certificates of Insurance showing the required insurance is in effect and 

identifying the Town of Florence as an additional insured shall be provided to 
the Town of Florence initially at the time a lease becomes effective and 
annually thereafter, and upon every change in insurance provider or 
insurance coverage. 

 
IV. All insurance policies must be in effect for the duration of the lease term or 

longer if stated in the lease, and the Town must be notified of any changes to 
policies. 

 
F. Hazardous Materials 

 
I. The Tenant shall not allow hazardous materials to be used or stored on Town 

property, except as specifically permitted or necessary for the Tenant’s lawful 
business use and only with prior approval of the Town. 

 
II. The Tenant’s use of hazardous materials, if permitted, shall comply with all 

applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations. 
 

III. The Tenant shall not pollute or contaminate the environment with discharges, 
leaks, or emissions of hazardous materials. 

 
IV. The Tenant shall be required to promptly notify the appropriate authorities 

and the Town of any discharge or spill and to clean up the impacted area at 
Tenant’s own expense in compliance with applicable laws. 

 
V. Tenant shall be fully liable for all damages, costs and expenses related to a 

violation of the terms of the lease with respect to the use, storage, cleanup, 
remediation, or disposal of hazardous materials. 

 
G. Signage 

 
I. All signage requested by the Tenant must be approved by the Historic District 

Advisory Commission and purchased by the Tenant. 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 10 OF 15 

II. Any and all signage erected by the Tenant must conform to all applicable 
laws and ordinances outlined in Town Code Chapter 150, Part 3 (Sign 
Regulations). 

 
III. The Tenant must remove signs within 15 days after termination of the lease 

and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises at the 
Tenant’s sole cost and expense. 

 
IV. Tenants are required to purchase signs from a pre-approved vendor for 

Town-owned buildings with standardized signs. Standardized signs have 
been previously approved by the Historic District Advisory Commission. 

 
H. Performance Standards 
 

I.  All properties leased by the Town are to be maintained in a proper, safe, 
clean, and orderly fashion taking into consideration its permitted use, 
surrounding properties, zoning, and other applicable laws and regulations. 

 
a. Tenants will not occupy, store, or display any items in the lobbies or other 

public spaces. 
 

b. Smoking is prohibited in Town-owned buildings and within 20 feet of 
exterior doorways. 
 

c. Tenants may not place staples, nails, paint, fake snow, or other items that 
may cause damage to the ceilings, walls, floors, fixtures, or mechanical 
systems. 
 

d. Any activity that causes physical damage to Town-owned properties is 
prohibited. 

 
II. The Town of Florence reserves the right to enter leased property and the 

structures thereon at all reasonable times. This includes regular annual 
inspections. Town staff will provide 24-hour notice to Tenant if entry into the 
leased property is required before or after regular business hours. 

 
III. All commercial structures shall at all times be in compliance with applicable 

building, fire, mechanical, electrical, and other regulations. Applicable building 
code and fire marshal inspections must be performed and certified to the 
Town upon completion of all renovations, remodels, and/or new construction. 

 
IV. Easements or rights-of-way on the leased parcel shall not be used in any way 

that interferes with the rights of the holders or any person(s) lawfully using the 
easement or right-of-way. Easements or rights-of-way outside of the leased 
parcel and/or immediately adjacent to it shall not be used for storage, parking, 
or any other unauthorized uses. 

 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 11 OF 15 

V. Requests for maintenance in Town-owned properties will be submitted 
through the Town’s Facility Maintenance System. 

 
VI. Pets and other animals are not permitted on the premises except that service 

animals are allowed in Town-owned buildings. A service animal means any 
dog or miniature horse that is individually trained to do work or perform tasks 
for the benefit of an individual with a disability.  

 
VII. Tenants will maintain standard business hours as written in the approved 

lease with the Town.  Tenant must be open for business a minimum of 35 
hours a week.  Tenants are required to provide advance notice if their space 
will not be open during standard business hours.   
 

VIII. Failure to comply with the performance standards listed in this section or any 
other provisions or stipulations contained in the lease are grounds for 
termination of the lease if the Tenant does not rectify the problem after 
reasonable notice by the Town. 

 
Section VI. Definitions 
 
Building Core: The building core includes portions of the building that are not rented 
but serve all Tenants indirectly. The building core includes public restrooms, ventilation 
shafts, electrical distribution, elevator shafts, and stairwells.  

 
Fair Market Rent: Rental income that a public and private property would most likely 
command in the open market; indicated by the current rents paid for comparable space. 
 
Government Lessor: A city, town, county or county stadium district. 

 
Government Property Improvement: A building for which a certificate of occupancy 
has been issued, for which the title of record is held by a government lessor, that is 
situated on land for which the title of record is held by a government lessor or a political 
subdivision of this state and that is available for use for any commercial, residential 
rental or industrial purpose, including, but not limited to, office, retail, restaurant, service 
business, hotel, entertainment, recreational or parking uses. 
 
Gross Building Space: The total floor area of a building measured from the exterior of 
the wall, but not including unenclosed areas. 
 
Highest and Best Use: The basic four tests of highest and best use are as follows: 

Is the use physically possible? 
Is the use legally permitted? 
Would the use be financially feasible? 
Would the use be maximally productive? 

 
In other words, and assuming that the first three are satisfied, rank prospects in order of 
value or rate of return. In the end, the proposed use with the highest internal rate of 
return and net present value is the maximally productive use.   The bottom line is what 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 12 OF 15 

would be the highest net income for a proposed structure. Determining the most 
profitable requires review of a market analysis or a business plan/feasibility study. 
 
Landlord Lien:  Lien placed on a Tenant’s property for the satisfaction of unpaid rent or 
property damage. 

Load Factor: Load factor is a method of calculating total monthly rent costs to a Tenant 
that combines usable square feet and a percentage of square feet of common areas.  
Usable square feet + percentage of core area square feet = rentable square feet.  The 
addition of a percent of the common area expenses to monthly rent is known as the 
"load factor." This item may be a factor used to calculate future rental rates. 

Prime Tenant: Any person, partnership, corporation, company, limited liability 
company, joint venture or other organization or association that enters into a lease 
directly with a government lessor to develop or occupy for at least thirty (30) 
consecutive days a government property improvement, regardless of whether the 
improvement is actually used by the prime Tenant or by one or more subtenants. 
 
Redevelopment Project: Any work or undertaking to sell, lease, or otherwise make 
available land in areas for residential, recreational, commercial, industrial, or other use 
or for public use or to retain land for public use, in accordance with a redevelopment 
plan. It includes the preparation of a redevelopment plan, the planning, surveying and 
other work incident to a redevelopment project and the preparation of all plans and 
arrangements for carrying out a redevelopment project. 

Sublease: Rental agreement between a Tenant who already holds a lease to a 
commercial space or property and someone (the sublessee) who wants to use all or 
part of the Tenant's space. In a sublease, the Tenant assigns certain rights that they 
already hold, to the sublessee. Sublessees pay rent directly to the rightful Tenant 
(sublessor) to either share the space with the sublessor or take over the entire space 
from the sublessor. A sublessor cannot legally assign rights to a sublessee if the 
sublessor’s lease agreement terms do not allow for subleasing. 

Modified Triple Net Lease: Lease agreement on a property where the Tenant agrees 
to pay all real estate taxes, including GPLET, building insurance, and maintenance (the 
three "nets") on the property in addition to any normal fees that are expected under the 
agreement (rent, utilities, et al). This item may be a factor used to negotiate future rental 
rates. 

Useable Square Feet: In commercial leasing, usable square feet simply means the 
square footage that is rented to be used exclusively by the Tenant. it may also be 
referred to as net square feet. Usable square feet includes private (Tenant-only) 
restrooms, closets, storage, and any other areas used only by the Tenant. Usable 
Square Feet also refers to square footage that can only be used by the Tenant and not 
leased to another. This item may be a factor used to negotiate rental rates. 

Section VII. Supplemental Forms 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 13 OF 15 

Exhibit “A” Statutes  
Exhibit “B” Standard Lease Agreement 
 
 
 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 14 OF 15 

 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

 
A.  The Town must follow A.R.S. §36-1471 et. seq. for Town-owned properties that 

are located within the Downtown Redevelopment Area. A redevelopment 
project as defined by A.R.S. §36-1471(17) is any work or undertaking to sell, 
lease or otherwise make available land in areas for residential, recreational, 
commercial, industrial or other use of for public use or to retain land for public 
use, in accordance with a redevelopment plan.  

 
B.  A.R.S. §36-1474(C) allows a municipality to sell, lease, exchange, transfer, 

assign, subdivide, retain for its own use, mortgage, hypothecate or otherwise 
encumber or dispose of any real or personal property or any interest in the 
property in a redevelopment project.  

 
C.  A.R.S. §36-1477 applies to Town-owned properties in the redevelopment area 

as follows: 
 

I.     A public official of a municipality, commissioner, or employee of a housing 
authority or slum clearance and redevelopment commission to which the 
powers of a municipality have been delegated pursuant to this article shall 
not voluntarily acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in a redevelopment 
project or in any property included or planned to be included in a 
redevelopment project of the municipality or in any contract or proposed 
contract in connection with a redevelopment project. If an acquisition is not 
voluntary, the interest acquired shall be immediately disclosed in writing to 
the local governing body and the disclosure shall be entered upon the 
minutes of the governing body. 

 
II.    If any official, commissioner or employee presently owns or controls, or 

owned or controlled within the preceding two years, any interest, direct or 
indirect, in any property which the person knows is included or planned by 
the municipality to be included in a redevelopment project, the person 
shall immediately disclose this fact in writing to the local governing body, 
and this disclosure shall be entered upon the minutes of the governing 
body. The person shall not participate in any action by the municipality, 
housing authority or commission affecting the property. Any violation of 
this section shall constitute misconduct in office.  

 
D.  A.R.S. §36-1480 applies to Town-owned properties in the redevelopment  
      area as follows: 

 
I.    The sale, lease, exchange or other transfer, and any related agreement 

may be made only after, or subject to, the approval of the redevelopment 
plan by the local governing body. Real property shall be sold, leased or 
transferred at its fair value for uses in accordance with the redevelopment 



 

 
PROPERTY LEASE POLICY   PAGE 15 OF 15 

plan even though the fair value may be less than the cost of acquiring and 
preparing the property for redevelopment.  

 
II.    A municipality shall take into account and give consideration to the uses 

and purposes required by the plan, the restrictions upon, and the 
covenants, conditions and obligations assumed by the redeveloper of the 
property, the objectives of the redevelopment plan for the prevention of 
the recurrence of slum or blighted areas, and other matters the 
municipality specifies as being appropriate. 

 
III.    Sale, lease, exchange, or other transfer of real property or any interest of 

the property shall not be made until after public advertising for bids has 
been made for at least thirty (30) days in a newspaper of general 
circulation within the municipality and the posting of notices in three or 
more public places within the municipality.  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
__________________, an Arizona limited liability company  

 
 
 
 

DATE:   As of __________, 2019 
 



 

Page 2 of 18 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Silver King Market Place Lease Agreement (this "Lease") is made and entered into 
as of the ___ day of __________, 2020 by Town of Florence, an Arizona municipal 
corporation, hereinafter called "Town", and _________, an Arizona limited liability 
company, hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of 
Tenant as hereinafter set forth, the Town does hereby lease 728 square feet to Tenant 
of the premises located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 201, Florence, Arizona, also known 
as the Silver King Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the 
“Leased Premises”.  The Leased Premises are also described as Suite 201, which is 
located at the south end of the building in which the Premises are located (the “Building”) 
on the second floor. 
 
2. TERM 
 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of ________, 2020 and end on the __st day 
of __________, 2021 (the “Initial Term”). The Town shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to put Tenant in possession of the Leased Premises at the beginning of the Initial 
Term. If Town is unable to timely provide the Leased Premises for occupancy by Tenant, 
rent shall abate for the period of delay. Tenant agrees it shall make no other claim against 
Town for any such delay. 

 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Initial Term upon such terms and conditions 
as may be agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such 
election; provided that Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Initial Term no later 
than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term. If Tenant does not elect to 
extend the Initial Term in accordance with this paragraph, this Lease shall end on the 
31st day of __________, 2021 (the “Expiration Date”) and thereafter Tenant may only 
occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-month tenancy may be 
terminated by Town upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. Town’s acceptance of rent 
payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal of this Lease 
Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of _________ dollars ($XXX.00) per month for the duration 
of this Lease. In addition to the rent, Tenant is responsible for any commercial property 
lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease excise tax. Each monthly 
payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first day of each calendar month 
for the balance of the Initial Term, together with such taxes. Payment of rent shall be 



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

made to the Town at Town of Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 North Main Street, Florence, 
Arizona 85132, or at such other place designated by written notice from Town. The rental 
payment amount for any partial calendar months included in the Lease term shall be 
prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not received by the close of the fifth business day then 
a late fee of $100.00 will be added to Tenant’s account and past-due rent shall bear 
interest at the rate of ten per cent (10%) per annum from the date due (i.e., the first day 
of each month) until paid. 
 
5. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY LEASE EXCISE TAX 
 
Tenant shall be responsible for any and all property taxes and all government property 
lease excise taxes described in A.R.S. § 42-6201 el seq. or similar laws in force from time 
to time. The Government Property Lease Excise Tax is payable to Pinal County by 
December 1 each year. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 42-6206, failure by Tenant to pay any such 
tax after notice and an opportunity to cure is an event of default that could result in 
divesting the Tenant of any interest in or right of occupancy of the Leased Premises.  
 
6. SECURITY DEPOSIT 
 
Tenant has deposited with Town the sum of _________ dollars ($XXX.00) as security 
for the full and faithful performance by Tenant of all the terms of this Lease required to be 
performed by Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to Tenant after the expiration of this 
Lease; provided Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all of its terms. At the expiration 
of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may properly request the return of the Security 
Deposit, Town shall make an inspection of the Leased Premises and deduct from the 
Security Deposit such sums as are necessary to repair and refurbish the Leased 
Premises to the condition which existed prior to Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event 
of a bona fide sale of the Building of which the Leased Premises are a part, Town shall 
have the right to transfer the security to the purchaser to be held under the terms of this 
lease, and Town shall be released from all liability for the return of such security to Tenant.  
 
7. PURPOSE 
 

A. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the business 
of a ____________ and for no other purpose without Town’s express prior written 
consent. This use must also be and remain consistent with Exhibit “A”. In the event 
Tenant desires to use the Leased Premises for a different business purpose not 
described above, Tenant shall first apply, in writing, for approval for such use to 
the Town of Florence. As a further condition of this Lease, Tenant must also 
maintain regular business hours and be open for at least thirty-five (35) hours per 
week with exception of holidays.   

 
B. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Town may terminate this 

Lease after providing Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of Town’s 
intent to terminate this Lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions or 



 

Page 4 of 18 
 

otherwise cure the deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Town 
may terminate this Lease as provided in Section 18 below. 

 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws 
applicable to the Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or 
regulations. 

 
8. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the purposes 
of storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other inherently 
dangerous substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the zoning 
code of the Town of Florence and the Town’s Property Lease Policy which is incorporated 
by reference fully herein, both as promulgated by Town from time to time.   
 
The tenant shall not allow hazardous materials to be used or stored on Town property, 
except as specifically permitted or necessary for the tenant’s lawful use and approved of 
the property. 
 
9. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 

A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign this Lease without Town's consent. To assign this 
Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any 
subsidiary of Tenant, to any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to 
a purchaser of substantially all of Tenant's assets Tenant must receive either 
written consent from Town (not to be unreasonably withheld) or enter into a new 
lease agreement reasonably satisfactory to both parties.  

 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or 

any part of the Leased Premises or assign this Lease in whole or in part without 
the Town's written consent.  

 
10. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs 
and refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but 
is not limited to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, 
ceilings, and other parts of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and enjoyment 
of the Leased Premises, except for major mechanical systems or the roof [(so long as 
damage thereto is not caused, in whole or in part, by the acts or omissions of Tenant, its 
invitees or those under Tenant’s direction and control) subject to the obligations of the 
parties as may otherwise be set forth in this Lease.] 
 
11. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or make 
additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased 
Premises from time to time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant 
Improvements”); provided the same are made in a workmanlike manner, lien free, 
in accordance with all codes and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must 
obtain the written consent of the Town prior to undertaking any such Tenant 
Improvements. Tenant shall have the right to place and install personal property, 
trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary installations in and upon the Leased 
Premises and fasten the same to the Leased Premises. All personal property, 
equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether 
acquired by Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed 
on the Leased Premises by Tenant, thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free 
and clear of any claim by Town. Tenant shall have the right to remove the same at 
any time during the term of this Lease but not after ten (10) days after the expiration 
thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. 
Any damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be 
repaired by Tenant at Tenant's expense. 

  
If Tenant fails to repair any such damage the Town may repair the damage and 
deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security deposit, with Tenant remaining 
liable for the excess, if any, over the security deposit. At the expiration of this 
Lease, at Town’s direction, Tenant shall remove any such personal property from 
the Leased Premises at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, repairing any damage to 
the Leased Premises occasioned thereby.  

 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of Tenant 

Improvements, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as 
Exhibit "B" and incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all 
certificates, permits, licenses and other authorizations of governmental bodies or 
authorities which are necessary to permit the construction of the improvements on 
the Leased Premises and shall keep the same in full force and effect at Tenant's 
cost.  

 
C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of services, 

labor, and materials for the construction of Tenant Improvements on the Leased 
Premises at its sole cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the 
contracting party to guarantee performance and all workmanship and materials 
installed by it for a period of one year following the date of completion of 
construction.  Tenant shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely performed 
in a good and workmanlike manner and lien free, all to the effect that the 
improvements shall be fully and completely constructed and installed in 
accordance with good engineering and construction practice. Tenant shall include 
in any contract for the construction of Tenant Improvements a requirement that 
bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be furnished guaranteeing the faithful 
performance of the contract requirements and the payment of any and all 
subcontractors. 



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

 
D. During the course of Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full 

force and affect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to 
three times the amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of 
loss or damage to the improvements during the course of construction shall be on 
Tenant with the proceeds from insurance thereon payable to the Town.  

 
E. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 

completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of Tenant 
Improvements to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated 
therewith. Town shall be under no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance 
with the provisions contained herein. Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party 
may construe the permission granted Tenant hereunder to create any 
responsibility on the part of Town to pay for any improvements, alterations or 
repairs occasioned by Tenant.  

 
12. UTILITIES 
 
The Town shall pay the amount due for charges for water, sewer, gas, and electricity and 
separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's share of the charges as determined by Town in its 
reasonable judgment utilizing any reasonable method of apportionment. Tenant shall pay 
the utilities invoice upon the due date for the monthly payment of this Lease or the first of 
the month, whichever comes first. If the utilities payment is not received by the due date, 
then a late fee of $25.00 will be added to Tenant’s account and the past-due amount shall 
bear interest at the rate of ten per cent (10%) per annum from the date due until paid. 
Tenant shall be responsible for all of its own telecommunications/cable/Internet charges. 
 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office 
or retail use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any 
equipment or devices that utilize excessive electrical energy, or which may, in Town's 
reasonable opinion, overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other 
tenants.  
 
13. SIGNAGE 
 

A. Exterior Signs.  Tenant may purchase and the Town will install one exterior sign 
located on the east side of the Building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk 
and expense and in conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and 
thereafter, to repair or replace, if it shall so elect, signs on any portion of the Leased 
Premises, provided that Tenant shall remove any such signs upon termination of 
this Lease, and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises, all 
at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. 

 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in 

conformity with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and 



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

install its usual and customary signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased 
Premises.  

 
14. ENTRY 
 
Town shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours (absent 
emergency [during which Town may enter to inspect/endeavor to abate emergency]) to 
inspect the same, provided Town shall not thereby unreasonably interfere with Tenant's 
business on the Leased Premises. 
 
15.  PARKING 
 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Town, other tenants of the Building, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved 
common automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and 
regulations for the use thereof as prescribed from time to time by Town. Town reserves 
the right to designate parking areas within the Premises or in reasonable proximity 
thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's agents and employees or for others within or utilizing the 
Building. 
 
16. MECHANIC’S AND OTHER LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any 
person to a mechanic’s or material supplier’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased 
Premises, or on Tenant’s interest under this Lease. Tenant agrees that it will neither do 
any act, nor fail to do any act, which would result in the recordation of any lien against the 
Leased Premises, the Building or the Silver King Market Place as a whole. 
 
17.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 

A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 

i. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless Town (i.e., the Town of Florence), its agents, officers, officials 
(whether elected or not), attorneys and employees (collectively, the 
“Indemnified Parties”) from, of and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees [whether or not suit is 
brought], court costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising 
out of, or alleged to have resulted either wholly or in part from the acts, errors, 
mistakes, omissions, work or services of Tenant, its agents, employees, 
contractors, subcontractors or business invitees in the performance of this 
Agreement, and regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or 
expenses are caused in part by Town.  

 
ii. Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Indemnified Parties 

and each of them shall arise in connection with any claims, damages, losses 



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

or expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or 
injury to, impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting 
therefrom, caused either wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, 
omissions, work or services in the performance of this Agreement including any 
employee or business invitee of Tenant or any other person for whose acts, 
errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services Tenant may be legally liable, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are 
caused in part by Town. 

 
iii. The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will 

in no way be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph 
17A. 

 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 
i. Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein 

stipulated minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a 
current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of “A”, or approved and licensed to do business 
in the State of Arizona with policies and forms satisfactory to Town. 

 
ii. All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during 

any term of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of Town, 
constitute a material breach of this Lease. 

 
iii. Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-

insurance maintained by Town shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply 
with the claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance 
policy warranty shall not affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect 
Town. 

 
iv. The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name Town and any 

other Indemnified Parties designated by Town as Additional Insured(s). 
 

v. Town reserves the right to amend the requirements herein at any time during 
the Lease subject to at least 30 days written notice. Coverage provided by the 
Tenant shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the Indemnification 
provision of this Lease. To the extent permitted by law, Tenant waives all rights 
of subrogation or similar rights against Town. Town reserves the right to require 
complete copies of all insurance policies required by this Lease at any time. 
Failure to maintain the insurance policies required by this Lease, or to provide 
evidence of renewal, is a material breach of contract. 

 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 

 
i. General Liability/Contractual Indemnity 

 



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

a. Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive 
public liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each 
occurrence and with a $1,000,000 General Aggregate Limit.  The policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage, 
personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited 
to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this 
Agreement, which coverage will be at least as broad as Insurance Service 
Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 2001 version). The 
coverage shall not exclude X, C, U.  

 
b. Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision and shall not 

contain a sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which 
would serve to limit third party action over claims. 

 
c. The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be 

at least as broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, 
Form B, CG2O101185 (October 2001 version). 

 
ii. Property Insurance 

 
a. Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy 

or policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, 
in the amount of the full replacement value thereof, providing protection 
against all perils included within the classification of fire, flood, extended 
coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and special extended perils. 

 
b. Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy 

or policies of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the 
Leased Premises. Tenant agrees that Town shall not be liable for injury to 
Tenant’s business or any loss of income there from, or for loss or damage 
to goods, wares, merchandise or other property in or on the Leased 
Premises owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s employees, invitees, 
customers, or any other person in or about the Leased Premises; nor shall 
Town be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, Tenant’s employees, 
invitees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons 
or property is caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water 
or rain, or from the breakage, leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, 
sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air conditioning, or light fixtures or 
from any other cause; or whether the said damage or injury to person or 
property results from conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or from 
other sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such 
damage or injury or the means of repairing the same is inaccessible to 
Tenant. 

 
iii. Certificates of Insurance 

 



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

a. Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant 
shall furnish Town with proof of payment acceptable to Town of any required 
coverages hereunder, together with Certificates of Insurance, or formal 
endorsements as required by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as 
evidence that policies providing the required coverage, conditions and limits 
required by this Lease are in full force and effect. 

 
b. In the event any insurance policy(ies) required by this Lease is (are) written 

on a “claims made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the 
expiration of any term of this Lease as evidenced by annual Certificates of 
Insurance. 

 
c. If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate 

must be sent to Town fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
18. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 

A. DEFAULTS 
 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a 
material default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 

 
i. The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 

 
ii. The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment 

required to be made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 

iii. The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, 
or provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than 
described in subsection (ii) above, where such failure shall continue for a period 
of fifteen (15) days after written notice hereof from Town to Tenant; provided, 
however, that if the nature of Tenant’s default is such that more than fifteen 
(15) calendar days are reasonably required for its cure, then Tenant shall not 
be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such cure within said fifteen 
(15) day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion, 
such additional time to complete not to exceed thirty (30) additional days. 

 
iv. The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; 

the filing by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt 
or a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to 
bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a petition filed against Tenant, the same is 
dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a trustee or receiver to 
take possession of substantially all of Tenant’s assets, located at the Leased 
Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, where possession is not 
restored to Tenant within thirty (30) calendar days; or, the attachment, 
execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant’s assets located 



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

at the Leased Premises or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease where such seizure 
is not discharged within thirty (30) days; or  

 
v. The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises, the Building or 

the Silver King Market Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 

B. REMEDIES 
 

i. In the event of any such default or breach by Tenant, Town may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Town in the 
exercise of any right or remedy which Town may have by reason of such default 
or breach: 

 
ii. Terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful 

means, in which case this Lease shall terminate, and Tenant shall immediately 
surrender possession of the Leased Premises to Town. In such event Town 
shall be entitled to recover from Tenant all damages incurred by Town by 
reason of Tenant’s default, including but not limited to, the cost or recovering 
possession of the Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary 
renovation and alteration of the Premises; reasonable attorneys’ fees; any real 
estate commission actually paid; and the worth at the time of award by the court 
having jurisdiction thereof of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the 
balance of the term after the time of such award exceeds the amount of such 
rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be reasonably 
avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Town shall 
have the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from 
Tenant the amount specified in this paragraph; or 2) proceeding under 
subsection (iii) immediately below. 

 
iii. Maintain Tenant’s right to possession, in which case this Lease shall remain in 

effect whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such 
event, Town shall be entitled to enforce all of Town’s rights and remedies under 
this Lease, including the right to recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 

 
iv. Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Town under the laws or 

judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a Town’s 
lien on Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a 
Town’s lien is declared by Town, Town may, without notice or demand to 
Tenant, terminate Tenant’s right to possession of the premises until Town has 
secured sufficient personal property or full payment of rent to satisfy the amount 
of rent owed. Should Town declare a Town’s lien on the Leased Premises 
pursuant to this paragraph, this Lease shall not be considered terminated, and 
Town shall have a right to recover rent as it becomes due. 

 
C. DEFAULT BY TOWN 

 



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

Town shall not be in default unless Town fails to perform obligations required of 
Town within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after 
written notice by Tenant to Town and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed 
of trust covering the Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore 
been furnished to Tenant in writing, specifying wherein Town has failed to perform 
such obligations; provided however, that if the nature of Town’s obligation is such 
that more than fifteen (15) days are required for performance, then Town shall not 
be in default if Town commences performance within such thirty day period and 
thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Town does not perform, 
the holder of any first mortgage may perform in Town’s place and Tenant must 
accept such performance. 

 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 

 
If Tenant shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the 
Initial Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, 
covenants, and conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term 
of the Lease. Any such month-to-month tenancy may be terminated by Town upon 
thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. However, nothing herein shall be construed as or 
deemed a waiver of any rights of Town to take such action in law or equity as Town 
may have under the provisions of this Lease or otherwise.  

 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 

 
If Tenant should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit 
a receiver to be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the 
Tenant’s assets or of this leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or 
receivership proceedings not be dismissed within thirty days, then Town may, 
without notice or demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-enter and 
repossess the demised premises and remove all persons, and under no 
circumstances shall this Lease be assigned or transferred by operation of law. 

 
19. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any part 
thereof or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects 
that the same cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the right 
within ninety (90) days following damage to elect by notice to Town to terminate this Lease 
as of the date of such damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of the Leased 
Premises, and if such damage does not render the Leased Premises unusable for 
Tenant's purposes, Town shall promptly repair such damage at the cost of Town. In 
making the repairs called for in this paragraph, Town shall not be liable for any delays 
resulting from state of emergency declarations government orders, pandemic, strikes, 
governmental restrictions, inability to obtain necessary materials or labor or other matters 
which are beyond the reasonable control of Town. Tenant shall be relieved from paying 



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

rent and other charges during any portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises 
are inoperable or unfit for occupancy, or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
Rentals and other charges paid in advance for any such periods shall be credited on the 
next ensuing payments, if any, but if no further payments are to be made, any such 
advance payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this Lease 
which may permit Town to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph extend 
not only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, 
inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
 
20. TITLE 
 

A. Subordination. Tenant shall, upon the request of Town in writing, subordinate this 
Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage/deed of trust upon 
the Leased Premises irrespective of the time of execution or the time of recording 
of any such mortgage; provided, however, that as a condition to such 
subordination, the holder of any such encumbrance shall enter first into a written 
agreement with Tenant reasonably satisfactory to such encumbrancer in form 
suitable for recording to the effect that: 

 
i. In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the encumbrance by the 

holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be 
disturbed but shall continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not 
be in default hereunder; and  

 
ii.  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to 

be used for any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance 
provisions of this Lease.  Tenant agrees that if the encumbrancer or any person 
claiming under the encumbrancer shall succeed to the interest of Town in this 
lease, Tenant will attorn to and recognize said encumbrancer or person as its 
Landlord under the terms of this Lease; provided that said encumbrancer or 
person for the period during which said encumbrancer or person respectively 
shall be in possession of the Leased Premises and thereafter their respective 
successors in interest shall assume all of the obligations of Town hereunder, 
but shall not be liable for prior defaults of Town hereunder. The word 
"mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, deeds of trust or other similar 
instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term "institutional 
mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or 
savings) or trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other 
lender institutional in nature and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  

 
B. Quiet Enjoyment.  Town covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the rent 

and observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on 
Tenant's part to be observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may 
peaceably and quietly have, hold, occupy and enjoy the Leased Premises in 



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

accordance with the terms of this Lease without hindrance or molestation from 
Town or any persons lawfully claiming through Town. 

 
21. ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Town and Tenant to enforce any of the provisions 
and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay to the other 
party all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in prosecuting 
or defending such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or proceeding, such 
costs, expenses and attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part of such judgment. 
 
22. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Town or Tenant pursuant to this Lease, 
shall be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed 
as follows: 
 
For Town:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     ___________ 
Town Manager     ___________ 
P.O. Box 2670     ___________ 
775 North Main Street     ___________ 
Florence, AZ 85132      
 
 
23. WAIVER 
 
A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by either party 
hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in any way affect 
any other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding unless it shall be 
in writing and signed by the parties. 
 
24. CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT  
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the provisions of which are incorporated herein by 
reference, all parties are hereby put on notice that this Lease is subject to cancellation by 
Town if any person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or 
creating this Lease on behalf of Town is, at any time while this Lease or any extension of 
this Lease is in effect, an employee or agent of Tenant in any capacity or a consultant to 
Tenant with respect to the subject matter of this Lease. 
 

{BALANCE OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY; SIGNATURES AND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 
 



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Town and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the 
day and year first written above. 
 
TOWN: 
 
TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
            
 Tara Walter, Mayor    Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   Clifford L. Mattice, Town Attorney 



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

TENANT: 
 
___________, an Arizona limited liability company 
 
By:    ____        
 
Its:    ________________________________ 
 
Date:        _____ 
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal  ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2020, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared ____________________, a married woman on her own behalf and 
that as such, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose 
therein contained on behalf of the said company. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Business Description 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 18 of 18 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

[PLACE HOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT IMPROVEMENTS]  
 

 
 
 



Public Notice 
 

Town of Florence 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 

for 
 

SILVER KING MARKETPLACE LEASE, 440 NORTH MAIN STREET, SUITE 201 
 

SILVER KING MARKETPLACE LEASE, 440 NORTH MAIN STREET, SUITE 202 
 

 
The Town of Florence hereby solicits SEALED proposals from qualified entities for a lease 
at the Silver King Marketplace, 440 North Main Street, Suite 201 and Silver King 
Marketplace, 440 North Main Street, Suite 202.  
 
To secure a complete copy of the Request for Proposal (RFP), email Jennifer Evans, 
Management Analyst, at jennifer.evans@florenceaz.gov. Complete and SEALED 
proposals should be submitted to the Town Clerk at 775 North Main Street, Florence, 
Arizona 85132. Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable accommodation by 
contacting the 504/ADA Coordinator for the Town of Florence at (520)868-7574 or 
(520)868-7502 (TDD). Please make all requests as early as possible to allow time to 
arrange the accommodation.  
 
The Town of Florence must receive the SEALED proposals no later than 2:00 P.M. MST 
on Monday, April 27, 2020. 
 
No faxed or emailed proposals will be accepted. Failure of the proposer to complete the 
entire proposal documents or requirements may result in rejection of the proposal. 
 
All bids should be identified as “RFP-Silver King Marketplace Lease, 440 North Main 
Street, Suite 201” or “RFP-Silver King Marketplace Lease, 440 North Main Street, Suite 
202”.   
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Town of Florence is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer 




	April 20, 2020 Agenda 
	Page 2
	Page 3

	6. Public Hearing and Presentation 
	6a. Public Hearing - Sanitation  Rates 
	6b. National Library Week 

	6c. Fair Housing Month 
	7. Consent Agenda
	7a.  SJ Anderson Company.pdf
	Backup.pdf
	SJ Anderson - Exhibit 1 Price Proposal Summary 4.20.20
	SJ Anderson - Exhibit 2 Offer and Acceptance from AZ State 4.20.20
	SJ Anderson - Exhibit 3 Plan Set for Silver King 4.20.20
	SJ Anderson - Exhibit 4 Coop Contract with TOF 4.20.20


	7b. Lease Turnouts 
	7c.  Grant from GOHS 
	7d. Video License Agreement 
	7e.  Minutes - February 3, 2020 
	February 18, 2020
	March 2, 2020 
	March 16, 2020 
	March 18, 2020 


	8a. Property Lease Policy 

	Legal Name of Lessee: Town of Florence
	Address: PO Box 2670/775 N Main Street
	City State Zip: Florence, AZ  85132
	County: Pinal
	Fed Tax ID: 866000245
	Bond Rating if applicable: 
	Name of Insurance CarrierAgent: AZ Municipal Risk Retention Pool
	Phone Number: 602-996-8810
	Primary ContactName Title: Rebecca Jimenez
	Primary Contact Title: Finance Director
	Phone NumberOffice: 
	Phone Number Cell: 520-868-7505
	Email: becki.jimenez@florenceaz.gov
	Second ContactName: carl.dudding@florenceaz.gov
	Second Contact Title: Accounting Manager
	Phone Number Office: 520-868-7560
	Phone Number Cell2: 
	Email_2: 
	Name of Attorney if any: Clifford Mattice
	Phone Number_2: 520-868-7557
	Population Served: 28000
	Coverage Area sq miles: 64
	 of fleet vehicles: 130
	Equipment Description: Fire Turnouts
	Delivery Date: 
	 of Payments: 3
	Payment Frequency: Off
	Quarterly: Off
	SemiAnnual: Off
	Annual: On
	Equipment Cost: 63668.40
	Down Payment: 6400
	Trade In Other: 
	Amount to Finance: 57268.40
	undefined: On
	undefined_2: Off
	Replacement Yes No If yes explain what equipment is being replaced If no explain why the addition is needed: 
	undefined_3: On
	undefined_4: Off
	Vehicle Year if applicable: 
	Miles if used: 
	VendorDealer: MES
	Salespersons Name: Bowley, John
	Phone: 877-817-6100
	Email_3: CustomerCare@mesfire.com
	If lessees expenditures exceeded revenues during any of the last 3 years explain why and describe the actions taken to correct shortfall: 
	undefined_9: Off
	undefined-4: On
	undefined_5: Off
	undefined_6: On
	undefined_7: Off
	undefined_8: On
	Completed By: Rebecca Jimenez
	Title: Finance Director
	Date: 03/31/2020


